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About M&S

O What's online...

This year, the majonty of M&S
shareholders will be clicking through to
marksandspencer com/annuaireporto8
to read our Annual report gnine The
expenence will not only be a more engaging
one, but a greener one, which helped us
save about four mithon pages of paper

it's a major step forward for us, as we move
towards online becoming our main form of shareholder communication
{see page 4 for detarls)

Our annual report website now offers
* An interactive experience

We've created different features for you to explore, such as
an interactve tmeline of the year and map

¢ Clear and simple navigation
Makang 1t gusck and easy to find the nformation you need

*View as you please
There's no need to read or pnnt the whole report if you don't
want to — you can simply pnnt selected pages as you view
them, or download a PDF of the sections you're interested in
The majonty of the report can also be viewed on handhelds

* A user-friendly experience
The website has been designed to be accessible for people
with disabilities Key features nclude the abiity to resize text
to a larger font, tagged images, charts and graphs, and
optrmisation for screen readers

marksandspencer.com/annualreport08

We are one of the UK's

leading retatlers, with over

21 millon people visiting
our stores each week

We offer stylish, high quality,

great value clothing and

home products, as well as
outstanding quality foods,
responsibly sourced from
around 2,000 suppliers
globally We employ over
75,000 people in the UK
and abroad, and have
622 UK stores, as well as
an expanding international
business
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Our plan

In the last year, we've built on our plan

to grow M&S into a world-class retailer
that’s customer-focused, fast-moving
and flexible We work hard to ensure

we offer only the highest quality products,
service and shopping environments

in all of our stores.

Looking forward, our plan hasn't changed,
but it has broadened to focus on five key
growth areas We will

® continue to invest in and grow our core
UK retall business, by introducing new
goods and services;

* strengthen our UK property portfolio,

¢ drive our M&S Direct business,

¢ expand our International business; and

¢ ntegrate Plan A {our ‘eco plan’) into
every aspect of how we do business,
so that we grow in a sustanable way

Total group sales Food

£9,022m

MARKS AMD SPENCERGROUP LG

We will monitor and measure our
performance against these objectives

In the following pages, we've begun this
process by setting out Key Performance
Indicators (KPIs)

In the current difficult economic climate,
our brand values — quality, value,
service, innovation and trust — are more
important than ever Our commitment

to these values sets us apart from our
competitors, and enables us to offer

our customers something truly special

2007/08 has been a year of positive
achievements, as you'll see in the Chief
Executive's statement Although the
outlook for the global and domestic
economy remains uncertan, we're
confident that we're making good
progress towards long-term growth

UK sales (excluding VAT)

Clothing and Home
UK sales (excluding VAT)

£4,059m (+1.4%)

We are the UK's largest clothing retailer
with a value market share of 11 0% and
valume market share of 11 2% (source
TNS Worldpanel) and sales accounting
for 48 9% of our UK bustness

»>read more on page 5

£4,250m (+6.9%)

Food accounts for 51 1% of our UK
business and we have a market share
of 4 3% (source TNS Worldpanel}

We opened 98 Simply Food stores
growing our portfolio to 299 across the
UK, including franchised stores in BP
Connect forecourts, motorway service
stations, railway stations and arports

sread more on pape 5

International
Sales {(excluding VAT)

£713m (+16.8%)

Our International business accounts for
7 9% of Group turnover and has grown
to 278 stores in 39 terntones globally
Dunng the year, we entered 4 new
temtones and apened 38 new stores

>read more on page 5
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MARKS AND SPENCER GROUP PLC

Key performance indicators

Group revenue £m

Group operating profit £m

om 2004005 200508 200807 200708
A UK Retal 70347 72750 79775 B,3091
B Internatonal Reta 4558 5007 6106 7128

Total 74905 77977 85881 9,020
[2007708 A [B] 90220
[2008707 A [B] 85881
[ 2008708 A 18] 77977
[ 200405 A I8 7,4805

Cm 200606 200508 20607 200708
A UK Retai 5864 7901 9565 8729
B tnternavonal Retad 607 657 B75 1164

Total 6491 8558 1,0440 19,0893
[ 2007708 A T8 ] 10893
[ 2008707 A [B] 10440
[ 2005708 A [B] 8558
[ 2004705 A 18] 649 1

Group profit before tax £m

Earnings per share

[ 2007108 ] 10071
[ 2008107 ] 9652
[ 2008708 ] 7514
[ 200405 ] 586 1

2007/08

43.0p

2006/07 40.4p
2005/06 31.4p
2004/05 19.2p

Group gross margin

-~ - e e we e

2007/08

33.6%

2006/07 38 9%
2005/06 38 3%
2004/05 34 7%

Market share value Food

2007/08
Note As perl of TNS anmsal
O e

dier » prior years as they make
changes 10 defihons or dean up

'] the data followng more dataled
mnéormaton. Theg has aways been the
case and any changes aro typcolly

very small adustments Thssa

process thal afl data prorders do

as a part of due digence
Rebased Sgue

2006/07 4.2%*
2005/06 4 1%

Market share value Clothing & footwear

2007/08

11.0% ___

2006/07 11.1% Womenswear 105 113 111

0 Lingene 243 261 248
2005/06 10.4% 563 105
Kidswear 42 45 48

Market share volume Clothing & footwear

2007/08

10%

2006/07 107% Womenswear 88 100 100

2005/06 10 1% Ungene 167 183 179
Menswear 112 111 131
Kidswear 44 50 652

The profit measures above are from continuing operations and stated befors property disposals and exceptional items
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Average weekly footfall

2004208 2006500 200807

2007/08

Each of our stores 1s anonymously visited once a month - twice

in the case of our larger flagship stores - by a mystery shopper

who evaluates service quality In 2007/08 that was the equivalent

of approximately 6,240 visits 1o our stores Scores for each question
are validated through an online customer survey

18 8m* 19 Fm' 21 bm' 21 .!Am Approximately half of M&S UK stores are fitted with entrance cameras that record the number

of peaple who wisit our stores This known footfall is analysed so that we can establish the ratios
between the wisits and sales, and then apply this to stores without cameras A total average
foctfall figure can then be calculated

In 2007/08 there was a change in methodology and an upgrade in technology that means we
are more accurately captunng customer footfall Previously we were under-stating our customer
flow We switched to enhanced technclogy - thermal image cameras that are more sensitive
In piciang up flow of individuals and separating groups of people as they walk into the store
Wae also increased the sample of annualised stores from 33 to 260, weighted to represent the
whole chain

Operational CO,e emissions tonnes

200807  2007/08 201112
L "‘1
i We've reduced our carbon dioxide and equivalent emissions
. {CO,0) produced by our UK and Republic of lreland stores,
@) P offices, warehouses, business travel and logistics Emissions
d/ J/ = O i are down by 9% from 517,000 tonnes in 2006/07 to 469,000
. tonnes, despite a §% increase in sales-floor area
I
b
Wy
517 469 N

Energy efficiency kWtv/sq ft

68 65

Waste sent to landfill tonnes

200607 2007/08 201112

For Plan A performance refer to the How we do business report at marksandspencer com/annuatreport08
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4 MARKS AND SPENCER GROUP PLC

Chairman’s foreword

Your dividend

22.5p

Tota! dividend

8.3p

Intenm dividend

14.2p

Final dividend

Lord Burns

This is my final report to you as Chairman, and I’'m pleased to report that while the
market has become tougher in the second half, it has been a good year for M&S.
Profits are up; our plan remains firmly on track; and we end 2007/08 as a stronger,
more competitive business than for many years. As a result, we report an increase

in your dividend of 23% to 22.5p and an increase in adjusted earnings per share (EPS)

of 7.9% to 43.6p.

The work done over the last four years in getting the basics
nght has enabled us to deliver good results despite difficult
conditions However, the trading environment remains
uncertain and we need the nght management in place to
{ake us forward

For these reasons, the Board concluded that it would be in
the best interests of the business to retain Sir Stuart Rose

In a leadership role until 2011 We also wanted to prepare for
a smooth transmion to a new Chief Executive before Stuart's
eventual departure, and more generally, to ensure continurty
in a business that has experienced a great deal of change in
recent years

We decided that these objectives could best be achieved

by Stuart taking up the position of Executive Charman He
explains on page 6 how this will enable him to continue to
dnve the business forward, while gmng others greater scope
to demonstrate therr talents and leadership ability

Although the decision to retain Stuart until 2011 has

received widespread support, there has been some cnticism
of combining the roles of Charrman and Chief Executive We
remain strongly of the view that this was the only practical way
10 secure his extended term, and 1s the nght deciston for M&S
As | explaned in detail In the letter sent to all shareholders on
3 April 2008, we have put n place a number of safeguards to
mitigate the governance concerns ansing from Stuart’s new
role These include the appointment of Sir David Michels as

independent Deputy Chawman and the search for a new
independent non-executive director Is underway We have
mtroduced annual voting for Stuart's reappointment starting
this year and are also considenng recrutting a further new
independent non-executive director To see a copy of this
letter go to marksandspencer com/thecompany

You mey notice certan changes to this year’s report, resulting
from the new Comparnies Act 2006 Shareholders were given

a choice of formats in which to recerve our report, and we were
pleased that so many have opted to read it online, enabling

us to reduce our environmental impact With greater emphasis
on online reporting, we’ve created a much improved website,
which you can see at

marksandspencer com/annualreport08

| have enjoyed my time with M&S Significant progress has
been made as the business has continued to be transformed
in the eyes of customers, employees and the wider world

I am confident that our strong Board, and plan for long-term
growth, puts M&S on course for a successtul future

Lord Burns
Charrman
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Chief Executive’s
statement

It's been another good year for M&S, achieved in
difficult circumstances. We started with a strong
first half, but expenenced more difficuit trading
conditions In the second half, largely as a result
of the economic slowdown.

Having completed the first phase of our recovery,
we are now broadening our plan in order to take
the business into the next stage of growth. In
2008/09 we will need to manage the business

in a challenging economic environment, while
continuing to invest for future growth.

Broadening the plan

In 2004 we put n place a three-part plan for renewing and renvigorating M&S
In order to secure profitable growth and build the business for the long term
Our focus was on getting the basics nght, by improving the products we offer,
our customer service and shopping environments

In 2007/08 we continued to make progress against the plan We sold more
goods to more people, reporting our biggest volume increase in sales in eight
years, with volume market share in clothing and footwear at 11 2% At the
same time, we held our lead in the value market for clothing and footwear
achieving 11 0% market share Clothing and home sales were up 1 4% to
almost £4 06bn Per una also performed strongly under the Ieadership of
George Davies, reporting sales of more than £428m

UK stores

Flagship stores 44 Simply Food stores 167

High street storas 219 Simply Food
Retad park stores o7 [franchised stores 132

MBS outlets a3 Total UK stores 822

MARKS AND SPENCERGROWPRALC 5

Sir Stuart Rose

Highlhights

£1,007m

Adjusted pre-tax profits

Group sales

51%

Increase in Group sales

International stores

Bahran 1 Phiippines 14
Bermuda 1 Poland 4
Bulgana 1 Qatar 1
Croatia 4  Republc of Ireland 17
Cyprus 10 Romania 6
Czech Republc 10 Russa 12
Gibraltar 1 Saudi Arabia 8
Greecs 35 Serba 1
Guernsay 4  Singapore 7
Hong Kong 8 Slovakia 1
Hungary 9 Slovena 1
India 14 South Korsa 17
Indonesa 13 Span 5
Jersey 6 Swizerdand 1
Kuwast 1  Tawan 3
Latvia 1 Thaiand 10
Lithuama 1 Turkey 34
Malaysia 4  UAE 5
Malta 3  Ukraine 3
Oman 1 TJotal International 278
stores

1 store opened i Libya in Aprd 2008
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6 MARKS AND SPENCER GROUP PLC

In food, a good performance saw sales increase from £3 97bn to
almost £4 25bn, and value market share reman steady at 4 3%

MaS Money continues to benefit from our partnership with
HSBC, with 3 8 million customers now signed-up to an M&S
Money financial product M&S Money now has more than

3 1 milllon M&S Money credit cards n circulation 114 bureaux
de change tn our stores, and #t served 4 8 million travel money
customers durng the year lts range of financial products aiso
includes car home, travel, pet and wedding insurance, as well
as cash 1SA and untt trusts like the M&S Ethical Fund

As we take the business forward, we are broadening the plan for
long-term growth This will be achieved by continuing to invest in
our core UK retaif business introducing new goods and services,
strengthening our UK property portfolio, dmving our M&S Direct
businass, expanding our international business, and ensunng
Plan A —~ our ‘eco plan’ - Is mtegrated In everything we do

I will return to the specific steps we're taking to achieve
our objectives on page 7 First | want to review the changes
we've made to ensure we are bullding on a strong foundation

Building management capability

On page 4. Lord Bums explains the business rationale for
my appointment to Executive Chairman As the decision has
attracted much comment, I'd like to highlight the mmediate
and longer-term benefits for the business

We believe in developing management talent intemally,

but this has been drfficult for M&S in recent years, with the
business expenencing considerable turbulence, followed by
rapid change since the turn of the millennium However, we now
have a strong senior team n place, which has an opportunity
to develop its skills - with lan Dyson as Group Finance and
Operations Dwector Staven Esom and Kate Bostock appointed
as Executive Directors running food and clothing respectively
and Steven Sharp continuing In his role as Executve Director
of Marketing We also benefit from an expanded and talented
Executve Committee (pictured on page 8)

With lan taking on significant new responsibilities, | can now
focus on a more specific set of executive responsibilities,

in partcular product, people development, and key growth
areas for the business including M&S Direct and Internationat
My new role will also give me time to develop and mature talent
within the business - a key task for any Chaiman At the same
time the Board will be able to continue to dnve a proven plan
without distraction, n a difficult economic environment

Responding to market conditions

2007/08 was a year of two halves, with a strong start followed
by a weaker performance While we believe our second half
performance 1s largely attnbutable te a detencration in market
conditions hke any retaller there are things we could have done
better For instance, although we sold significantly more volume,
we under-potentialised products in the middle and top pnce
categones — what we call 'better’ and 'best' - dunng the key
Chnstmas penod

Although we can't predict how severe the curment downturn
will be, or how long #t wilt last, we expect rts impact to be felt
into 2009/10 However, we believe we have the potental to
outperform the competriion by planning for modest sales
growth and keeping a tight control on costs and stock levels,
while at the same time, driving our business using our five
key values of quality, value, service, innovation and trust

Our efforts in the last three years to re-engage with customers
so they once again consider M&S as ‘great value’ for money,
will support us in the years ahead

We have reviewed our pneing architecture in order o attract
a broad range of customers We are now achieving a wider
pnce span ~ staying in touch with the supermarkets at entry
levels, while extending our offers above and beyond other
high street retailers It will enable us to flex our ‘good’, ‘better’
and 'best’ ranges to respond to changing customer demand,
as and when the economic stuation alters

We continue to invest in our stores, having completed 70%

of our store modernisation programme We plan to modernise
an additional 10% of space, and open an addrtional 5 5% of
new space in 2008/09 so that we enter a difficult penod for
UK retailing, with the majonty of our stores looking therr best
and using every square foot to s full potential

September 2007 November 2007

Apni 2007 June 2007 September 2007
‘Wash at 30’ Recycled Saturated fat Big & Tall launches | A Hollywood
campaign schoolwear levels cut Oftenng more than 450 Chnstmas
M&S announces launches MaAS cuts as much as tems online, ranging from The Chnstmas advertrsing
campaign to wash at M&S becomes the 82% of saturated fat tailonng to knitwear to campargn launches featunng
30C, and 10 re-label first retallsr to launch levels from over 500 casual shirts and trousgers, | leading man Antonto Banderas
almost 75% of ds schoolwsar made from products including at the same pnce 8s alongside the M&S leading
clotheng ranges to recycled plastic bottles sandwiches, ready standard sized clothes ladies
nckude the words meals, cnsps and
‘Think Climate - savoury snacks

Wash at 30'C'
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Finally, owning 70% of our assets and having retatively low
geanng means M&S has one of the strongest balance sheets
i the retail sector lan will discuss this further on page 9

1. Investing in our core UK business

Product

Our core UK business compnses the ndmdual busmess units
of womenswear, ingene, menswear kidswear, home and food
In 2007/08 we made good progress in each business unit

In womenswear and lingene, the emphasis was on our
segmentation plan, where we clanfied our sub-brands (such as
Autograph) to help our customers quickly and easily find what
they're looking for Further work s needed this ysar to ensure
customers feel comfortable In shopping for thew requirements
At the same time, ranges were continually refreshed so that
custormers can always find something new This adds up to
what we call ‘Every Woman, Every Time' — where we make it
easier for our customers, regardless of therr age, size and
budget -~ to find clothes that are beautifully made, stylish and
offer great value for money

Work to segment our sub-brands was also central to the
kidswear plan, as we took Important steps to win back
market share

In menswear and home, changing customers’ perception of
value was the focus as we competed hard on opening pnce
points (with home pnces at amost 12% below the high strest
average), whie improving ‘better’ and ‘best’ products for the
more aspirational shopper

In food, we delivered against our commitment to provide food
of the highest quality without compromise, with a focus on
provenance, innovation and heatth

Brand stretch

Our brand ss strong, and in 2008/09 we believe we can build
on the trust ® nspires to offer our customers better service and
more of what they want through 'brand stretch' For instance, by
featunng plus sizes onling, offenng bespoke Made to Measure
shirts for men, and expanding our m-store hosprtality options

MARKS AMD SPENCERGROVPRLC 7

Addironally, while M&S will always be essentially an ‘own
brand’ business, we believe we can add significant extra
value, by partnenng with guest brands that complement our
values In the last year, this was predominantly with trusted
technology brands in home, such as Sony and Apple In food,
where we face strong competition, customers tell us that tre
and convervence are key dnvers Dunng the summer we will
therefore tnal the sale of up to 350 branded food products -
such as Marmite, Heinz tomato ketchup and other branded
‘must haves’ - In a small number of stores We will roll this
out if successful

Service and store environments
In addibon to our products, we have continued to improve
the quality of our service and store environments

Inservice dunng 2007/08 our store colleagues sold record
volumes, while simultaneously improving ther scores in our
mystery shopping programme - achiewing an above average
score of 86% |t's to therr credit that we continue to be seen
as one of the hugh street’s best customer service providers

We've invested behind the scenes In our IT and logistics
infrastructure in order 10 maintain service effictency In 2007/08,
as well as delivenng 13% more stock to our stores than in
2008/07, our logistics network responded to a 63% nse In
volume from M&S Direct The plan has helped us to develop
faster and more efficient IT systems throughout our business
For instance, we are introducing new point-of-sale systems,
including more than 2,000 new tills and 258 new hand-held
terminals n-store to make stockchecking easer and more
efficient lan will discuss this further on page 8

While our IT and logistics improvements help support our stores
to run more efficiently, our store modermisation programme 1S
improving our shopping envwronments (see page 24)

2. Strengthening the UK property portfolio
We are undertaking one of the biggest store investment
programmes in the UK modemising and expanding our existing
footage (with 70% now complete), increasing the number of
stores we have, and ensunng we offer the nght stores in the
nght locations We will modernise a further 10% this year

May éooé
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January 2008 i February 2008 Apnl 2008
Oxfam Clothes ; Cammier bag charging Artficial colours and
Exchange { ASp charge for food flavounngs removed
Exchange launches to } camer bags announced, MA&S bscomes the first retasler
recuce the 1 mithon tonnes to be introduced in M&S to remove all artificial colours and
of clothing sent to landfi ; stores from the beginning flavounngs from s entire food
each year n the UK, and . ofMay All profits to go and soft dnnks range
raise funds for Otams work | to envionmental chanty :
to tackde poverty and njustice | Groundwork

1

|

Eco factory launch

M&S suppliers launch two
eco factones in Sn Lanka
They will produce per una and
Autograph hngerie exclusvely
for M&S
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8 MARKS AND SPENCER GROUP PLC

In order to achieve the scale of our property plan, in November
2007 we announced that we would open an additional 15%
to 20% more space In the next three to four years

But, Iike any business in this market, we need to pniontise costs
Although we will continue to invest in our store modermisation
and expansion programme, this year we will particuiarty focus on
new footage, and modemisations with extensions See page 9

3. Developing our M&S Direct business
M&S Drect covers our e-commerce website, home catalogue,
Chnstmas hamper delivery, flower and wine delivery, in-store
ordenng service, and Lunch to Go Buring the year it not only
becams an important part of our commitment to become a
multi-channel retaller but with sales up £60m to £220m, it

put us on course to reach our target of £500m annual sales
by 2010/11

On our e-commerce site I particular (relaunched with Amazon
in March 2007), we have recorded strong growth with wsits

1o the website up by nearly 60%, and sales growing ahead

of the market

4. Building an International business
Expanding mternationally provides strong opportunities to buld
a broader revenue base and drive profitable growth n some of
the world's most exciting markets In November 2007 we set
ourselves a target for Intemational to achieve between 15%
1o 20% of total Group revenues within the next five years

{in 2007/08 1t contrbuted 7 9%) We will do this by flexing our
business model so that we expand not just through franchise
partners, but also on a part-owned and whally-owned basis

We have already signed deals In Europe with two of our existing

In 2007/08 we made significant strides against the plan,
opening 38 new stores, which helped Iift sales by 16 8%
to £712 8m, and operating profit by 33% to £116 4m

5. Keeping up momentum on Plan A
Plan A, our five-year ‘eco plan’, reached the end of us first
year in January 2008 We pledged to mest 100 separate
Plan A commitments within five years, and so far we've
made progress on 84

Despite the tough consumer climate, our commtment to
Plan A remains, because there are compelling moral as

well as commercial reasons to do so Plan A gives us brand
dfferentiation, and as Al Gore said, “a sustanable business
can be a profitable one”

Looking ahead

The next year will be tough We will have to continue to
challenge ourselves to become more efficient, drive down
costs and improve our rate of return At the same time we
must maintain our investment for the long term both In the
UK and overseas [ believe that we have started to achieve '
this We have talented and motivated people, well-priced,

quality products, a clear plan, and dedication to understanding

what our customers want — all of which put us in a good

position to meet the ditficult market conditions that lie ahead

1 would like to pay tnbute to all of our staff and supphers for
therr hard work this year [t has been a tough but rewarding
experiencs, and they can take pnde in thew achievement

| would also like to thank Lord Burns for his support as
Charman over the past two years He has guided the Board
through some difficult discussions, always having the best

., interests of the Com at heart
partners, and i India where we will open around 30 to 50 new pany
stores 1n the next five years This 1s in addition to our plans 1o
enter China on a wholly-owned basis tater this year
Sir Stuart Rose
Chief Executive
4 6 8
1 3 5 4 9 10 1 12 B
2
1 Clem Constantine 4 Carl Leaver 6 lan Dyson 9 Steven Esom 11 Andrew Skinner
Director of Property Director of Group Finance and Executive Director Director of
and Store Intemmational Business Operations Director of Food GM Merchandising
Development 5 Kate Bostock 7 SirStuart Rose 10 Tanith Dodge and Planning ,
2 Steve Rowe Executive Director Chief Executlve Director of Human 12 Darrell Steln
Director of Retail of Clothing 8 Steven Sharp Resources gmo{ Oflsﬂcs
3 Nayna Mcintosh Executive Director 09
Director of Store of Marketing 13 John Dixon
Marketing and Design Diractor of Home

and M&S Direct
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Group Finance and .

Operations Director’s

statement

Highhghts

7.9%

Increase in earnings
per share

Capital expenditure

£1.1bn £914m

Returned to shareholders

lan Dyson

2007/08 was a year in which we made good progress in moving the business
forward. Earnings per share were up 7.9%. At the same time as continuing to
grow our earnings, we invested £1.1bn in our business to drive future growth, and
also returned £914m to our shareholders via dividends and the share buy back.

Results

Sales were up 5 1% to over £9 Obn with a robust performance
In the UK boosted by almost 5% of new space. and another
strong year for International, where sales were up 16 8%
Gross margn in the UK was down slightly to 43%, but good
contro! of our costs enabled us to deliver profit growth of 4 3%
overall, to £1 Obn

Our interest charge was up only 4 3%, despite a significant
increase n net debt to £3 1bn, reflecting a much higher
pension credit With a low tax rate of 27% and a lower number
of shares in 1ssue, earnings per share were up 7 9% to 43 6p

Investing in the business

Last year we nvested £1,055m to support the future growth
of the business This Investment was focused in three areas
UK property portfolio, International and supply chain and
information technology (I

We modernised a further 35% of our store portfolio to take

us to 70% This included some major developments and
extensions at stores such as Edinburgh, London Coiney,
Cheshunt, Usburn and Braehead We expect to modemise a
turther 10% of our estate in 2008/09 We also added space in
line with our strategy to develop and expand the M&S footpnnt
in the UK In total we added 4 8% of new space, with 3%

in general merchandise (GM) and 8 7% in food, reflecting

the continued roll cut of our successful Simply Food format

in 2008/09 we expect to add a further 5 5% of new space

In Intemationa! we continued to build our business In Ireland,
and worked with our franchise partners to move the business
forward The biggest developments however, were the
acquisition of controling mterasts m our franchise businesses
in Greece and the Balkans, and in the Czech Republic We see
substantal growth opportunities for these businesses over the
coming year

We have also moved on in establishing M&S in the exciting
markets of China and India We will open our first store n

Shanghai in the autumn, and mn India we have signed a deal with
Reliance to develop M&S throughout this fast developing nation

Underpinning our growth prospects i1s a plan to invest to
upgrade our supply chain and our IT systems This 15 a major
programme that will enable us to grow our business effectively
and efficiently We will add logistics capacity in food and
restructure our GM logistics, centred on the opening of fewer,
larger distnbution centres, beginning with Bradford in 2010/11
In IT we will implement new store systems, including POS,
new trading systems and new support systems

While we are sensitive to the economic environment, we are
continuing to nvest to move our business forward and intend
to spend between £800m and £900m in capital expenditure
n 2008/09 ‘

A strong balance sheet

QOur strong balance sheet underpins our future plans to nvest
In the business and gives us resilience aganst difficult market
conditions Our ratios reman strong and we retain ownership
of 70% of our property portfolio

The strength of our batance sheet enabled us to return more
than £900m to our shareholders dunng 2007/08 Dvdends
increased by 23% and we bought back 7 4% of our share
capital at a cost of £5656m

As Stuart has said, 2008/09 will be tough We will manage
our business accordingly but will aiso not lose sight of the
longer term opportunity by continuing to invest in our business
This approach will, we believe, dnive value for our shareholders
over time

lan Dyson
Group Finance and Operations Director
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Our core UK business

In the following pages we review our core UK business,
which covers the individual business units of womenswear,
menswear, kidswear, home and food, as well as our service
(including IT and logistics} and store environments.

Building our brand

66 The challenge for M&S
marketing is how we stay
ahead of the competition,
by responding to the
things that matter the
most to our customers. 99

One way we've responded tc this challenge is by evolving our
well-loved and successful food and womenswear advertising
campaigns

In food, we've retained the same broad approach, but we've
started to respond to the issues we know our customers care
about Everyone knows that our food tastes good, so our new
‘manifesto’ campaign now goes a step further by introducing
powerful messages on provenance and heaithy eating For
example, our ‘mellow yellow’ ad showeased our commitment to
using only free range eggs in all of our food, and ‘true colours’
told the story of how all our food i1s now 100% free of artifictal
colours and flavounngs

Our womenswear ads - which feature the famous faces of
Twiggy, Enn O’Connor, Lizzie Jagger, Noémie Lenoir, Laura
Bailey and Myleene Klass (and at Chnstmas, special guest
Antonio Banderas) - change with the seasons, featuring new
soundtracks and locations As with the food ads, we survey
shoppers each month, and we’re encouraged by the customer
feedback we've received Figures from Adwatch {(who analyse
the impact of company advertising), show more than half of
our food ads rated within the top five, and our womenswear
ads continue to lead at number one

Our marketing evolved dunng the year, with changes made

to refresh in-store décor so that it's consistent with the look
and feel of our new and modernised stores We communicated
our Plan A achievements to customers both in-store and
through the relaunched Plan A section of our website at
marksandspencer.com/planA In both cases we provided
details on how our customers can get involved in specific
instiatives such as *Wash at 30°, the Oxfam Clothes Exchange
and reusing camer bags

The effectiveness of our advertising and marketing campaigns
1s evidenced by our ability to hold brand momentum {(our brand
impact and performance) despite a slowdown on the high street

In the year to come, our challenge 1s to maintain this momentum
- with Plan A playing an important role here - and by ensunng
we retain brand consrstency as we expand intemationally

Steven Sharp Executive Director of Marketing

Steven joined M&ES 1n 2004 In addition to ks marketing role he 1S
also responsible for stare design and presentation as welt as running
the relattonstup with M3S Money
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Womenswear

and lingerie

In 2007/08 we strengthened our position
as the number one brand for womenswear
and hngene, despite a tough second half,
by doing what we do best From classic
and tailored looks, to fast fashion inspired
from the catwalk, we demonstrated that
‘Every Woman, Every Time’ 1s at the heart
of our womenswear and lkngene plan In
short, it's our commitment to help every
woman - regardless of her age, size and
budget - to find stylish clothes that are
beautifully made, at great value pnces

Our performance

Duning the year, value market share in
womenswear fell from 11 3% to 11 1% in
the face of tough competition on the high
street, strong downward pressure on prices,
and a slowdown In customer spending
However, volume market share remained
steady at 10 0% We achieved this by looking
closely at our pnce structure to ensure our
competitiveness at opening pnce points

MARIS AND SPENCER GROPALC 11

A few of our favourite things...

Cashmere

Selling at £49 n 2007/08 {down
from £69 1n 2006/07), we sold
more than one cashmere item a
minute dunng our busiest week
o London’s Marble Arch store

Lingerie

Wae offer 78 bra sizes, from 28AA
through to 44J, and are the only
high street retailer to offer machine
washable silk lingene

Leather

From biker jackets to our famous
Little Black Dress, we introduced
affordable leather in ine with the
latest catwalk trends

Marketplace trends

In 2007/08, the retail market
continued to grow, but ata
slower rate than previous
years Increasing levels of
debt and household bills have
had an impact on consumer
confidence, which i1s atits
lowest point since 1993

{GfK research} The growing
demand on disposable income
has also seen customers
pnoritise essential bills at

the expense of shopping

and leisure activities

Generally, customers
continue to look for more
choice and convenience

As a result, the trend for
shopping online has
increased, partly due to
greater customer confidence
In payment secunty and
dehvery Retai parks and
out-of-town shopping centres
have also grown in populanty,

offenng greater breadth

of choice In products and
shopping formats that fit
around customers’ diffenng
needs and busy lifestyles

Looking specifically at the
clothing market, sales have
been the hardest hit by the
recent decline In customer
confidence - slowing through
the last quanter of 2007/08
and now in decline on the
year (TNS market research)
In a change to last year,
customers have started to
spend more on indwidual
tems of clothing, vesting
In a few key pieces that
offer versatility and can

be dressed-up or down

As a result, value growth

1s masginally ahead of
volumes The exception to
this 1s 1n womenswear where
customers continued to buy

‘more for less’ dnven by a
desire for fast fashion and
multiple looks

Despite a slowdown in the
housing market, there was
generally strong growth in
homeware sales as customers
updated their homes, rather
than move house Specifically,
electronic goods continued
to sell well across the
industry, as pnce deflation

of the latest ‘must-haves'
made them mare accessible
to more people

The food market heki up
pnmanly through pnce
inflatton arxd customers
buying more prermium
products Customers have
become savvy in shopping
across different outlets to
make the most of their food
budget - carefully choosing

‘what they buy where’ from
the basics, to treats

The growing trend for fresh
ingredients has continued,
with customers looking for
key ingredients to cook from
scratch, or quality products
that aliow them to assemble
a fresh meal The increasing
profile of food sourcing and
animal welfare 1ssues, has
also encouraged them to
trade-up to products that
are free range and organic

In the year ahead, the trading
environment will be tough
Customers will feel ongoing
pressure on their personal
finances In these challenging
conditions, they are expected
to turn to trusted, well-
established brands that
provide reassurance they are
spending their money wisely
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In kngene, the continual ntroduction of
innovative products in an extended range
of szes as well as better segmentation of
our brands, helped us stay at number one
with 24 8% value market share and 17 9%
volume market share

An easier way to shop

In 2007/08, as part of our ‘Every Woman,
Every Time’ commitment, we reviewed the
segmentation of our sub-brands, so that we
can help our customers quickly and easily
find what they're looking for Afthough this
will continue In 2008/09, improvements can
already be seen within Autograph (see below)
and lingene {see page 13)

Competing on value

and quality

Dunng the last year, we responded to market
demand by becoming even more competitive
at our opening prce points While this
increased both our sales volume and market
share volume, we recognise the opportunity
to dnve our ‘better’ and ‘best’ ranges — with

particular emphasis on building on the
success of Autograph

We offer knitwear at pnces from €9 to £49
and bras from £5 to £20, and will continue to
do so However we want our customers to
recognise our reputation for offenng incredible
qualty and excellent cuts across all of our
pnce points

Brand strength in Autograph

No imits

We don'taspiretobe a
brand where fast fashion

1s all that matters, but we

do want to cater for women
of all ages Limited Collection
helps us do that - answenng
our younger customers’
demands for affordable

looks from the catwalk

It's growing faster than any
other part of our womenswear
business, with market share
up amongst women under-35
That's because our customers
now know that if they hke
something at M&S they
should buy it now

66 Autograph stands for the best of modern and sophisticated M&S.
It grew strongly in 2007/08 by offering elegant and timely pieces,
in luxury fabrics and cuts, which are
flexible for all ifestyles.99

In recent months, we've saen some of our customers
become more interested in buying products of enduring
style and qualty, than in finding the lowest possible prices
In response to this trend, we have improved our quality
throughout our pnce architecture, which means our value
credentials are stronger than ever For example in Autograph,
our customers are willing to spend more on our luxury
fabnes such as silks and cashmere By dnving more
product choice in these fabnces, we continue to grow

our Autograph business

Over the last year, we have expanded and strengthened
the Autograph brand, introducing Autograph Exclusive,
which offers a range of hmited edition pieces such as
coats and eveningwear, and Autograph Weekend, a new
casual look with an Amencan East Coast flavour Both
play an important role in our segmentation strategy and

have added incremental sales to the brand

Kate Bostock Executive Director of Clothing

Kate joned M&S as Director of Womenswear in 2004, and was apponted
to the Board as Executive Director of Clothing i March 2008
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Clearer choices in ingerie

Selling 50 mullion knickers a year {that's nearty two pairs of knickers every second),
and 25 million bras - it's estimated that one in three women wear M&S lingene

To meet the underwear needs and tastes of every woman, we have in the past
introduced a wide range of different brands

As part of our segmentation work, we reviewed our lingente brands, matching
them to our different customer profiles, before fine-tuning our offer ~ cutting out
duplication and filling 1n any gaps We now offer five brands - Adored, Autograph,
Body Solutions, Limuted Collection and per una

The move to fewer brands in ingene has given women of all ages, sizes and
budgets, a clearer choice It's also helped us to focus on good basics at our
opening pnce points, as well as great value across the entire offer

Faster, fresher fashions

The journey from catwalk to high street is
faster than ever, with customers expecting
something new and different each time they
come Into store Satisfying this ncreasing
demand poses a major challenge for any retaller

In response, we've adopted a phased approach
to introducing new stock, which means that
25% of our womenswear will be new every
five t0 six weeks Within that, we have brands
that release new products nto stores on

a three-week cycle To make this quicker
turnaround possible, we are now buying
collections in two of our maor brands (Lmrted
Collection and Autograph Weekend), from our
supplers in Turkey, just eight weeks ahead

Looking ahead

In 2007/08 we ntroduced great value at our
opening prce points in both womenswear
and lingene and in doing so made good
progress in attracting customers in the
under-35 age range

2008/09 will be a tough year It will be more
important than ever to continually mprove
our ranges across all our price points, and to
ensure we're responding to trends by quickly
getting new products into store We're now
working closely with our suppliers to achieve
even greater speed and flexibility, ensunng we
continue to keep pace with customer demand

In store it 1s still mportant to ensure that the
distinctive offenng of each of our sub-brands
makes the shopping expernence an easy one
for our customers in the year ahead, we will
push our brands even harder, for instance,
by expanding Autograph gifts and introducing
Autograph essenhals, and by further reducing
duplication and filing the gaps i our ranges
Finally, we'll also be finding new and
nnovatve ways to present womenswear
online (see page 26)

per una

It was another strong year for per una The brand enjoyed tts seventh
successive year of growth with sales of £429m in womenswear and lingerie
Growth came from a number of key product areas, including cardigans,
dresses, jeans, macs and coats Our capital expenditure programme
positively impacted on per una sales, with the store modermisation and
expansion programme ncreasing per una footage by 15% for the year
Onhne sales grew by 153%, and International sales by 40% for the year

Per una’s pont of difference in
today's retail chmate, is in giving
styles the per una ‘twist’ From the
lining, to the buttons, to the tnms -
the per una twist (s the detail that
makes its customers feel spectal
This was seen n the reintroduction
of suiting, where the emphasis was
on special details and quality fabnes
that are part of per una’s distinct
style Following the success of
suiting, per una will introduce
Speziale Talloring later in 2008

Another key moment in 2007/08
was the launch of a 25-piece
capsule collection called GD25,
inspired by George Davies’ 25-year
career as a fashion innovator

Left George Davis,
Chairman of per una

Cottoning on to Fairtrade

We sell about 4 8 million Fairtrade cotton
garmments annually {that's about 82,000 a week)

As the first major retailer to introduce a
Fairtrade cotton clothing range, which includes
the popular £5 Fartrade t-shirt, we now work
with some 5,000 Fairtrada cotton farmers so
they not only get a fair pnice for their cotton,
but a Fawtrade premium that they can use to
improve thewr working and living conditions
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Menswear

Menswear performed well in 2007/08,
despite the difficult second hailf We grew
and protected volume market share from
11 1% last year to 13 1%, and value market
share from 10 3% to 10 5%, by competing
hard on pnce, quality and mnovation

Over the course of the year, we began

to see a change of mood in the market
As we've seen In womenswear, some
customers became less concerned about
finding the lowes! possible prices but
more interested in the value represented
by clothes of endunng style and guality

A range of prices

Our strategy was to compete by having

a wider pnce span - ensuring customers
always have a broad chokce of pnce points

Tallonng i1s a good example We now offer
suits in a wide range of styles, fabnc and fit
- from a great value ‘first sut’” at £49 50 to
handmade suits at £799 that nval vaneties
on Savile Row

Blue Harbour

Our Blue Harbour brand
was reinvigorated in 2007/08
We've taken it back to its
East Coast Amencan roots,
and in doing so, have begun
to attract a younger 35 to 44
year-old customer

Making quality count

As 2008/09 gets underway, we've observed

a shift In pnonties from some customers
Lasting qualtty of the kind that M&S is
famous for, 1S appealing more to our
customers as they begin to trade up,

for example from a £15 inen/cotton shurt,
to a £29 50 100% ultimate inen option
We've been doing all we can to respond
to this trend, by searching for the highest
quality matenals, such as finer gauge
menno wool and siks spun i ltaly

Our menswear brands
In menswear, as In Womenswear, our

sub-brands are important in helping customers

quickly find products that match therr tastes
and needs All of our three key menswear
brands — Autograph, Blue Harbour and
Collezione - made good progress over

the last year (see below)

Autograph

Autograph has established its credentials
as offening sharper styles and contemporary
design, which helped it to achieve significant
growth in 2007/08 Footwear, knitwear and
tallonng are particular strengths, from
designers such as the Jeffery-West team

for shoes and Timothy Everest for suits

As Autograph continues to grow, we’ll

have even more opportunity to bnng in
guest designers and faces, Iike we did

with Take That, who featured 1n autumn’s
Autograph campaign

Collezione

Smart new Ideas

More than a quarter

of our menswear sales
come from products

with ground-breaking
performance benefits
From uitimate non-fron
shirts, and the high street’s
first machine washable
formal wool trousers, to
water repelient Stormwear™
Jeans (see above) - the
M&S technical teams are
continuously lcoking for
the latest developments

In textiles

New in 2007/08 were
‘climate control’ underwear,
featunng temperature-
regulating technology
developed by NASA, and
coin catcher pockets in

all of our chinos

Inspired by Itakan style, our luxury
Collezione brand continued to flounsh
in 2007/08 We widened the chotce of
‘better’ and ‘best’ options - introducing
new shoes at £75, as well as wool and
cashmere mix trousers at £49 50
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Kidswear

In 2007/08 we made positive progress
towards our long-term goal of winning
back market share in children's clothing

Achieving greater consistency across our
sub-brands, pncing structure and supply
base has helped us increase our volume
market share from 5 0% to end the year at
5 2% and our value market share from 4 5%
to 4 8% This s underpinned by our growing
share of the newborn and toddler market,
and our continued position as the number
one provider of schoolwear for UK families
Strong online sales, up 54% on last year,
have also made an important contribution

In the year ahead, our challenge 15 to change
perceptions, so that M&S kidswear is the first

choice for style, as well as quality and pnce Everyday

Competing on price casualwear
As In womenswear and menswear, we

believe there 1s Increasing demand for wardrobe basics,
greater choice within our ‘better’ and ‘best’ such as jeans, t-shirts,
categones, whilst mantaining a strong sweats, and weekend-
opening price point stance In response, wear

we're segmenting our kidswear offer into

three key areas everyday casualwear,

Autograph and Limrted {see across)

Featunng all the junior

Our determination to compete on pnce and
qualty s clearly demanstrated by our plans
to offer an entire school outfit - polo shrt,
jumper and trousers or skirt ~ for just £6 50
We'll also be carrying this over to online,
where customers can buy complete outfits
in just one click

Superheroes, super
opportunities

From Thomas the Tank Engine and Iron Man,
to High School Musical, our character-wear
performed strongly for us in 2007/08 In

fact, we sell the wictest range of character
clothing and merchandise on the high street
- featunng more than 40 different characters

In the year ahead, we'll be focusing
on our best sellers, to ensure they are

represented across the entire department Limited

- from babywear to socks to pyjamas Our most fashionable
With the support of the marketing team, range, for all age groups
our kidswear section will be themed to from newbom to 14,
coincde with the launch of new mowies featuning a bold use of

colour and a fast response

or programmes, when populanty wall be 1o the latest trends

at its hughest

MARKS AND SPENCER GROPALC 15

Top of the class
for innovation

At M&S, qualty and
innovation go hand-in-hand
We beheve it's mportant to
offer our customers things
they simply can't get from a
supermarket For example

All of our schoo! blazers are
now made from recycled
polyester - consistent with
our Plan A credentials
We've introduced 1Pod
blazers and coats, a must-
have for young music-lovers

Parents can text us their
child's details and we'll send
personalised name-tags
ready to use

Autograph

Oftenng something a bit more
special, In more luxunous fabrics,
with key elements including party
dresses and suits, high quality
knitwear and daywear separates
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Home

We achieved growth in every area of home
~ our best performing business unit in

the face of growing pneing pressures, we
continued to raise our qualty standards,
whilst significantly widening choice and
lowenng pnces

Sales for the year were up by 7 9%

In additon, in August 2007, we launched
our first standaione home store in Lisburn,
Northern Ireland, which performed ahead
of expectations We'll be opening two more
in 2008/09

Down with pnces,

up with quahty

We've successfully met the challenge of
pnce deflation, mantaining our home prices
at 12% below the high street average Far
from compromising on quality, we regularly
upgrade our core ranges without increasing
our pnces For example, in 2007/08 we
upgraded our ‘good’ 100% cotton non-iron
range n bedding, to 100% Supima cotton
non-wron (our mid-pnced sheet), while
keeping the pnce the same

At the upper end of the pnce spectrum,

we have grown our Autograph branded
homeware range, offenng the very best of
M&S quality n everything from bedding and
bathrooms to furniture and home accessones

Stretching the brand,
extending choice

Dunng the year we successfully tnalled

an extended range of electncal goods in

20 stores and onfine, selling market-leading
brands such as Sony and Apple We'll be
extending this range to 50 stores in 2008/09
A range of white goods, including fndges,
cookers and washing machines, were
introduced in Lisburn and online n 2007/08
and we will continue to expand this offer to
new standalone home stores, as well as online

Almost a quarter of M&S customers shop
from our home range, and we want to attract
more To do this, we will continue to widen
choice within existing home areas, and move
Into new categones such as gardening tools
We will also be redeveloping our beauty
business, while continuing to grow our

onhne serace (see page 26 for more detals)

At home with Plan A

Sleep easy on our new bedding that combtnes
both organic and Fairtrade cotton

We're the only major retailer to ensure every
hight fithng we sell wifl accommaodate energy-
saving hght bulbs

Branching out wa offset CO, emissions
from our delivenes by planting 10,000 trees

every year

Jargon-busting
with M&S

Customers who don't know a
megabyte from a megapixel
can relax, we've rewntten the
technology manutacturers’
nstructions

When technology
instructions start to get too
technical, we transiate them
Inte everyday language, so
that they're not only more
user-fnendly, but help our
customers get the most

out of their product
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Food

M&S has always been committed to being
the first choice for fresh, high quahty and
convenient food that 1s ethically sourced
In achteving this, the emphasis in 2007/08
was firmly on provenance, healthy eating
and innovation, as we reported continued
growth for the year

In the year ahead, as wel! as reinforcing
these values, we want to stretch the brand
turther, so we offer our customers greater
choice and convenience

Performance

In 2007/08 we grew sales by 6 9% to
about £4 25bn, reflecting the contnbution
from new space, with the launch of 98
Simply Food stores (including 64 BP stores)
Strong performance in key product areas,
realgnment of pnces on key product lines,
whilst ngorously maintaining and improving
qualty, also played an important role

Value market share for the year improved
to 4 3%, despite increasing high street
compettion In the next few years, we
want to increase our market share to
just over 5% of the total UK food market

3 fast facts on M&S food...

'1 We submit hundreds of products each
year for independent taste testing
Products are rated on a scale of
1 to 10, with our average score
being 7 8 -~ higher than our nearest
competitor This year we've achieved
a few perfect 10s including our
raspberry and panacotta ternne
and asparagus and paconno fnttata

We plan to achieve this growth by opening
more Smply Food stores, expanding the
range of food we sell in all of our stores,
improving the value and quality of our hnes,
mantainng our lead on innovation and
quality, and enhancing our store expenence
and hospitality offers We continue to
respond to food trends, such as cooking
from scratch, Fartrade and organic, and
health awareness through the reduction

of saturated fats, salt, sugar, additives

and preservatives

A convenient offer

In the last year, we've responded to
customer {eedback by taking steps towards
becoming a more convenient food shop
Our first step was to begin opening more
stores In out-of-town and retail park
locations We've now also recently begun
to broaden our product offer so that our
customers can buy more of what they

want at M&S, whether cooking from scratch
(see page 18), buying something partly
pre-prepared, or picking up a ready meal

As part of our commitment to delivenng
convenience and service to our customers,
we will also tnal up to 350 lines of branded
food and household essental items in a
number of our stores i the North East of
England from summer 2008 New lines
include Marmite and Heinz tomato ketchup,
as waell as other branded ‘must haves’

We work with specialist producers,
nurtunng smaller quality
businesses at home and abroad ~
our artisan chocolates by Gerard
Coleman are just one example

3
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Percy Pig
superstar!

Onginally the star of our
best selling sweets, Percy
has become an iconic figure
featuning on everything from
money boxes to egg cups
We've now sold over 1 billion
Percy Pigs, with two pigs
eaten every second His fans
have also set up their very
own Facebook Appreciation
Society, registening more
than 25,000 members

The year In
numbers

Some 4,000 new and
mnproved products,
including the new Food to
Go sandwiches and Gourmet
to Go deli salads, more

than 100 newly trained wine
specialists, and over 300
awards for our cheese, Just
a few of the numbers behind
our growing food business

According to independent research
by Allegra, our Fairtrade coffee
served in-store 1s the industry’s best
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Sustainable sourcing

66 Sustainable sourcing 1s at the heart of our fish business, so
that we not only protect our waters, but the communities that

66

depend on them. 99

In the UK we love cod, but we're loving it to the point of
extinction That's why we're taking action to protect it and other
endangered species Bntish waters prowide a range of wonderful
seafood to enjoy, and we've been working in partnership with the
fishing industry to bnng more options from the sea to the plate

In addition to our work in Scotiand to provide sustainable farmed
Lochmuir™ salmon, we're the largest retailer of Scottish haddock,
and we've also been working with the Cornish fishing industry
For instance, an exercise in rebranding has transformed the once
unpopular pilichards fished in the shallow waters of Penzance

and Mevagissey, into the summertime favourite - Cornish
sardines The product was always great — it just needed a new
image (n doing this we've helped create a viable industry using

a sustainable and under-utilised catch

At the same time, we've been encouraging the Cormish sardine,
and other small-scale fishenes, to achieve Manne Stewardship
Council (MSC) certification We've also asked our suppliers to
create more products using these species, such as Cormish
pollack - an alternative to cod and haddock

Other projects include the National Lobster Hatchery and ‘Meet
the Fisherman’ days in {ocal stores such as Truro Lemon Quay,
where skippers cook sandines on the quayside and discuss
sustainable sourcing with our customers

Steven Esom Executive Director of Food
Steven joned M&S in June 2007 and was appointed to
the Board as Executive Director of Food i March 2008

Everyday value

Wh en It 'S As part of this move to be a more convenient
) place to shop, we have reviewed the pnces
IN season, of popuiar shopping basket items to ensure

it's British. 99

they are competitive These tems range from
cornflakes and frozen peas, to flavoured
whole roast chickens

However, we firmly believe that low pnces
should never be achieved through a
reduction of quality So altthough we're
responding to market demand on pricing,
we are dong so without any loss of M&S
qualty or standards

The return to cooking

Great food starts with great ingredients -
something our ready meals have long been
famous for Now with more of our customers
spending longer in the kitchen, we want to
make M&S the one-stop-shop for all of ther
cooking needs

Our new ingredients range gives customers
a choice of more than 300 new ingredients -
from fresh herbs and spices hike our lazy
garlic and cinnamon, to bread and cake
mixes ~ that make it easier to start cooking
from scratch And it's easier stil with the help
of our M&S recipe cards

The best of British

From that comfort food favounte, our
outdoor bred Lincolnshire Pork Sausages,
to our hand-made Somerset cheddar, we
go to great lengths to source the very best
speciality foods nght on our doorstep When
it's In season, tt's Bntish

M&S 1s the only major retaier to stock 100%
home grown asparagus in season We've
been working with Bnhsh growers to extend
the season, so it lasts from Apnl to July -
amost double the length t was five years ago
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This not only gives our customers more
opportunity to enjoy asparagus, but also
enables them to support farmers like John
Chinn — winner of the *2005 Grower of the
Year' award for innovation

Additionally, all of our fresh beef comes
from the UK, much of it from Scotland,

and we've been working closely with Welsh
farmers to extend the lamb season by a

full two menths In 2008/09 we'lf introduce
home-reared products to local stores, such
as home-reared Oakham chicken in Scotland

With no legally defined industry standard

for free range pork, we decided to review

all of the many standards and specifications,
s0 that we could mntroduce our own ‘leading
standard’ As a result we now offer n a
number of stores truly free range pork,
which 18 the first step towards meeting of
our Plan A commitment to convert all of

our outdoor bred fresh pork to free range

All of our food is free...
from artificial colours, flavounngs,
sweeteners and hydrogenated fats,
as part of our commitment to help
our customers eat well

As of 1 Apnl 2008 we became the first
retaller to remove all artificial colours and
flavounngs from our entire food and soft
dnnks range It has taken three years to
remove artficial colours and flavounngs
from over 800 products, with some more
difficult than others For instance, finding
a natural colour from fruit and vegetable
extracts to replace the wbrant pink filing
of Turlash Delght

We've also made excellent progress in salt
reduction, having reached our 2010 targets
in 11 out of 15 categones, ncluding ready
meals and sandwiches

The M&S food expenence
Not everyone who eats in one of our

stores 1s an M&S food customer That's

why by improving the breadth of our in-store
hospitality options, and achieving a balance
between healthy eating and indulgence,
we're able to Introduce new customers

to our food In fact, we're one of the UK’s
fastest growing hospitality providers, with
over 12% like-for-like growth in the last year

As part of our store modernisation
programme, in 2007/08 we increased our
in-store hospitality offer to create a repertore
of unique breadth and quality We now offer
five in-store hospitality options, ncluding
239 cafés, 5 restaurants, 7 delis, 34 Hot
Food to Go counters and 2 M&S Kitchens

Within these new formats we've stretched
the brand even further, for example offenng
kids meals In our restaurant, as well as
steaks cooked to our customers’ preference
Our del bars also offer the option of a glass
of champagne and a greater volume of
fresh {and raw) ingredients, such as freshly
prepared salads

Internationally, we look forward to opening
an M&S Café in our new Shanghai store
(see page 29)

Looking ahead

In 2008/09 we will continue to grow our
food business in line with consumer trends
for cooking from scratch and healthy eating,
and our programme to open more space

Provenance and ethical sourcing remain
high on our agenda, and we expect the Best
of Bntish range and our expanding Eat Well
rangs to help us make further progress In
attracting a younger customer Our Simply
Food business 1s important here, and will
work alongside our hospitalty business in
helping broaden our customer base

Our move to become a more convenient
food shop 1s of ncreasing relevance, as
we expand our ingredients and introduce
branded food and household items
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Simply Food

We've expanded the
presence of our Simply Food
business (see page 24) so
that our customers can now
pick up a pint of milk, or a
ready meal from 299 stores
located across the country,
including arports, train
stations, and service station
forecourts This year we
plan to open up to another
70 stores

Kids count too

It's not just food for grown-
ups where health matters -
we don't beheve in ‘dumbing
down' our kids’ foed erther
That's why we relaunched
our entire range of children’s
products dunng 2007/08

so we could ensure avery
product - even treats such
as our Easter eggs (see
above) and birthday cakes

- 18 completely free of
artificial additives
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People

As we grow our business and invest

for the future, it's Important we keep
strengthening our team at every level, from
the shop-floor through to management

To attract and retain the best talent in

the industry, we have to demonstrate

that M&S 1s a good employer, committed
to making all our people feel valued and
providing them with career opportunihes
and quality tratning The following sechon
reports on how we delivered against these
objectives in 2007/08

Training and development
Good traning and a clearly defined career
path are essential to our staff That’s why
we have over 7,500 people in stores who
coach their colleagues so therr skills are
kept up-to-date In our stores, most training
takes place on-the-job, since tearning Is
more effective in real-life situations All new
joners complete a thorough induction and
up to 26 weeks ongoing traning - the
longest on the high street

We alfso run a number of specialist training
inbiatives for people moving into senior
management roles Adddionally, more than

Marks & Start:
breaking
down barners

Many people face bamers
getting into employment
For groups such as disabled
or homeless people, the
difficulties are obvious,

but we're also concemed
with helping parents get
back into work and the
young-unemployed to get
ajob Over the last year,
wo offered placements to
about 650 people through
the Marks & Start scheme
Recruits were teamed with
an M&S ‘buddy’ to help
build thetr confidence -
with approximately 40%
finding employment at the
end of the work placement

4,000 peopls completed our Buying
Academy and Food Academy courses,
and we're now tnaling similar academies
for womenswear and merchandising

Valued and proud to

work for M&S

Qur staff turnover rate 1s among the lowest In
the industry — 27% for customer assistants,
and 12% for management Moreover, some
40% of our people in the UK have been

with us for at least five years, with about

680 celebrating 25 or 40 years service dunng
2007/08 For us, this is one of the clearest
signs that we're succeeding in making our
people feel valued and proud to work for M&S

In addition to our commitment to providing
quality training and rewarding our people
well, we have a number of specific mitiatives
designed to make them feel well cared for
For instance, we provide free breast cancer
screening to M&S employees and pensioners
- last year we screened more than 13,000
people The service s available from the
age of 40 (10 years earlier than the NHS),
and can play a potentially life-saving role

by detecting cancer early

Rewarding our people

e ae mvmse mr w e e e e . m——— e & m e wv e v+ eeeees

Employees shared a gain of £37m from the Sharesave
Scheme that matured in 2007

Listening to
our people

More than 3,500 employee
representatives have been
elected to sit on Business
Involvement Groups (BIGs),
representing staff views on
matters relating to work and
employment They regularly
discuss employment issues
directly with company
management at a local,
divisional and national level

We also engage with
employees through our
annual YourSay survey,
gving them the chance to
tell us what they think about
a range of 1ssues — ncluding
Job satisfaction and
management performance

Employees participated in our Sharesave Schemes
In 2007/08, saving between £5 and £250 a month

messe oo o wv wve ve mser  Neres tese s 4 mam =

Great Service Awards handed out to staff who did
a particularly good job taking care of our customers
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Not just any graduate career...

66 If you work hard at M&S, and take responsibility, you will
be rewarded, as there are just so many opportunities to
take your career to the next level. 99

More and more graduates are discovenng that the
M&S graduate recruitment scheme is not only a fast
track to an interesting and vaned career, but in some
cases. also a direct route nto management

SI01RIIPUI
aoueuLousd Agy

Our graduate recruits benefit from an intensive traiming
course, and are gwven the opportunity to build their
skills in a challenging but supportive environment They
are also assigned real respansibilities from the outset,
in order to help them make rapid progress within the
business For example, Katie was running one of our
stores within four years Graduates joining M&S n
other roles ~ food technology, des:gn, HR, buying or
IT —= can make simiarly fast progress in their careers

MBI ssausng

Each year we employ between 150 and 200 graduates
and business placement programme undergraduates
In 2007/08 we received a record 8,500 applications in
Just over two months

-
3
All of which helps to explain why we wan four major 8
graduate recruitment awards last year, including The ﬁ
Times' ‘Graduate Employer of Choice’ for retail in 2008 %
Katie Wyle, Stora Manager Brighton
Katie Wyle started at M3S as a parary ci
dunng Chnstmas 2003 The expenence encouraged her to jon
the M&S graduate programme and in just four years, she had
proven her talent, stepping into her first store manager position
g
&
g
g
Going the extra mile
Our people are passionate about what they
do They care deeply about M&S, and want
1o make a contnbution that goes beyond
just doing their job, to matkuing a difference
on issues that matter to them and their é‘l
local community §
Now i therr seventh year, our national o
Employee Volunteer Awards recognise Plan A Champions g
the outstanding achievements of the The environment and all things S
many hundreds of staff who fundrasse and groen, 1s a particular passion ®
volunteer for local chanties in ther own time amongst our employees, which is
why we've appointed 570 Plan A
A special mention must be made of Jean Champions i owr stores and ~
Turner and the Chester store team, who have offices, to keep their colleagues = %
won the group fundraising category three updated on Plan A, and to find § %
years running In 2007 they did whatever it innovative new ideas to implement § e
took ~ seling cakes, running the ‘Great North ~ "™-Store You can read more from R

our Leeds Plan A Champion Kate

Run' and even managing car boot sales — Edwards on page 30

so they could raise more than £30,000 for
a number of chanties including therr local
children’s hospice, Hope House
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Service, IT
and logistics

Good service continues to be a pnonty

at M&S In addition to training and
developing our in-store staff so that they
consistently perform well, we're also
investing behind the scenes to improve
our logistics and IT infrastructure This
investment will altow us to efficiently run
our supply chain and IT systems so that
stock 1s managed tightly and transactions
are processed effectively

Mystery shopping

Each of our stores 15 anonymously wisited
once a month — twace in the case of our
larger flagship stores - by a mystery shopper
who evaluates service quality In 2007/08 that
was the equivalent of some 6,240 wisits to
our stores We're pleased with the outcome,
as our teams achieved a new recond average
score - 86%

The mystery shopping programme was
developed in partnership with a customer
panel to help us Wentify where we need to
support our stores with additional training

As a result the questions and sconng system
accurately reflect our customers' pronties,
such as the standard of our fitting rooms

New Bradiord warehouse — computer generated image

Supporting our growth
Supporting our people behind the scenes,
our supply chan and [T systems play a
crucial part In ensuring our stores perform
efficiently, and provide maximum customer
satisfacton

For our supply chain, the challenge In
2007/08 was to handle significantly increased
volumes, while remaining cost-effective
Despite the growth of M&S Direct, increasing
sales volumes and more direct buying from
our suppliers, our supply chamn coped well
under these pressures, delvenng 13% more
stock to our stores, and responding to a2
63% nise in volume from M&S Direct

A more efficient future

The maponty of our supply chan’s
physical nfrastructure ~ the warehouses
and distnbution centres - has remained
unchanged since the 1970s The next
maor requirement 1s to develop a world
dass infrastructure that will support us
not just in the UK but around the word

Having formed a strategic partnership with
logistics property organisation ProLogis,
wg've been working together to bulld a new
warehouse n Bradford (see picture below)
This wilt play an imporiant role in increasing
the speed and efficiency of our supply chan
and further reducing costs

Teardrop trallers

We became the first
company in the world

to adopt a revolutionary
new traller (developed by
Don-Bur) whose teardrop
shape will reduce our
carbon footpnnt

With 141 tralers now

on the road, our teams
have achieved a 10%
improvement in fuel-
effictency and a 20%
reduction in CO, enussions
per garment moved At the
same time, the teardrop
trailers also deliver up to
10% more load than a
conventional trailer

6%

The average
score in our
mystery shopping
programme
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Sold

The t-shirts become part of
the 4 8 million Fairtrade cotton
gaments sold by M&S annually

In-store

Cotton fields
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Factones

We use around one third of the world's

Fartrade cotton Our Fartrade cotton
commitment diroctly affects the welfare
of over 100,000 small-scale farmers, and
helps improve the standard of bving in

local communities

The coiton s
spun into yam,
dyed and sewn
nto t-shurts to the
ighest athical
standards

From hand to hanger -

the ethical supply chain

Delivery

The t-shirts amve in our

stores, are offloaded, and

The t-shirts are prepped

are put on display on the so th
sales ey are ready for sale,
-floor end are loaded onto lorries
so they can be transported
to our stores

Givng goes
electronic at M&S

Dunng the year, we
mtroduced the electronic
M&S Gift Card Smaller

and more convenient for
our customers, as well as
being quicker and easier

to process Gift Cards have
been an important success,
with over 80% transition
from paper to plashc

From source to store

As we expand our business internatonally,
we're planning to take more control of our
logistics from source to store, allowing us
to monitor cur stock more efficiently and
Improve marging

We plan to develop a modern and streamlined
logistics network that consists of new overseas
warehouses, as well as offshore stockholding
and consolidation facihities

Remodelling our supply chain infrastructure
1S @ major investment that will help us stay
one step ahead of demand in our market for
the fresh and new Fast fashion, for example,
1s about to get faster stil

Getting our IT In

shape for growth

At the same time as renewing our physical
network, we have alsc made progress in IT
We now have an Integrated company-wide
IT plan, a three-year roadmap that sets out
how our systems will deliver on every aspect
of our business plan, both within the UK and
internationally This means for example, that
our [T strategy for China — where we are
only just establishing a foothold — 1s already
In place

Warehouses

The t-shirts amve in our
UK warshouses, and the
stores order what they need

The plan has helped us to develop faster
and more efficient [T systems throughout our
business For instance, we are introducing
new point of sale systems, including more
than 2,000 new tills and 258 new handheld
terminals in-store to make stockchecking
easter and more efficient This will help us
{further improve service In our stores We
extended the tnal of our food self-service
tills across the business, as well as a first
tnal in general merchandise

We also made wital behind the scenes
mprovements with the mtreducton of new
financial and back-office systems Both of
these changes are behind an overall ncrease
in operational efficiency, with 97% of our

tlls fully operational, up from 80% two

years praviously

At the same time as achieving these important
improvements, we also succeeded n reducing
like-for-like IT running costs by 13 5%
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Property
and store
environment

Over the last three years, we've
undertaken one of the biggest store
Investment programmes within the UK
retall sector We are focused on increasing
the number of stores we have, expanding
and modemising our existing footage, and
ensunng we offer our customers the nght
stores in the nght locations

In order to achieve this, iIn Novemnber 2007
we announced that we are expanding our
space by 15% to 20% m the next three

to four years We will also complete the
modermisation of our remaining store
porttolio in the next few years

0%

Store modernisation
complete

3 more green
success stones
to build on.

1 Woe recycled 75% of
al) construction waste
in 2007/08, and aim to
achieve 85% i 2008/09

2 How we design,
procure and buitd our
stores 13 now clearly lad
out in our Sustainable
Construction Mantal
produced i conjunction
with the Building Research
Establishment (BRE)

3 Like-for-like store energy
usage 1s down by 4%

A bigger and better M&S

Dunng 2007/08, we increased our total space through new openings and
extensions by 815.000 sq ft, or 4 8% We opened more than 100 new stores
in the UK, ranging from a large high strest store at 66,000 sq ft, to Simply Food
stores of around 7,000 sq ft ’

We've made gooed progress against the strategy we lad out in 2006, and In
the year ahead we plan to accelerate our expansion, Increasing our space by
a further 5 5% in 2008/09, by mowving ahead on five fronts

-1 Expanding and modermising our city centre stores - in 2007/08 this
included Edinburgh and Belfast and :n 2008/09 we wilt modernise our
Cardiff store

2 Opening bigger out-of-town and flagship stores of over 100,000 sq ft

and expanding our space where we already trade - we extended London
Colney and Lisbumn in 2007/08 and in 2008/09 we opened a new store in
Colliers Wood, with White City and Brookfands to open later in the year

3 Creating a better presence in retail parks - we opened seven stores In
2007/08 including Preston, Kinnaird Park and Silverlink and have several
more In the pipeline iIncluding Swindon Orbstal and Malvern

4 Examining our portfolio of high street stores ta ensure they are the nght
size and in the nght place - for example in 2007/08 we doubled the size
of the Eltham store in London and relecated i Derby and High Wycombe
In 2008/09 we will open 1n Luton and take two stores down to one in

Worcester
'5' "7 Bulding on the success of Smply Food (see below)
Simply Food

In the last seven years, our Simply Food business has grown in the

UK to 299 stores trading in a highly competitive market We opened

26 wholly-owned stores and 72 franchised stores (64 of which are
located on BP forecourts) dunng 2007/08, and based on their strong
performance, we believe there 1s potential for up to 70 new wholly-owned
and franchised Simply Food stores dunng 2008/09
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Store modernisation

We have always acknowledged that stores
were In need of refurbishment, particulary
those which have been in our portfolio for
many years This is mportant in not only
helping our stores run more efficiently, but in
ensunng they are bnght and contemporary,
with easy-to-shop food halls and, to complete
the expenence, a range of hospitality options

In 2007/08 we completed work on 86 stores,
{(excluding franctuse openings), relaunching
about 5 milion sq ft This means that 70%

of all our space 1s now in the new iImproved
format Inevitably the work caused some
disruption in stores, but trading generally

held up well, with the new format stores
out-performing non-moderused stores Our
target 1s to modernise the remaining 30% n the
next few years, with 10% planned in 2008/09
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An award-winning

Town Centre Retailer
of the Year Award and
Green Award 2007 - at
the Retail and Leisure
Property Awards
organised by Property
Week

Department Store intenor
of the Year Award 2007
- for M&S Bluewater,
agamst 550 other
contenders, at the

10th Annual Retail
Intenor awards

Convenience Chain of
the Year for Simply Food
- Checkout Magazine

A greener way to shop

In September 2007, we opened the first of our new
‘eco stores' Located in Bounemouth, we deliberately
decided to modernise one of our older stores, to find
out how eco-fnendly we could make it

Rising to the challenge, we incorporated a wide range
of eco-features - from a green roof to capture arbome
pollutants and escalators runtung at reduced voltage,
to more efficient heating, ighting and refngeration
systems In this way, we hope 1o actueve energy
savings of up to 55%

Following Bournemouth, we opened a further two
green stores at Silverburn in Pollok (pictured below)
and a new Simply Food in Galashiels

As we continue to introduce more ‘eco stores', we'll
be testing a number of cutting edge techmiques, such
as using hempcrete - which uses hemp ptant fibres
as the aggregate ~ instead of concrete We'lt continue
1o tnal many further nnovations to ensure that as our
property portfolio grows larger it also grows greener
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M&S Direct

A new website and an extended range
of products are just two of the reasons
behind M&S Direct’s strong growth

M&S Direct 1s an important part of our
commitment to becoming a mutti-channel
retatler In additton to prowiding our
e-commerce website, it also includes our
home catalogue, flower and wine delivery,
Chnstmas hamper delwvery, in-store food
ordenng service and Lunch to Go, which
delivers lunchtme platters

Spoilt for choice

Sales were up £60m in 2007/08 to £220m,
with M&S Direct growing faster than the
market, and putting us on course to achieve
our target of £500m in sales through M&S
Direct by the end of 2010/11

Vistts to the website were also up by
nearly 60%

A new snte, a new expenence
Retaunched at the end of March 2007, our
website was designed and developed in
partnership with world leaders In e-commerce,
Amazon Qur customers tell us they find the
new site much easier to use, a fact reflected
in an independent onltne shopper survey

by Forsee ranking the 'Top 30’ UK online
retalers We came sixth overall and were the
best performing high street retailer, ahead of
competitors like John Lews, Tesco and Next

3%

Sales increase

Each year we move closer towards becoming a true multi-channel retailer, by offering our customers
more ways 1o shop For instance, a customer might see a sofa they like in our home catalogue, and
decide to try it out in-store They then have the choice of visiting our website, where they can see
every sofa, In every fabne, size or colour combination — as many as 10,000 vanations

Blooming
good idea

We continue to extend not
Just the breadth, but the
quality of our online offer
For instance, we're now
bnnging the luxunous quality
and style of the Autograph
brand tc a bouquet, with the
launch of Autograph Flowers
in-store and online Just

like our Autograph fashion
and home collections, this
exclusive range of flowers
will change seasonally,
offenng extra-long stems

(60-80cm) and larger blooms

In stnking arrangements ~
from £35 for a dozen and
£45 tor two dozen

Each flower is individually
selected by M&S Flower
Specalist Clawre Broomhead,
so they are as competitive as
those you'd buy n a flonst

(19

The Autograph
brand is about
effortless style
and luxury and
the new range
of Autograph
Flowers reflects
this perfectly,
either as a

gift, or as

an amazing
centrepiece

in the home. 99

Claire Broomhead
M&S Flower Specialist
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But there's still plenty of room for improvement
In particular, we want to make the site more
Interactive We've already added features
such as a behind-the-scenes video interview
with bily Cole (the face of Umited Coflection)
Additonally, we publish beauty tips and kngene
agwvice from the Your M&S magazine editor
Sarah Gowland In 2008/09, we're planning

to add even more of these features, including
areas for customers to post reviews and
ratings of M&S products

More reasons to visit

Our webstte offers a number of exclusve
products, including a wider choce of electncals
than in-store, an increased selection in clothing
ranges such as per una, and our exclusive
onhne range of affordable and contemporary
furmture called Furniture to Go

Our new Made to Measure shirts service,
which launched in November 2007, allows
customers to design a tailor-made shirt from
Just £30 for delivery within 21 days Customers
simply choose therr fabric, collar, cuffs,
pocket, fit and monogramming, and type

in their height, collar size and weight, and
we'll tarlor-make a shirt specifically for them

A number of other popular features on our
website include our Greener Living shop,
improved wine cellar and Big and Tall range

Big and Tall

Extending our online cellar

From around just 30 hines Jast year, the
range of wines available on our website
has increased to around 550 Fifty of

these are exclusive to the web and can't be
found in-store We sell over 20 vaneties of
champagne with pnices from approximately
£100 to £240 per case Customer response
to our improved online offenng has been
so positive that we're planming to launch

a wine club in 2008/09

66 | usually have to look for specialists that
cater for big fellas, and then end up choosing
from a small range and paying a lot more.
When M&S approached me | was amazed
at the offer available, with excellent quality at
the same price as standard sized clothes. 99

Martin Johnson, England Rugby Team Manager

It would be hard to find space in our stores for our exclusive Big and Tall offer,
but it’s a perfect fit online As the name suggests, Big and Tall offers clothes to
fit 'big fellas’, hke England Rugby Team Manager Martin Johnson who 1s the
tace of the brand Only available online, the collection includas more than

450 items ranging from taifonng to knmtwear to casual shirts and trousers
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Greener living.
now easier online

In 2007/08 we intraduced
a Greener Living section

to our website so that we
could make it easier for our
customers to find products
that will help them to do
thesr bit for the planet
From compost bins and
Hippo Water Savers to
recycled fleeces and
Fairtrade t-shirts, a more
aco-fnendly lifestyle 15 just
a couple of chcks away
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International

In 2007/08 we annhounced plans to grow our
International business to between 15% and
20% of total Group revenues within the next
five years

We're pleased to report strong progress
towards this goal Not only have we
expanded our franchise operation, but
we have also entered into partnerships
in some of the world’s most dynamic
emerging economies

A growing contribution

In 2007/08 our International busmness
contnbuted over 7 9% of total Group
turnover At £712 9m, sales were up
16 8% on last year, and operating profit
was up 33% to £116 4m

During the year, we increased our overseas
stores by 38 bnnging the total to 278,

and increased our space by over 18% to
aimost 266,400 sq m In 2007/08 we entered
Lithuania, Serbia, Tawan and Ukraine, taking
our global reach to 39 temtores

A flexible business model
Our expansion to date has been pnmanly
through franchising which remains our
preferred model for smaller or particularly
challenging markets

Looking ahead though, we intend to invest
our own capital to increase retums to our
shareholders In some cases we will invest
alongside partners who will bning local
knowtedge and expertise In other markets
we may choose to go it alone

Expanding in India

e e e e e e e e e e e e e e o e e _.\

One of the most exciting examples of this
new plan can be seen In India, where 1n Apnl
2008 we announced our intention to open
up to 50 new stores in the next five years
with Reliance Retail

At the end of 2007/08 we alsc completed
two deals in Europe with existing franchise
partners The first in February 2008 was

with the Mannopoulos Group. the leading
pnvate company m Greece Mannopoulos has
been our franchise partner for 30 years and
cumrently operates 38 M&S stores in Greece
and the Balkan states, including Romania and
Bulgang, as well as Switzerland The € 50m
deal to acquire a 50% share of the busingss
will see an additional 50 new stores opened in
these markets over the next few years

The second deal was signed in March
2008 with another existing franchise partner
- COMS a s - to expand n Central and
Eastern Europe With a 51% stake In the
partnership, we will work to open around
30 new stores In the Czech Republic,
Slovakia, Latvia, Lithuania and Estonia

over the next few years

Investing in Ireland

In 2007/08 we cpened four
new stores in the Republic
of Ireland bringing the
portfolic up to 17 stores in
total The pipeline of future
developments is strong, and
we expect to add between
30% and 40% to our footage
in the next few years

168%

Sales Increase

INDIA

One of the world's fastest growing economies, India 18 expected 1o become the world’s ‘ e ——
fifth largest consumer market by 2025 (McKinsey) With an estimated 350 milhon \ Deal signed
middle-class consumer base by 2015, India presents an exciting opportunity for growth | Apl’ll with Reliance
Whilst we have traded in India for a number of years through a franchise agreement, 200 Retail

in view of the long term opportunity, we set out to find a new partner who could help

us grow In the market One organisation stood out from the crowd, and in Apnl 2008 5‘]% Stake 1n

we entered into a partnership with Rehiance Ratail, subject to the approval of the Indian partnership
Government’s Foreign Investment Promotion Board and certain other conditions \ —-———"m
Rehance has great strength in technology, logistics and property in Indta { 30-50 in the next
With a 51% stake in the venture, we will work with Reltance to open around 50 new, five years
stores in the next five years The new stores will sell a wider range of products than et

previousty, and at lower pnces, including a full range of clothing and homeware, and
a growing number of products sourced from local suppliers
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Global emerging

markets

17 stores - -

MIDDLE EAST

A taste of Britain

In 2007/08 we started to
freeze our ready meals

for internattonal sate and
have faunched a range of

70 lines in eight countnes
The new category has

been well receved, and

we are presently working

on extending the range

and the numbaers of stores
carnrying the kines The frozen
reacdy meals, which include
pizzas, rhubarb crumble and
traditional mannated cumes,
are prepared in the UK and
join the growing range of
1,200 ambient products
already on sale in a number
of overseas stores Our
ambient products include

a number of everyday
tems, and

traditional

Bntsh

favountes,

such as

shortbread

biscuits

55 stores

S rern CUROPE |

CENTRAL AND EASTERN EUROPE |
|

50 new stores across the
region In the next few years

\ - Th—
- /-
L '/ - \\
—
~
- \
- N

14 stores
INDIAN SUBCONTINENT

We expect to open a further
30 1o 50 stores i the next
five years

A global fashion brand

From Singapaore to Switzerland, we work
with our overseas partners to ensure brand
consistency Our International merchandisers
work closely with our UK-based buying
teams to ensure the products selected
reflect the key M&S looks for the season
Our advertising and branding has also proven
to be highly relevant overseas For instance,
we are replicating our holiday campaign
throughout Europe and the rest of the world
this summer

A foothold in China

Drawing on our expenence n Hong Kong -
where we have eight wholly-owned stores
and have been trading for 20 years -

in November 2007 we announced our
intention to enter the Chinese market

on a wholly-owned basis
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\ /6 stores

R

FAR EAST

Fust flagship store in Shanghai
to open later this year

Having secured a 4,836 sq m store in
Shanghal, we look forward to opening our
first store in China - a new flagship for M&S
n Asia We will adapt our ranges, introducing
smaller sizes into womenswear and 2-inch
shorter sleeve shits In menswear, as we do n
Hong Kong We'll also stock the Asia special
~ redcurmant puffs - in the food section

Looking ahead...

- While the economic outtook remains

uncertain, our International business moded
gives us an opportunity to build a broader
revenue base and dnive profitable growth in
some of the world's most exciting emerging
markets We have a strong pipeline of
International openings planned for 2008/09,
demonstrating the important role that
international will play in postioning M&S

for future growth
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Plan A

Plan A1s our five-year ‘eco plan’ to
address some of the key social and
environmental challenges facing M&S
We pledged to meet 100 separate Plan A
commitments within five years, and so
far we have made progress on 94 of the
100 commitments

By 2012 M&S will

* become carbon neutral with minimal
offsetting,

*» send no waste to landfill from our operations,

» extend sustainable sourcing,

* set new standards in ethical trading, and

¢ help customers and employees Iive a
heafthier Ifestyle

We're committed to Plan A, because it’s
the nght thing to do There’s also a powerful
! business case Plan A not only gives us
distinction in a crowded marketplace, but
challenges us to increase efficiencies, and

Banish the bag

continually seek new and better ways of
doing business, so that we can achieve the
ambitious targets we have set ourselves

Climate change

Desprte opening mare than 100 new stores
n 2007/08, we cut our total CO, emissions
from our stores, offices and warehouses
by nearly 50,000 tonnes We achieved this
9% decrease on last year by switching an

additional 21% of our electncity to renewable

sources We also improved our energy
efficiency by 4%, and started sourcing
electncity from farm-based wind turbines
and an anaerobic digestion faciity which
generates power from food waste

Because around 60% of our carbon
footprint 1s generated by our supplers,

and a further 30% by our customers,

we've been looking closely at how we can
encourage our suppliers to reduce therr CO,
emisstons For example, we encouraged the
development of low carbon supplier factones
{see story to nght)

Green from top
to bottom

We worked in collaboration
with two suppliers - MAS
Holdings and Brandix - to
taunch two eco clothing
factones, which will use
40% less energy and haif
as much water as typical
supplier factones From July,
customers ¢an buy lingene
made from these factones,
under our Autograph and
per una labels We hope to
open a similar plant later
this year in Wales

€6 The carrier bag inttiative has been a big hit with

our customers who want to do their bit 1o make
a difference We can't wait to start working with
Groundwork In Leeds so we can begin to see
.changes here In the local area. 99

One of cur highest profile projects in 2007/08 was
undoubtediy our decision to introduce a food camer
bag charge of 5p in all of our UK stores, with profits
funding local environmental projects run by our partner
Groundwork UK

truttal tnals in more than 50 M&S stores in Northern
treland and the South West, showed around a 70%
drop in plastic camer bag usage, and raised over
£80,000 to create and improve green spaces in local
neighbourhoods |f M&S customers continue

at this rate, we'll save over 250 million bags

from landfill every year

Kate Edwards, Plan A
Champion for Leeds store
Kate joined M&S as customer assistant
w 2003 at the Blackburn store before

' mowving to the Leeds store in 2004
As a Plan A Champion, on top of
her everyday job as store operations
manager its her role 1o motivate some
350 staff to “thunk green’ Shes pictured
with the M&S cotton shoppers

Wash at 30

As part of the Climate
Group's ‘Together’
campaign, we're
encouraging our customers
to save energy by washing
their laundry at 30°C By
mtroducing ‘Think Chimate -
Wash at 30’ labels in 70%
of our clothes and on our
washing powder, we've
seen the number of washes
now done at 30°C increase
by 23% to 31% since

Apnl 2007 That's a total
reduction of 25,000 tonnes
n CO, emissions
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Waste

Right across our business, we've been
finding new ways to ensure that by 2012
we send zero waste to landfill from our

own operations We've seen a 6% reduction
In the amount of waste sent to landfill, as

a resutt of improwving the recycling of our
construction waste (see page 24}, and
collecting 122 mithon clothing hangers to
reuse and recycle - over double the amount
collected last year

in January 2008, we launched the M&S

and Oxtam Clothes Exchange - calling on
customers to dig deep into their wardrobes
to help fight poverty Customers taking M&S
tems to an Oxfam store will help reduce the
1 million tonnes of clothing going to tandfill
each year, and n doing so will recenve a

£5 (€7) M&S discount voucher to spend

on purchases of £35 (€50) or more

One of the biggest challenges we face s to
reduce our packaging, but without making
our products susceptible to damage, or In
the case of food, reducing therr freshness In
2007708 we reduced the weight of packaging
around each Easter egg by nearly 20% At
the same trme, we've increased the amount of
our food packaging that i1s recyclable to 70%

Sustainable raw materials
Dunng the year we converted all our

tollet rolls, kitchen rolis and tissues to
ether Forestry Stewardship Council (FSC)
certfied or recycled paper We also used
FSC matenals for more than 50% of our
range of Chnstmas greeting cards {over

30 milton n total) as well as our publications
for customers, including the ‘Your M&S’
magazing In total 62% of current wood
matenals used n M&S products are FSC
certrfied, certified by another independent
organisation, or recycled (excluding fabrcs)

Fair partner

We use around one third of the world’s
Fairtrade cotton We are working with local
communities and organsations around the
world, such as the Fartrade Foundation,
to increase the avalability of this and other

Fartrade commadity crops such as sugar
and tea Additionally we are extending our
Farrtrade ranges of jams

The Fairtrade premium improves the standard
of imng in the local communities funding the
bulding of schools, healthcare clics and
transport inks

Health

One of our most significant achievements
for the year 1s our commitment that all food
produced after 1 Apnl 2008 s now entirely
free of artificial flavours and colounng
Ongnally, we planned to only do this with
our children’s food, but having completed
this work by September 2007, we decided
to extend it to all foods Page 19 detals our
greatly ncreased range of Eat Well healthier
options, as well as our excellent progress in
salt reduction

Plan A: next steps

We've achieved a great deal, and learned
even more dunng our first full year as a Plan A
business But we know that there’s a lot to do
if we are to achieve our five-year targets

Plan A 1sn't perfect, and we revisited

our ethical trading commitments to make
them stronger We will continue to review
our progress and where we need to, change
our commitments to meet emerging 1ssues

In 2008/09 we will develop better, more
robust systems for gathenng the data we
need to evaluate and mprove our Plan A
performance We'll also be working harder
than ever to develop partnerships that
communicate our messages or help us

to find Innovative solutions

For more detailed information, please wist our

Pian A website at marksandspencer com/planA
or download our 2007/08 How we do business
repart at marksandspencer.com/annualreport0O8

MARKS AND SPENCER GROWPPLG 31

Fancy a cuppa?

Already, 100% of the tea and
coffee we sell s Fairtrade,
and we're plaased to have
recently launched a new
range of single ongin
Fairtrade coffees from
Rwanda, as part of
Fairtrade Fortrught

Award-winning
WOrk

1 We were awarded the
Warld Environment

Center's (WEC) 24th
Annual Gold Medal for
International Carporate
Achievement tn
Sustainable
Development, for
Imking sustasnability
with our supply chain,
operations and
customers

2 We were named joint
teaders in the Manne
Conservation Society's
supermarket league
table on responstble
fish sourcing

3 We won the RSPCA
‘Good Bustness’ award
for ammal welfare n
fashion for the third
consecutiva year

4 We were named
Compassionate
Supermarket of the
Year for 2007 - not
Just because all of our
eggs are free range,
but because we only
sell UK reared veal
which meets high
animal welfare
standards
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Your Board

Lord Burns Chatrman a {Charman)
Appointed n October 2005 becomng Charman
in July 2006 Age 64 Lord Burns will retwe as
Chaman on 1 June 2008 He 18 Charman ot
Abbey Natonal pic and Glas Cymnu Ltd {Welsh
Water} and a non executve director of Banco
Santandsr SA and Pearson Group pic He 1sa
former non executve director of Legal & General pic
and The Bntish Land Company pic and a former
Chanman of the National Lottery Commission

He was Permanent Secretary to HM Treasury from
1991 to 1998 and Chief Economic Advisor from
1980 to 1991 He was apponted a Life Peer in 1998

Sir Stuart Rose Chief Executive 4
Appointed n May 2004 Age 59 Stuart will be
appointed Executive Chaiman on 1 June 2008

He 13 8 hon executive drector of Land Secuntes plc
and Charman of Business n the Communty Stuan
began hes career in retail at Marks & Spencern
1972 before gang on to the Burton Group n 1989
He left the Group foflowing the damerger i 1997
Stuart was Chisf Exscutive of Argos pic n 1998 and
later bacame Cwaf Executve of Booker pic Befors
resonung Marks & Spencer as Chiaf Executive in
2004 he was Chief Executive of Arcadia Group pic
{rom 2000 unti 2002 Stuart was knuighted n the
New Year Honours List this year for his services to
the retad industry and corporate social responsitity

Kate Bostock Executive Director, Clothing
Apponted in March 2008 Age 51 Kate joned
Marks & Spencer n October 2004 Previously Kate
was Product Director for Childrenswear at Next
before jomng Asda m 2001 as Product Director for
he George brand covenng all areas of clothing and
footwear She was responsibie for the launch of the
stand alone George concept and the taunch of the
George brand globaly

lan Dyson Group Finance and
Operations Director
Appomted in June 2005 Age 45 tan was appointed
Group Finance Diector in June 2005

Group Finance and Operations Director in March
2008 lan was formerty Finance Diractor of The
Rank Group pic Pnor to this he was Group
Financial Controller of Hiton Group pic He oned
Hilton from Le Mendien a division of Forte pic
where he had been Finance Director His eady
career was spent with Arthur Andersan, where he
qualfied as a Chartered Accountant n 1986 and
was promoted 10 a Pariner of the firm in 1994
lan was a non-executive director of Misys pic untd
September 2005

Steven Esom Executive Director, Food
Appointed n March 2008 Age 47 Stevenisa
nonv-axecutive director of The Carphone Warshouse
Group pic He jomed Marks 8 Spencer in Jung 2007
from Waitrose where he had been the Managing
Dwector Steven joned the John Lews Partnership
0 1996 as Drector of Buyng at Watrose He spent
tes garly career at J Sansbury’s in vanous buying
roles In 1993 Steven was appomted Buyng and
Merchandising Director for Texas Homecars, iater
becoming Vice-President - Globa Merchandising
&t Hiton international

Steven Sharp Executive Director, Markehing
Appointed n November 2005 Age 57 Steven
soined Marks & Spencer n May 2004 He started hes
caresr with Bejam i 1978 progressing to the Angyll
Group and became Markating Director of Asda n
1987 He joned the Board of Debenhams n 1989
He later became Marketing Dwrector of the Burton
Group, Booker pic and Arcadia Group pic Steven
1s a non-exacutve duector of Adnams plc Hesa
Felow of the Chartered Instiute of Marketing The
Marketing Socety and The Royal Society of Arts, as
well as a wisiing Professor of Glasgow Caledonian
Universsty Steven 1S a special adwsor to the Tate
Members Councd

On 10 March 2008 wa announced that with effect from 1 June 2008,

Lord Bums will stapd down as Chairman S Stuart Rose will ba appointad
Executrve Chazman and S Dawd Michets wall be appontec Deputy Charrman
whilst contmuing his rols as sanior mdependent director Sir Gawd Michels wall
bacome Charman of the Nomination Commuttee on 1 June 2008

Graham Oakley

Sir David Michels

Senior independent Director »em a
Appainted n March 2006 Age 61 Dawd will be
apponted Deputy Chammen and Chawman of the
Nomenabon Commuttee on 1 June 2008 He was
apponted semor independent director n September
2006 He 1s serwor independent dractor of easyJet
pic, and 1s also a non-executive director of Strategic
Hotels & Resorts and Jumenah Group Dubar He
1S resigrang as a semvor ndepencent diractor of The
Briish Land Company pic and was a non-executwe
director of RAB Cagtal pic until 18 Apnl 2008
Dawd spent his early carear employed by Grand
Metropolitan Ladbrokes and Stakis before rejoining
HitonvLadbrokes in 1999 as Chiet Executive
becorung Chief Executve of Hiton Group pic from
2000 to 2006 Dawd was kneghted in June 2006

Jeremy Damroch

Non-Executive Director # a @ (Charman)
Appointed in February 2006 Age 45 Jeremy was
appointed Charman of the Audit Comnttee in
September 2006 He was apponted the Chvef
Exscutve of Bntish Sky Broadcastng Pic m
December 2007 having been the Ctuef Financial
Officer since 2004 Jeremy was previously Group
Finance Dyrector and Retail Finance Drector at
Dwons Group pic He spent 12 years at Procter &
Gamble i a vanety of roles, becoming European
Finance Dwector for ther Healthcare dwsion He
quaified as a charterad accountant with Delontte
Haskins and Sefls

Martha Lane Fox

Non-Executive Director « em a
Appanted on 1 June 2007 Age 35 Martharsa
non executive director of Channel 4 Telewsion and
a Trustee of the chanty Repneve She 1s tounder of
a chain of private room karacke clubs Lucky Voroa
and of her own grant gving foundation, Antigone
Martha is also a director of mydeco com She
co-founded lastminute com in 1998 taking the
Company pubbc in March 2000, remaining on the
Board until the company was purchased by Sabre
Holdings 2005 Martha s also a patron of
CAMFED

Steven Holliday

Non-Executive Director s ema

Apponted n July 2004 Age 51 Steven was
appomnted Group CEQO of Natonat Gnd pic at

the end of 2008, having at different times been
responsible for the UK Blectnetty and Gas
busmesses He was formerly an executve director
of Bniish Bomeo Odand Gas Previously he spent
19 years with tha Exxon Group where he held
numMerous senior positons  His nternational
expenence ncludes a fowr-year spell n the US
Steven has also developed business opportunties n
countnes such as China Australia, Japan and Brazl

Louise Patten

Non-Executive Director « A m {Charman)
Appointed in February 2006 Age 54 Lowss was
appantad Chaarman of the Remunerabon Commttee
N January 2007 She 1s non-executive Charman

of Bnxton pic, a non-exscutve diector of Bradford
& Bingley pic and a senior adwiser to Bamn & Co
Loursa began her carser at Ciibank and remaned n
financial servces until 1933 when she joned Bam &
Co 2s a Partner She was formerty a non executive
director of Hitton Group pic, GUS pic Somerfield pic
and Harveys Furmishings pic

Group Secretary and Head of Corporate Governance

|
5
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Financial review
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Revenue Operating profit
UK Retad International Retall UK Retad International Retad
2008 £8,309 1m £7129m 2008 £972 9m £116 4m
2007 £7,977 5m £6106m 2007 £956 5m £87 5m
Total +4 2% +16 8% Total +17% +33 0%
Like-for-like -0 5% +6 6%
Revenues Despite the step up 1n space growth, retail staffing costs

Total revenues were up 5 1% dniven by new space in the
UK and strong performance in our International business

UK revenues were up 4 2% in total with like-for-hke decline of
05% The performance in the first half of the year was strong,
despite the unseasonable weather and significant disruption
from our modernisation programme However, in the second
half of the year the detenoratron in the economic environment and
consumer spending had an adverse impact on our performance

Dunng the year, we added 4 8% of space {on a weighted
average basss), 8 7% i food and 3 0% in general merchandise

International revenues were up 16 8% with good performances
in both owned and franchised stores, up 15 5% and 18 7%
respectively This was dnven by both strong fike-for-like
performance and 38 new store openings

Operating profit
Operating profit before property disposals and exceptional
items was £1,089 3m, up 4 3%

In the UK, operating profit before property disposals and
exceptional tems was up 1 7% at £972 9m The UK gross
margin was 0 4 percentage points down on the year at 43 0%,
mostly due to a greater proportion of food sales in the overall
mix General merchandise gross margin was level on the year
at 52 6%, with further improvement in pnmary margin being
offset by higher markdowns Food gross margin was 0 1
percentage point lower than last year at 33 9% due to higher
waste and the growth in franchised Simply Food stores which
generate a lower gross margin The net operating margin for
franchised stores 15 above that achieved by owned Simply
Food stores

UK operating costs were up 4 3% to £2,630 Om A breakdown
of UK operating costs 1s shown below

52 weeks enced

29 March 31 Mach
2008 2007 % increase’
£m £m  (decrease)
Retail staffing 8348 8195 +19
Retail occupancy 8414 7504 +121
DOistnbution 3838 3297 +164
Marketing and related 144 6 1375 +52
Support 408 9 3946 +35
Total before bonus 26132 24317 +75
Bonus 168 910 -815

Total sncluding bonus 26300 25227 +43

were well controlled, In response to the more aifficult trading
environment expenenced over the year Our mystery shop
scores, which measure the guafity of service in stores, continue
to be very strong The increase in retall occupancy costs reflects
both space growth and the increased depreciation related to
the modermisation programme {ncrease in distnbution costs
reflects growth in both general merchandise and food volumes,
as well as furniture order delivenes Grawth in marketing
expenditure reflects higher in-store marketing costs due to
new store openings and modernisations  Support costs, which
include non-store related overheads, were well controlted

We will be paying a bonus of £16 8m for 2007/08 (last year
£91 0m) The leve! of bonus payment reflects performance
against our onginal operating plan

The UK operating profit includes a contnbution of £28 3m
(last year £19 5m) from the Group's continuing economic
nterest in M&S Money

International operating profit before property disposals was
£116 4m, up 33 0%, reflecting the strong sales performance
of the business Owned store operating profits decreased
by 2 0% to £44 5m, largely due to the Republic of lreland
where operating results were affected by new store opening
costs, and start up losses relating to Tawan Franchise
operating profits grew by 70 8% to £71 8m reflecting strong
sales and margin performance

Profit on property disposals

Profit on property disposals was £27 Om {last year £1 9m)
This refates to proceeds from the sale of stores where we
have relocated, or plan to relocate at a later date

Exceptional items

The exceptional pension credit of £95 Om (last year £nil) has
arisen due 10 the changes made in the terms of the UK defined
benefit plan relating to how members’ future benefits bulld up
from 1 October 2007 To the extent that members have chosen
the option to Iimit their future pensionable salary increases

in ine with inflation, there i1s a past service credit to reflect the
impact of adjusting therr projected final pensicnable salanes

Net finance costs

Net interest payable was up 15 8% at £113 8m (last year
£98 3m) reflecting an increase in the average net debt jor
the year Consequently. net finance costs before exceptional
tems were up 4 3% after pension finance mcome of £58 9m
(last year £20 8m) and the unwinding of the discount on the
partnership liability to the pension scheme Despite widening
credit spreads wathin the debt capital markets and nsing
short-term LIBOR rates the Group's average cost of funding
remaned level on the year at 5 9%
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Financial review

continued

Taxation

The taxation charge reflects a pre-exceptional effective tax
rate of 27 0% for the full year (last year 29 4%) The decrease
reflects a restatement of UK deferred tax habihities resutting
from the reduction in Corporation tax rates on 1 Apnl 2008,
and a pnor year credit The 2008/09 tax rate 1s expected

to be 28 0%

Earnings per share

Adjusted earnings per share from continung operations, which
excludes the effect of property disposals and exceptional tems,
increased by 7 9% to 43 6p per share The weighted average
number of shares n issue dunng the penod was 1,671 3m
(last year 1,688 6m)

Dividends

The Board ts recommending a final dvdend of 14 2p per
share This will result in a total dividend of 22 5p, an increase
of 23 0% This reflects a base uplft of 15% on the prior year
dividend plus the growth in adjusted earnings per share In
2008/09 the Board will return to its existing policy of growing
dividends broadly in ine with adjusted earnings per share

Share buy back

In November 2007 we announced our intention to purchase
up to 10% of the Company's 1ssued share capital, using the
authonty given by sharehotders at the AGM in July 2007

As at 28 March 2008, we had bought back a total of c126m
shares for cancellation, for a total consideration of £555 9m
This represents 7 4% of the shares i ssue in July 2007 We
intend to complete the 10% buy back programme dunng the
summer of 2008

Capital expenditure

Investing in the business continues to be a key part of our
strategy Capital expenditure for the year was £1,054 5m
compared with £792 4m last year

t v Actual Actual
:‘-"roup capital expenditure e i [

750

479

I

Intemalonal Dg

Intemational

programme
New gtores
Supply chan

and lechnology

The increased spend on the modernisation programme reflects
a record 35% of our space being developed or modernised,
including of a number of significant projects such as Belfast,
Edinburgh, London Colney, Brashead and Cheshunt Capital
expenditure on new stores was up to £203 1m reflecting the
INcrease In new space coming on stream We stepped up

the investment in our supply chain and technology with the
roll-out of the POS system in stores and investment in further
distnbution capacity

Cash flow and net debt

The Group reported a net cash outflow of £917 5m (last

year inflow £231 1m} Cash inflow from continuing operations
decreased by £206 6m, reflecting a higher working caprat
outflow due to the ttming of pension payments, the 2006/07
bonus, ncreased mvestment in inventones and leasehold
prepayments n respect of new stores Cash outflow on
capital expendrture, net of disposals, was £927 4m (last year
£710 5m) reflecting ncreased mnvestment in our modernisation

programme, as well as more aggressive new space growth We -

generated £91 6m dunng the year from the disposal of properties

On 28 February 2008, the Group acquired Board control and
50% of the 1ssued share capital of the Mannopoulos Group,
located in Greece, Bulgana, Croatia, Romania, Sertya and
Switzerland for cash consideration of £38 1m, transaction
costs of £0 8m and net cash acquired of £2 Om On 20 March
2008, the Group acquired 51% of the 1ssued share capital of
COMS a s, located in the Czech Republic, Latwia, Lithuaria
and Slovakia for cash consideration of £10 6m, transaction
costs of £0 8m and net cash acquired of £1 9m

Pensions

At 29 March 2008 the IAS 19 net retirement benefit surplus
was £483 5m (last year defict £283 3m) The change Is due
to a £95m decrease in the habilities ansing from the change
in the UK defined benefit plan, as well as the increase in the
discount rate used to calculate the hability at the year end
In accordance with the accounting standard The year end
discount rate, which was 6 8% (last year 5 3%), reflects
corporate bond rates at the yearend and has led to a
significant reduction in the IAS 19 calcutation of the pension
liability for accounting purposes at 29 March 2008

The partnership fiability to the Marks & Spencer UK Pension
scheme of £723 2m (last year £496 9m) relates to the
amortising liability in respect of the obligations to the Marks

& Spencer UK Pension Scheme The increase in the hability

15 due to the decision by the Group to pre-fund £200m of ts
annual contnbutions to the pension scheme, by placing £400m
of additional properties into the partnership estabhished with
the Pension Scheme in 2007 The impact of the transaction will
be to ncrease the annual distnbution out of the partnership to
the pension scheme by £21 9m for the 14-year penod from
July 2009
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Business review

The Companies Act 1985 requires the Company to set out
this report, a farr review of the business of the Group dunng the
financal year snded 29 March 2008, including an analysis of
the posthion of the Group at the end of the financial year, and

a descnption of the pnncipal nsks and uncertanties facing the
Group {known as a ‘Business review')

The information that fulfils the Business review requirements
¢an be found in the following sections of this report All the
information detaled in these sections i1s incorporated by reference
nto this report and deemed to form part of this report

¢ Chairman’s foreword on page 4,
» Chief Executive's statement on pages 510 8,

* Group Finance and Operations Director's statement
on page S,

* Financial review on pages 33 and 34,
» Principal nsks and uncertainties on pages 44 and 45,
* Key performance indicators on pages 2 and 3, and

s Environmental, employee and social and community matters
‘on pages 30 and 31 and withun the How we do business report
avatable on our website at
marksandspencer com/annualreport08

Pages 35 to 38 inclusive (together with the sections of the
Annual report incorporated by reference) consist of a Group
Directors’ report that has been drawn up and presented in
accordance with, and in rebance upon applicable English
company law and the liabilities of the directors in connection
with that report shall be subject to the mitatons and
restrictions provided by such iaw

Principal activities

Marks and Spencer Group plc 1s the holding company of
the Marks & Spencer Group of companies (the ‘Group’)
We are one of the UK's leading retallers, with over 21 million
people visiting our stores each week We offer stylish, high
quality, great value clothing and home products, as well as
outstanding quality food, responsibly sourced from around
2,000 suppliers globally We employ over 75,000 people
in the UK and abroad, and have 622 UK stores, including
Simply Food franchised stores, as well as an expanding
international business

Interests in voting nghts
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Profit and dividends

The profit for the financial year, after taxation, non-equity
dvidends and minonty interests amounts to £821 7m (last year
£659 9m) The dwrectors have declared dmdends as follows

£m
Ordinary shares

Paid intenm dwidend of 8 3p per share 1401
{last year 6 3p per share)

Proposed final dvidend of 14 2p per share 2179
(last year 12p per share)

Total ordinary dividend, 22 5p per share 3580
(last year 18 3p per share)

The final ordinary dwvidend will be paid on 11 July 2008 to
shareholders whose names are on the Register of Members
at the close of business on 30 May 2008

Share capital and control

{1) Structure

The information In this section 1s given pursuant to section 992
of the Companies Act 2006 and ts correct as at 29 March 2008

The Company's authonsed share capital was £800,000,000
divided into 3,200,000,000 ordinary shares of 25p each

and there were 1,586,478,423 ordinary shares in issue

The ordinary shares are listed on the London Stock Exchange
and ¢an be held in certrficated or uncertificated form

The nghts and oblgations attaching to the Company’s
ordinary shares, n addition to those conferred on their holders
by law, are set out n the Company's Articles of Association,

a copy of which can either be viewed on our website
marksandspencer com/thecompany or obtained by writing
to the Company Secretary, or from Companies House in the
UK The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive the
Company's report and accounts, to attend and speak at
general meetings of the Company, to appoint proxies and to
exercise voting nghts

Changes to the Company’s Artictes must be approved by
special resolution of the Company New Articles are being
proposed at this year's Annual General Meeting (AGM) which
include a number of changes, some of which may impact on
the nghts, obligations, restnctions on transfer or voting nghts
attaching to those shares Explanatory notes relating to these
changes are included in the appendix to the Notice of Meeting
booklet which accompanies this report

Information provided to the Company pursuant to the Financial Services Authorrty's (FSA) Disclosure and Transparency Rules
(DTRs) 1s published on a Regulatory Information Service and on the Company’s website As at 6 May 2008, the Company had
been notfied under DTRS of the following significant holdings of voting nghts 1n its shares

% of share
Orctinary shares capital Nature of hokting
Brandes Investment Partners, L P (21 03 07) 111,595,173 657% Indirect Interest
Caprtal Research and Management Company (11 04 08) 86,833,000 547% Indirect Interest
Legat & General Group plc (26 03 08) 72,771,104 457% Direct Interest
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Group Directors’ report

continued

The Board Is responsible for the management of the business
of the Company and may exercise all the powers of the
Company subject to the provisions of relevant statutes and
the Company's Memorandum and Asticles of Assoctation
For example, the Articles contain specific provisions and
restnctions regarding the Company's power to bormow money,
provisions relating to the appointment of directors, subject to
subsequent shareholder approval, delegation of powers to a
director or secretary or committees of one or more persons,
and subject to certain exceptions, a director shall not vote
on or be counted in a quorum In relation to any resolution

of the Board i respect of any contract in which he/she has
an interest which he/she knows 1s matenal There are no
known arrangements under which financial nghts are held

by a person other than the holder of the shares Shares to
be acquired through the Company's share plans rank equally
with the shares In Issue and have no special nghts As far as
the Company is aware, there are no persons with significant
direct or indirect holdings of voting nghts n the Company
other than as set out In the paragraph entitled ‘Interests in
voting nights’ on page 35

Significant agreements - change of control

There are a number of agreements to which the Company
1s party that take effect, alter or terminate upon a change
of control of the Company followmng a takeover bid Details
of the significant agreements of this kind are as follows

* the £400m Medium Term Notes (MTNSs) issued by the
Company to vanous mnstitutions on 28 March 2007 under the
Group's £3bn Euro Medium Term Note (EMTN) programme
contain an option such that, upon a change of control
event, combined with a credit ratings downgrade to below
sub-investment level, any holder of an MTN may require
the Company to prepay the pnncipal amount of that MTN,

* the £250m puttable callable reset notes issued by the
Company to vanous instrtutions on 11 December 2007 under
the Group's £3bn EMTN programme contain an option such
that, upon a change of control event, combined with a credit
rabings downgrade to below sub-investment level, any holder
of an MTN may require the Company to prepay the principal
amount of that MTN,

= the $500m US Notes issued by the Company to vanous
instrtutions on 6 December 2007 under section 144a of
the US Secunties Act contain an option such that, upon
a change of control event, combined with a credit ratings
downgrade to below sub-investment level, any holder of
such a US Note may require the Company to prepay the
principal amount of that US Note,

the $300m US Notes 1ssued by the Company to vanous
Instrtutions on & December 2007 under section 144a of
the US Secunties Act contain an option such that, upon
a change of control event, combined with a credtt ratings
downgrade to below sub-investment tevel, any holder of
such a US Note may require the Company to prepay the
prncipal amount of that US Note,

the £1 2bn Credit Agreement between the Company and
vanous banks dated 13 August 2004 contans a provision
such that, upon a change of control event, untess new terms
ara agreed within 60 days, the faciliies under that agreement
will be cancelled with all outstanding amounts becoming
immediately payable with nterest, and

= the agreement between HSBC and the Company relating
to M&S Money dated 9 November 2004 (as amended and
restated on 1 March 2005) contains a clause such that, upon
a change of control of the Company, any new owner would
be obliged to give undertakings to HSBC in respect of the
continuation of the agreement, negotiate revised terms
or terminate the agreement

The Company does not have agreements with any director or
employee that would provide compensation for loss of office or
employment resulting frorm a takeover except that provisions of
the Company’s share schemes and plans may cause options
and awards granted to employees under such schemes and
plans to vest on a takeover

{n) issue of new ordinary shares
Duning the penod, 12,447,224 ordinary shares in the Company
were i1ssued as follows

* 114,556 shares under the terms of the 1997 Executive
Share Option Scheme at pnces between 358p and 557p.

* 66,030 shares under the tesms of the 2000 Executive
Share Option Scheme at prices between 215p and 350p,

* 2,054,623 shares under the terms of the 2002 Executive
Share Ophon Scheme at prices between 270p and 353p, and

¢ 10,212,015 shares under the terms of the United Kingdom
Employees' Save As You Earn Share Option Scheme at
pnces between 156p and §59p

{m) Purchase of ordinary shares

The Company was authonsed by shareholders, at the

July 2007 AGM, to purchase in the market up to 170 milion
shares, representing 10% of the Company's issued share
capital, as permitted under the Company’s Articles The
Company engages In share buy backs to create value for

the shareholders, when cash flow permits and there Is not

an mmediate atternative investment use for the funds The i
Company announced on 6 November 2007 that t would
begin a share buy back programms to purchase up to 10%
of the Company’s issued share capital Since then and up

to 19 May 2008, the date of this report, 127,017,902 of the
Company's ordinary shares, with a nominal value of 25p each,
were bought back and cancelled, representing 7 5% of the
Company's issued share capital at 10 July 2007, the date of
the 2007 AGM An up-to-date summary of all transactions 1s
avallable on our website This standard authonty 1s renewable
annually and approval will be sought from shareholders at

the 2008 AGM to renew for another year It is the Company's
present intention to cancel any shares it buys back, rather
than hold them In treasury

Board of directors

The membership of the Board and biographical details of
the directors are given on page 32 and are incorporated
into this report by reference

Martha Lane Fox was appointed to the Board as a
non-executive director on 1 June 2007 Jack Keenan '
retired from the Board on 10 July 2007 :

On 10 March 2008 the Company announced a number of
Board and senior management changes Lord Burns will retire
as Charman with effect from 1 June 2008 Sir Stuart Rose will
be apponted Executive Chairman from 1 June 2008
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Kate Bostock was appointed to the Board as an Executive
Drrector of Clothing and Steven Esom was appointed to
the Board as Executive Director of Food on 10 March 2008
Details of these changes are set out on page 39 of the
Corporate governance statement and are incorporated into
this report by reference

Directors' mdemmities

The Company maintains directors’ and officers’ liability
insurance which gves appropriate cover for any legal action
brought aganst #s directors The Company has also granted
ndemnities to each of its directors and the secretary to

the extent permitted by law Qualfying third party indemnity
provisions {as defined by section 234 of the Companies Act
2006) were n force durning the year ended 29 March 2008
and remain in force, In relation to certan losses and tiabilihes
which the directors {or secretary) may incur to third parties in
the course of acting as directors (or secretary) or employees
of the Company or of any associated company

Directors’ interests

The beneficial and non-beneficial interests of the directors
and connected persons in the shares of the Company are
shown on page 52 Options granted under the Save As

You Earn (SAYE) scheme and Executive Share Option
Schemes are shown on pages 54 and 55 Further information
regarding employee share schemes is given in note 12 to the
financial statements

Related party transactions

Internal controls are in place to ensure that related party
transactions involving drectors, or their connected parties,
are conducted on an arm's length basis

Directors’ responsibilities

The directors are obkged under company law to prepare financial
statements for each financial year and to present them annually
to the Company's members in the Annual General Meeting

The financial statements, of which the form and content

1s prescnbed by the Companies Act 1985 and applicable
accounting standards, must give a true and fair view of the
state of affars of the Company and the Group at the end
of the financial year, and of the profit for that penod

The directors are also responsible for the adoption of suitable
accountng policies and therr consistent use in the financial
statements, supported where necessary by reasonable and
prudent judgements

The directors confirm that the above requirements have been
complied with in the financial statements

In addition, the directors are respensible for mantaining
adequate accounting records and sufficient internal controls
to safeguard the assets of the Group and to prevent and
detect fraud or any other iregulanties, as descnbed more
fully in the Corporate governance statement on page 46

Directors’ responsibility statement pursuant to DTR4
The directors confirm that, to the best of their knowledge

(a) the Group and Company financial statements in this report,
which have been prepared in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards {(IFRS) as adopted by the EU,
IFRIC interpretations and those parts of the Companies Act
1985 applicable to companies reporting under IFRS, give a
true and fair view of the assets, liabilties, financiat position
and profit of the Group taken as a whole, and
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(b) the management report contained in this report ncludes
a fawr review of the development and performance of the
business and the position of the Company and the Group
taken as a whole, together with a descnption of the pancipal
nsks and uncertamnties that they face

Audit mformation

Each director confirms that, so far as he/she 1s aware,

there 1s no refevant audit information of which the Company’s
auditors are unaware and that each director has taken all

the steps that he/she ought to have taken as a director to
make himself/herself aware of any relevant audit nformaton
and to estabiish that the Company's auditors are aware of
that information

Employee mvolvement
We have mantained our commutment to employee nvolvernent
throughout the business

Employees are kept well informed of the perfermance

and objectives of the Group through personal briefings,
regular meetings, email and Chief Executive broadcasts

at key points in the year to all head office employees

and store management These are supplemented by our
employee publications including Your M&S magazine and
DVD presentations More than 3,500 employees elected
onto Bustness Involvement Groups across every store and
head office location represent ther colleagues in two-way
communication and consultation with the Company

They have continued to play a key role In a wide vanety
of business changes

The thirteenth meeting of the European Council took

place last July This Counctl provides an additional forum for
Informing, consulting and invoiving employee representatves
from the countnes in the European Community

Drrectors and senior management regularty visit stores
and discuss with employees matters of current interest
and concern to the business

Share schemes are a long-established part of our total
reward package. encouraging and supporting employee
share ownership In particular, over 25,000 employees
currently participate in Sharesave, the Company's all
employee Save As You Earn scheme Full details of all
schemes are given on pages 49 and 50

We maintain contact with retired staff through communications
from the Company and the Pension Trust Member-nominated
trustees have been elected to the Pension Trust Board,
including employees and pensioners We continue to produce
a regular Pensions Update newsletter for members of our final
salary pension scheme and our M&S Retirement Plan

Equal opportunities

The Group s commitied to an active Equal Opportunities
Policy from recruitment and selection, through training
and development, appraisal and promotion, to retirement

It 1s our pohcy to promote an environment free from
discnmination, harassment and wictimisation, where
everyone will receve equal treatment regardiess of gender,
colour, ethnic or national ongin, disability, age, mantal
status, sexual onentation or religion All decisions relating
to employment practices will be objective, free from bias
and based solely upon work cntena and indvidual ment
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Group Directors’ report

continued

The Group s responsive to the needs of its employees,
customers and the community at large and we are an
organisation that endeavours to use eéveryone's talents
and abiities to the full

Employees with disabilities

it 1s our policy that people with disabilities shoukd have full
and farr consideration for all vacancies Dunng the year, we
continued to demonstrate our commitment to interviewing
those people with disabiliies who fulfil the minimum cntena,
and endeavourng to retain employees in the workforce If they
become disabled dunng employment We will actively retran
and adjust therr environment where possible to allow them to
maximise their potental

We continue to work with external organisations to provide
workplace opportunities through our innovative Marks & Start
scheme and by working closely with jobCentrePlus

Creditor payment policy
For all trade creditors, it 1s the Group's policy to

* agree the tenms of payment at the start of business with
that suppler,

* ensure that supplers are aware of the terms of payment, and

* pay n accoerdance with its contractual and other legal
obligations

The main trading company, Marks and Spencer pic, has a
policy concerning the payment of trade creditors as follows

* general merchandise payments are received between
16 and 23 days after the stock was delivered,

* food payments are receved between 18 and 25 days
after the stock was delivered, and

¢ distnbution supphers are pad monthly, for costs ncumed
n that month, based on estimates, and payments are
adjusted quarterly to reflect any vanations to estimate

Trade creditor days for Marks and Spencer plc for the year
ended 29 March 2008 were 15 3 days, or 10 2 working
days (last year 14 7 days, or 9 8 working days), based on
the ratio of Company trade creditors at the end of the year
to the amounts invoiced dunng the year by trade creditors

Market value of properties

The last formal valuation of the Group's properties was carned
out n September 2006 Taking into account movements in
the Group’s property portfolio since that date, the drectors are
of the opinion that the market value of the Group's properties,
at 29 March 2008 exceeded ther net book value (including
prepayments In respect of leasehold land) of the fixed asset
and leasehold properties by approximately £1 Obn

Chantable donations

Dunng the year, the Group made chantable donations

to support the community of £15m {ast year £13 8m)

These prncipally consisted of cash donations of £5 4m (last
year £3 8m) which includes our ‘Marks & Start' community
programme, Breakthrough Breast Cancer, Save The Children,
Worltd Wildlfe Fund, and local community donatons, £19m
{last year £3m) of employee time, prncipally on Marks & Start
and school work expenence programmes, and stock
donations of £7 5m (ast year £6 6m) to a vansty of chanties
inciuding Shelter, FareShare and The Birth Defects Foundation

Political donations

It 1s our policy not to make donations for political purposes
in the UK, to EU political partes or to incur EU political
expenditure Accordingly, the Company and its subsidianes
did not give any money for political purposes in the UK nor
did they make any donations to EU political organisations
or incur any EU poitical expenditure dunng the year

Under the provisions of the Political Parties, Elections and
Referendums Act 2000, shareholder authonty is required for
poltical donations to be made or political expenditure to be
incurred by the Company or any of its subsidianes in the EU
and disclose any such payments in the Annual report The
legislation gives a wide defintion of what constitutes political
donations and poltical expenditure, including sponsorship,
subscriptions, payment of expenses, patd leave for employees
fulfiling public duties and support for bodies representing the
business community in policy review or reform

At the 2006 AGM shareholders gave a limited authonty
(£100,000) to the Company and each of the six principal
employing comparnies to make poliical donattons or to incur
political expenditure in the EU (which would not ordinanly be
regarded as political donations) as a precautionary measure,
to allow the Company to continue supporting the community
and such organisations without nadvertently breaching the
legwslation This authorty will expire in 2010

Going concern

After making enquiries, the directors have a reasonable
expectation that the Company and Group has adequate
resources to continue In operational existence for the
foreseeable future For this reason, they have adopted the
going concern basis in prepanng the financial statements

Auditors

Resolutions to reappomnt PncewaterhouseCoopers LLP

as audrtors of the Company and to authonse the Audit
Committes to determine therr remuneration will be proposed

- at the 2008 AGM

Annual general meeting

The AGM of Marks and Spencer Group plic will be held at

the Royal Festival Hall, London on 9 July 2008 The Notice

1S given, together with explanatory notes, In the baoklet which
accompanies this report

By order of the Board

Graham Oakley, Group Secretary
London

19 May 2008

oy
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Corporate governance statement

The Board & committed to achieving success for the Company
by bullding a sustainable business for the long term, generating
sharehoider value through consistent profitable growth whilst
making sure that our customers can always trust us to do the
nght thing This statement explains our governance pohcies
and practices and provides msight mto how the Board and
management run the business for the benefit of shareholders
The governance rutes which apply to all UK companies listed
on the London Stock Exchange are found in the Combined
Code on Corporate Governance which was updated by the
Financial Reporting Councit in June 2006 (the ‘Code’)

A detalled account of how the Company has applied the
Code’s principles and how we comply with its provisions

can be found on our website at

marksandspencer com/thecompany

The Board
The Board's role i1s to

¢ provide entrepreneunal leadership of the Company
within a framework of prudent and effective controls
which enables nsk to be assessed and managed,

» set the Company's strategic ams, ensunng that the
necessary financial and human resources are in place
for the Company to meet its objectives and review
management performance, and

* sot the Company's values and standards and ensure
that s obligations to its shareholders and others are
understood and met

All directors are iIndividually briefed on appointment, on the
duties they owe as directors to the Company Dunng the year,
the directors have been bnefed on thewr new statutory duties
as set out In the Companies Act 2006, which came Into effect
on 1 October 2007 The central duty 1s the duty to act in good
farth and in a way most hkely to promote the success of the
Company for the benefit of its members as a whole In fulfiling
this duty, directors should have regard (amongst other matters)
to the likely consequences of any decision in the long term,
the interests of employees, the need to foster business
relationships with suppliers, customers and others, the mpact
of operations on the community and the environment, the
desirability of maintaining a reputation for high standards

of business conduct, and the need to act fay between
members of the Company

The non-executve directors play a key governance role

n protecting shareholders' interests They are Independent
and bnng an external dimension to the Board, whilst
complementing the skills and expenence of the executive
drectors through their range of knowledge, expenence and
insight from other sectors

In January 2007 we announced Plan A, our business wide
‘aco plan’ setting out our ambitions to change the way we
operate over the next five years We are committed to our
principles of Qualty, Value, Service, Innovation and Trust
Trust s earned from others as a result of our commitment to
long-held values and the way we behave QOur Code of Ethics
1s available on our webssite 1t outlines the behaviours that
M&S expects from its employees, whether they are dealing
with our customers, suppliers shareholders or colleagues
This includes acting in a professional manner with honesty
and integnty at all times and following Company policies and

procedures It also sets out guidehnes on the environment,
fraud and financial reporting, the management of conflicts
of interest and how to raise concerns about possible
mpropneties in financial reporting or other matters Senior
managers sign therr acceptance of the Code of Ethics sach
year and ensure it is applied in ther areas of responsibilty

New Board structure

On 10 March 2008 we announced Board and sentor
management changes We stated that Lord Bums would stand
down as Chairman from 1 June 2008, when Sir Stuart Rose
would be appointed Executive Chasrman

On 3 April 2008 Lord Burns wrote to shareholders setting

out the detalled reasons behind the Board's decisions A copy
of this letter 1s available on our website The Board has taken
this decision, cognisant of its pnme objective to ensure the
Company's ongoing commercial success, and has put in
place balancing controls to mitigate the governance concerns

» imited penod of appomtment of combined Charman
and Chief Executive until July 2011,

+ appointment of Sir Dawd Michels as Deputy Charrman,

» clear specification of duties of Executive Chairman
and Deputy Chairman to ensure proper division of
responsibiiities and balance of power,

* appointment of two new executive directors and
Increased responsibility for the Group Finance and
Operations Director,

» recrutment of an additional non-executive director to
ensure a majonty of Independent directors on the Board
Following that appointment, the Board will consider the
appointment of a further non-executive, and

e annual voting by shareholders for Sir Stuart Rose’s
reappointment as a director starting at the 2008 AGM

The Board unanimously believes that the overall arrangements
represent a sensible way forward and provide a sound
transitional governance structure leading to the appointment
of a new Chairman and separate Chief Executive by summer
2011 The new structure will ensure continuity of leadership,
strengthen the Board and streamiine the organisation This
will focus everyone on business performance dunng a penod
of significant trading uncertainty and 1t addresses investor
CONCErns over Succession

Consultation with shareholders

The Code states that “If exceptionally a Board decides that

a Chief Executive should become Chairman, the Board should
consult major shareholders in advance and should set out its
reasons to shareholders at the time of the appointment and

in the next annual report™

In the penod leading up to the announcement on 10 March
2008 of the Board and senior management changes, the
Board considered how best to communicate with shareholders
The changes proposed as part of the new govemance and
management structure were wide-ranging and not only Included
the appointment of the Executive Chaiman and Deputy
Chairman but two new Board appontments, the extension

of the Finance Director's role and a large number of senior
management appointments, as well as news of the departures
of several members of the senior management team
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Corporate governance statement

continued

In light of these proposed changes and their sensitvities
the Board was concerned about the nsk of leaks and did
not consult major shareholders in advance The Board was
unanimous and clear that the proposed changes, taken as
a whole, were In the interests of shareholders, customers
and employees The Board was also clear that whatever
consultation was undertaken in advance of an announcement,
its delberations would nonetheless be subject to comment
and scrutiny The Board also knew that it would, rightly, be
oblkged under the Code to explamn why it was proposing to
combine the Chairman ang Chief Executive roles and to
answer questions from any shareholders with concerns

Since the announcement, Lord Burns has consulted with a
number of pnncipal investors and shareholder representative
bodies and he and Sir David Michels have met with those
who had requested a meeting A letter was also sent to all
shareholders on 3 Apni 2008 setting out the detared reasons
behind the Board's decisions

Dvision of responsibilities

The Board has reviewed and agreed a clear specification

of duties under the new Board structure to ensure a proper
dwision of responsibiities and balance of power The Deputy
Chairman will have joint responsibifity with the Executive
Chairman, for the agenda and the overall Board structure and
composition He will chair the Nomination Committee, provide

The pnncipal roles of the Executve Chairman, Deputy
Charman and non-executive cirectors are set out below

Executive Chairman

¢ to ensure the Board achieves its full potential to build
a sustainable business for the long term, generating
shareholder value through consistent, profitable growth
whilst making sure that our customers always trust us
10 do the nght thing, and

* 10 act within delegated authority from the Board for
all aspects of the management of the Group, which
includes developing appropriate business strategles
for Board approval and achieving timely and eflective
implementation

Dunng the penod of combined Chairman and Chief
Executive to keep the Deputy Chairman regulary mformed
on all matters that may be of importance to the Group,
incluging its current performance and progress, and to
monitor performance of the executive directors in their
increased responsibilities, whilst focusing on the strategic
growth areas of the business

leadership for the non-executive directors, be responsible

for monitonng Board effectiveness and lead on corporate
governance Issues Sir David Michels has committed to spend
sufficient and significant tme in his role as Deputy Chairman
He s resigning from the Board of The Bntish Land Company
PLC and resigned from RAB Capital PLC on 18 Apnl 2008 in
order to ensure that he can fulfil s commitments

In addrtion, the non-executive directors will meet independently
at least twice a year 1o keep the governance structure under
review to ensure appropnate safeguards are in place to protect
shareholder interests

Board balance and independence

On 28 March 2008 the Board compnsed 11 directors

the Charman, Chief Executive, four executive directors and
five non-executive directors On 1 June 2008 the Board will
compnse 10 directors the Executive Chairman, non-executive
Deputy Chairman, four executive directors and four further
non-executive directors A full list of the directors, with details
of their biographies and committee membership, is given on
page 32

The Board concludes that each non-executive director I1s
independent n character and judgement and will keep under
review whether there are relationships or circumstances which
are likely to affect, or could appear to affect, Independence

Deputy Chairman and Senior Independent Director

¢ 1o lead on all governance issues Including conducting
the annual review of Board effectiveness and ensunng
that the performance of individual directors 1s kept under
review, and

* to provide a communication channel between the
Chawman and non-executive directors and, when required,
pnncipal shareholders including representative bodies

During the penod of combined Chairman and Chief Executve
to monttor the effectiveness of the role of Executive
Chairman, independently to lead the succession process
for the appointment of a Chief Executive by 2011, and to
maintain contact with principal nvestors and representative
bedies on a regular basis, keeping the Board mfarmed

Non-Executive Directors

* to bnng an independent and extemal dimension to the
Board’s actmtres and play their part in refation to strategy,
performance, nsk and people, and

» within the spint of partnership and mutual respect on
the unitary board, to support, constructively challenge
and monitor the executive team

Dunng the penod of combined Chairman and Chief
Executive to keep the governance structure under review
to ensure appropnate safeguards are in place to protect
shareholder interests
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Information and professional development

The Chairman ensures that the directors receve accurate,
timely and clear information They recerve regular updates
on business performance aganst the annual operating plan
and mvestment decisions, together with business reports and
presentations from senior management at Board meetings
Directors are encouraged to update their skills, knowledge
and familianty with the Group through their imtial induction,
ongoing participation at Board and Committee meetings,
meeting employees at store locations and elsewhere and are
kept up-to-date on the views of customers and shareholders
The Board s regularly updated on governance and
regulatory matters

Graham Qakley as Group Secretary acts as a sounding
board 1o the Chairman and individual directors He supports
the Chairman in ensuring the Board functions effectively

and futfils its role He s secretary of the Audit, Remuneration
and Nomination Commuttees and also heads the Corporate
Governance Group, which supports the Board and its
comnuttees, as well as pronding advice on a range of Issues
to commercial colleagues From 1 June 2008 the Group
Secratary will have an additional reporting ine to the Deputy
Chairman to assist him in fulfiling his governance duties

There 1s an established procedure whereby the Board or
any of ts Committees may take independent professional
advice when appropnate Any indwidual director, wishing

to do so n the furtherance of therr duties, may also take
ndependent professional advice through the secretary at
the Company's expense Directors are granted an indemnity
from the Company in respect of kabilities incurred as a result
of therr office In respect of those matters for which they
cannot be indemnified, the Gompany mantains appropnate
habilty insurance for the benefit of directors

Board performance

The performance of the Board 1s a vital component of the
Group's success and the Board is keen to ensure that the
annual review of s performance builds on the previous year's
results to ensure a continuous process In September 2007
the Board approved an action plan based on the key themes
from the 2006/07 review of process, people, strategy and
performance measures The action plan also referred to

the new statutory directors’ duties, to address these as

an integral part of Board performance The Board agreed

to conduct the 2007/08 review ‘In house' and that it be led
by Lord Burns In January 2008 each director completed a
questionnarre to rate collective performance over some 20
questions with free text boxes for comments The Chairman
then reviewed an unattnbuted executive summary, highlighting
key outcomes which he has subsequently discussed with
indmdual directors
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Some of the outcomes achieved in 2007/08 following the
2006/07 review

« a greater focus on the long-term growth prospects of the
business leading to the announcement in November 2007
of our prorries for the next five years Whilst continuing to
invest in our core business we have ambitious plans for
our UK property portfolio, M&S Direct and International
businesses and Plan A,

» regular reviews of the bench strength of senior
management and future skills and composition of the
Board, leading to the new governance and management
structures announced on 10 March 2008 Successton
planning will continue to be a prionty and from 1 June
2008 Sir David Michels, Deputy Chairman, will chair the
Nomination Comrnittee, and

* introduction of an onhine Board portal to provide a more
secure, efficient and flexible method of delivenng Board
papers and easy access to information for induction
and ongoing development

From 1 June 2008 Sir David Michels as Deputy Chairman
will lead the Board's review of its performance He will also
hold meetings with the non-executive directors, without
the executive directors present, to monitor and reflect on
the effectiveness of the new governance structure and to
appraise the performance of the Executive Chairman

Individual performance

The performance of the executive directors was reviewed
individually by the Chief Executive agamnst set objectives
Remuneration is directly linked to these reviews and
determined by the Remuneraton Committee Similarty,

the Chief Executive’s performance was reviewed by the
Charrman The Senior Independent Director reviewed the
Charrman’s performance against a set of previously agreed
objectives The performance of the non-executwve directors
was reviewed individually by the Charman This year's
questionnarre also invited each director to comment on
the individual performances of themselves, other directors
and the Chairman

Under the new Board structure from 1 June 2008 the Deputy
Chairman will review the performance of the Executve Chaiman,
taking into account the views of the non-executive directors

Committee performance

The process for reviewing the effectiveness of the Committees
in 2007/08 has been to combine ongong reviews with a
simple questionnarre led by each of the respective charmen
The Audit and Remuneration Committees undertook a review
locking at their methods of operation and processes and
combined this with the use of questionnaires which were
conducted in March 2008 An executive summary was
produced for the Chairman of each Committee which they
discussed with their respective Committee members

Succession planning and sentor leadership development
Dunng the year successional planning reviews were held

by the Board and the Nomination Commuttee resulting in

key appontments to the Board and senior management

We made important organisational changes, promoting
exsting talent and banging in new people, to ensure we

have the right skils in key areas of focus over the next three
years Senior leadership development remains a pronty
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Corporate governance statement

continued

Board committees

The pnncipal Board committees are the Audit,
Remuneration and Nomination Committees The wntten
terms of reference of each commuttee can be found on
our website

Audit Committee

The Aucit Committes comprises four independent,
non-executive directors Jeremy Darroch (Chairman),
Martha Lane Fox, Steven Holliday and Sir David Michels
Martha joned the Board and became a member of the
Committee on 1 June 2007 to replace Jack Kesnan who
retired on 10 July 2007

The Audit Commuttee assists the Board in fulfilling

its oversight responsibilities and s pnmary role 1s to
monttor the integnty of the financial statements and
other information to shareholders, to review the systems
of internal control and nsk management, to maintan

an appropnate relationship with the Company's external
auditors, and to review the effectiveness and objectvity
of the audit process

It met four times dunng the year reviewing a number of
internal audits relating to key business processes and the
principal nsks and uncertamties facing the Group The
Committee receved updates on the governance process
around business change intiatives and reviewed the Code of
Ethics and whistleblowing returns Private mestings have been
held separately with the external auditors and internal audit

The Board has satisfied itself that at least one member

of the Audit Committes has recent and relevant financial
expenence and is confident that the collective expenence
of the members enables them to act as an effective Audit
Committee The Commiitee also has access to the financial
expertise of the Group and rts auditors and can seek further
professional advice at the Company’s expense, if required

The Board has appointed a new Head of Internal Audit and
Risk, Clare Combes, who joned the Company on 6 May
2008 Following the departure on 31 July 2007 of the previous
Head of Internal Audit, John Federer, the function has been
led by the two Audit Managers who have had direct access

to the Audit Committee Chairman

The Committee keeps under review the independence and
objectmty of the extemal auditors, PncewaterhouseCoopers
LLP (‘PwC"), Including the review of any audt fee proposals
and non-audit fees An engagement and fee approvals process
15 in place which requires pnor approval from the Committee
for certain engagements On occasions, the nature of non-
audit advice may make it more timely and cost-effective to
select PwC, who already have a good understanding of the
Group PwC may also be appointed for consultancy work,

but only after ngorous checks, including competitive tender,

to confirm they are the best provider PwC 1s also subject

to professional standards which safeguard the integnty

of the audsting role performed on behalf of shareholders
Arrangements have been made, in conjunction with PwC, for
audit partner rotation in accordance with the recommendations
of the Auditing Practices Board The lead audit engagement
partner, Ranjan Snskandan, has been in place since 2003/04
and 1s being succeeded by Stuart Watson with effect from

2008/09 As authonsed by shareholders at the AGM on 10 July
2007, the Audit Committee determines the level of remuneration
for the external auditors on behalf of the Board Details of this
year's fees are given in note 4 to the financial statements

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee compnises four independent
non-executive directors Lousse Patten (Charman),

Martha Lane Fox, Steven Holiday, and S David Michels
Martha joined the Board and became a member of the
Committee on 1 June 2007 to replace Jack Keenan who
retred on 10 July 2007 It met five times dunng the year

The Remuneratiors Committee's primary role is to
recommend to the Board the remuneration sirategy
and framework, giving due regard to the financial and
commercial health of the Company and to ensure that
executive directors and senior management are fairly
rewarded for their ndmdual contnbutions to the
Company's overall performance

The remuneration of the non-executive directors 18 determined
by the Chairman and the executve directors The Remuneration
report ts set out on pages 48 to 55 as required by the Directors’
Remuneration Report Regulations 2002

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee comprises Lord Burns (Chairman).
Sir Stuart Rose and all five independent non-executive
directors Jeremy Darroch, Martha Lane Fox, Steven Hollday,
Sir David Michels and Lowuse Patten Martha joined the Board
and became a member of the Committee on 1 June 2007

to replace Jack Keenan who retired on 10 July 2007 From

1 June 2008 Sir David Michels, Deputy Charrman, will chair the
Committee to replace Lord Burns who will retire on that date

The Nomination Commuittee’s prnmary role is to ensure that
appropnate procedures are in place for the nomnation,
selection, traning and evaluation of directors and for
successional plans It reviews the Company’s Board
structurs, size, composition and successional needs,
thereby kesping under consideration the balance of
membership and the required blend of skills, knowledge
and expenence of the Board Appointments are made

on ment and against objective ¢ntena to ensure that

the Board maintans a balance of skills and expenence

It met twice formally dunng the year and succession
planning sessions were held by the Board and the
Nomination Committee to consider Board and senior
management changes Under the Company’s Articles of
Association, all directors seek election at therr first Annual
General Meeting following appointment and all directors

are required to offer themselves for re-election at least every
three years Under the new Board structure from 1 June 2008
we have announced that Sir Stuart Rose will retire and seek
re-election by shareholders on an annual basis, commencing
in 2008, rather than on-the usual three-year cycle

On 10 March 2008 we announced the appointment

with immed:ate effect of two new executwve directors,
Kate Bostock and Steven Esom, as well as changes to
the senior management team The Board was keen to
ensure a proper mix of top talent, combining new recrurts
and existing employees
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Consideration was given when recruiting below Board level as to whether further progression on the Board was possible, as
demonstrated by the promotion of two new executive directors and the Increased responsibity given to lan Dyson as Group
Finance and Operations Director

On 22 May 2007 we announced the appointment of a new non-executive director, Martha Lane Fox, with effect from 1 June 2007
This followed a search by an external search consultancy commissioned by the Nomination Committee The candidates were
shortisted by the Charman and the Chief Executive and the preferred candidate then seen by a wider group of directors A search
led by Sir David Michels on behalf of the Commttee 1s currently under way for a new non-executive direcior which is being conducted
through an external search consultancy

Attendance

The following table sets out the number of meetings of the Board and its governance committees during the year and individual
attendance by Board and committee members at those meetings Directors who were unable to attend Board or committes
meetings reviewed the relevant papers and provided comments pnor to the meeting to the Chairman, or Commuttee Chairman,
as appropnate

Group Audit Remuneration Normunaton

Board Committee Committes Committas
Nama ot Drector A B A B A 8 A B
Lord Burns, Chainman 9 9 - - - - 2 2
Sir Stuart Rose, Chief Executive 9 g - - - - 2 2
Executive Directors
Kate Bostock (appointed 10 March 2008) 1 1 - - - - - -
lan Dyson ] 9 - - - - - -
Steven Esom {appointed 10 March 2008) 1 1 - - - - - -
Steven Sharp g 9 - - - - - -
Non-Executive Directors
Jeremy Darroch g o) 4 4 - - 2 2
Martha Lane Fox (appointed 1 June 2007) 7 6 3 2 3 2 1 -
Steven Holliday? 9 8 4 3 5 4 2 2
Jack Keenan {retired 11 July 2007) 3 3 1 1 2 2 1 1
Srr David Michels® 9 6 4 2 5 3 2 2
Louise Patten 9 9 - - 5 5 2 2

A = Macamum number of meetings the cracior could have attenied
B = Number of meetings the crector actually attended

{ Martha Lane Fox was unable 10 attand meetings of the Board on 8 February 2008 1he Aucit and Rermuneraion Committees on 27 Feoruary 2008 and the Nomination Commitlee
on 29 February 2008 as she was n hosprital

2 Steven Holday was unable 10 8ilend meetings of the Audkt and Remuneration Committees on 15 May 2007 and the Board on 5 Novernber 2007 due 10 overseas commiments
with National Gnd pic

3 Sir Dawd Mchels was unable (o attend meetings of the Board on © and 21 May and 5 November 2007 the Audit Commuttes on 15 May and 31 October 2007 &nd the
Remuneraton Commdtee on 15 and 21 May 2007 due to overseas business commitments already planned pnor 10 s appontment to the M&S Board

Accountability and audit

The Group's overnding corporate objective is to maximise long-term shareholder value whilst exceeding the expectations of
our customers, employees and partners In doing so, the directors recogruse that creating value i1s the reward for taking and
acceptng nsk

The Board has overall responsibility for the Group's approach to assessing nsk and systems of internal control, and for monitonng
therr effectiveness in providing shareholders with a return that is consistent with a responsible assessment and mitigation of nsks
Thes includes reviewing financial, operational and comphance controls and nsk management procedures The role of executive
management 1S to implement the Board's policies on nsk and control, and to provide assurance on compliance with these policies
Independent assurance 1s provided by Internal audit, which operates across the Group, and the external auditors All employees
are accountable for operating within these policies

Because of the imitations that are inherent in any systern of nternal control, this system is designed to manage, rather than eliminate,
the nsk of fallure to actueve corporate objectives Accordingly, it can only provide reasonable but not absolute assurance against
material rmsstatement or loss
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Corporate governance statement

continued

Risk assessment

Every six months the Board reviews the Group Risk Profile — the tool that dnves nsk assessment and action planning
This 1s supported by an ongoing process for identifying, evaluating and managing the significant nsks faced by the Group
As an ntegral part of planning and review, managers from each business area and major projects

» (dentdy the nsks to ther plans,
¢ evaluate the nsks using hkelihood and impact, and

+ document the actions being taken to manage those nsks

This process has been in place for the year under review and up to the date of approval of the Annual report and accounts
It has been regularly reviewed by the Board and accords with the Internal Control Guidance for directors on the Code
produced by the Financial Reporting Council

Principal nsks and uncertainties
There are nsks and uncertanties which could impact the Group's long-term performance The nsk assessment process 1§

designed to identify, manage and mitigate business nsk The table below gives examples of activities across Group functions
to mitigate aganst nsks and uncertanties identified The Board considers that these are the most significant nsks to achieving

business goals The nsks histed do not compnse alt those associated with Marks & Spencer and are not set out in any order

of pronty Additional nsks and uncertainties not presently known to management, or currently deemed to be less matenial, may

also have an adverse effect on the business

Risk

impact

Examples of mitigating activities

PRODUCT We am to provide a wide choice of great value, high quality clothing, food and home products, which are all

sourced and made responsibly

Clothing

We fail to maintain clothing
market share through
growth of space and focus
on product in the face of
increased competition in
tougher trading conditions

See pages 1110 15

Adverse effect on
financial results

Lost market share
and customer loyalty

* New and better product, exploting areas of opportunity

» Tracking of customer perceptions of product

» A supply base that enables future growth with emphasis
on best value and speed to market

* New and better space offenng to make clothing more
accessible to our customers

« Store spectfic cataloguing and effective stock management
to put the nght stock in the nght stores for our customers

* Plan A ntiatives, eg ethical sourcing

Food

We fall to detiver profitable
sales growth while
maintaining an nnovation
gap over competitors

See pages 17 t0 19

Adverse effect on
financial results

Lost market share
and customer loyatty

» Continual product and technical innovation to maintain
competitive advantage

» Continued emphasis on fresh food credentials

* Independent quality assessment of key foad lines

» Tracking of customer perceptions of product

* A supply base that enables future growth and further
strengthens our food credentials

* Food more accessible to our customers through new
owned and franchised stores

* Plan A inhatives, eg differentiated raw matenals
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Principal nsks and uncertainties continued

Risk Impact Examples of mitigating activities

PEOPLE As we continue to grow our business and invest for the future, it’s Important we keep strengthening our team
at every level from shop floor through to management

We fail to attract, develop Inability to develop and * New senior management structure in place

and retan talent with the execute business plans ¢ A focus on senior leadership development and succession

correct skills and capability » Competitive reward packages

for succession Competitve ¢ Buying Academies i head office and coaches in stores
disadvaniage + Graduate recrutment and development

See pages 6 and 20 and 21 e Employee communication

» Tracking of employee satisfaction surveys
¢ Tracking of customer perceptions of service

M&S DIRECT We are further developing our M&S Direct business as an important part of our commitment to becommng
a mult-channel retaller

We fail to deliver sales Adverse effect on e Capability to grow sales wia new products and new customers
growth by failing to meet financial results * A focus on improved order fulfilment and customer service
customer expectations

Lost market share
See pages 26 and 27 and customer loyalty

INTERNATIONAL We have ambitious plans to grow our International business through expanding our franchise operation,
entenng Into partnesships and developing wholly-owned businesses in emerging economies

We fail to grow our Adverse effect on » A focus on appropnate resource required to ntegrate
International business financial results new ventures

successfully through franchise ¢ New operational and financial processes in place to
operations, partnerships or Damage to brand support growth of International businesses
wholly-owned businesses ¢ Strong relationships forged with key stakeholders
See pages 28 and 29

PLAN A We launched our five-year ‘eco plan’ in January 2007 to address challenges across five areas
chmate change, waste, sustanable raw materals, farr partner and health

We fall to deliver, measure Lost stakeholder trust » Governance in place to achieve our commitments,

or communicate and confidence including a new Director of Plan A

performance against our » Performance reporting further developed

Plan A commitments Damage to brand * Plan A ntegrated into day-to-day operation including
Plan A Champions throughout head office and stores

See pages 30 and 31 ¢ Open dialogue with stakeholders developing our mutual

understanding of the challenges we face
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Corporate governance statement

continued

Internal control

The Board maintains full control and direction over appropnate
strategee, financial, organisational and compliance iIssues

It has delegated to executive management the
implementation of the systems of internal control within

an established framework

The Board has put in place an organisational structure
with formally defined lines of responsibility and delegation
of authonty There are also established procedures for
planning, capital expenditure, information and reporting
systems, and for monitonng the Group’s businesses and
ther performance

These include

Plans and policies
« communication of the Group’s strategy, objectives
and targets,

* annual operating and capital plans and future projections,
« pperating policies and procedures,

 clearly defined capuitat nvestment control guideines,

¢ review of treasury policies by the Board, and

* review of social environmental and ethical matters by
the How we do business Committee

Competent people
* appointment of employees of the necessary calibre to
fulhil therr aflotted responstbitities, and

* clear roles and accountabilities with regular performance
reviews

Monitor and control

* review by operating dwsions of their plans with the relevant
executive directors pnior 10 submission to the Board for
approval, Including identification and assessment of nsks,

* monthly comparson of operating divisions’ actual financial
performance against budget, and

= regular consideration by the Board of year-end forecasts

Regulatory update
* reporting of accounting and legal developments, and

= regular bnefings on latest best practice corporate
governance to the Board

Assurance
On behalf of the Board, the Audit Commitiee examines
the effectiveness of the Group’s

assessment of nsk by reviewing evidence of nsk
assessment activity and a report from internal audit
on the process undertaken,

systems of internal contro!, pnmanly through approving
the internal audst plan and reviewing its findings, reviews
of the Annual and Intenm financial statements and a review
of the nature, scope and reports of the external audit,

action plans taken, or to be taken, to remedy any
significant failtngs or weaknesses identified, and

action plans in place to manage significant nsks

The Audt Committee has completed s review of the
effectiveness of the Group's systems of internal control
dunng the year, which are in compliance with the Turnbull
Guidance 2005 It confirms the necessary action plans
to remedy identrfied weaknesses in internal control are

in place and have been throughout the year

Internal audit's work i1s focused on areas of prionty as identified
by the Group Risk Profile and in accordance with an annual
audt plan approved each year by the Audit Committes and by
the Board The Board receives a full report from internal audit
each year on the department’s work and findings and regular
intenm updates on specific Issues The Audit Commitiee
monitors and assesses the role and effectiveness of the
internal audit function on behalf of the Board

The external audrtors are engaged to express an opinion on
the financtal statements They review and test the systems of
internal financial control and the data contained i the financial
statements to the extent necessary to express ther audit
opinion They discuss with management the reporting of
operational results and the financial position of the Group

and present therr findings to the Audit Commuttee

Relations with shareholders

Communication

We are committed to ongoing engagement with
shareholders and have a well-estabiished cycle of
communication based on the Group’s financial reporting
calendar Ths includes our prelminary results in May,
Annuat report in June, half year results in November

and intenm management statements in January and July
Our website prowides up-to-date information including
simultanecus webcasts of our financial results and

AGM presentations, regulatory announcements, Annual
reports, corporate governance and share pnce information
and answers to frequently asked questions Following
shareholder approval in July 2007, the website 1s now
our pnncipal means of communicating with investors

Institutional investors

Qur investor relations department is the focal pont for

contact with our institutional investors and 1s in regular
contact with them as well as with analysts and brokers

dunng the year Our Charman, Chief Executive and Group
Finance and Operations Director play key roles in our
relationship with major shareholders and the presentations

of full and half year results are attended by all the executive
directors The Senior independent Director 1s also avalable
for shareholders as required An nvestor relations summary

1s produced for each Board meeting and each year the Board
receves feedback from independent adwsers on institutional
investor views of management and Company performance,
based on the results of ther extensive survey From 1 June
2008 the Deputy Charrman will maintain contact with pnncipal
investors and representative bodies on a regular basis, keeping
the Board informed
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Private investors

Pnvate investors own a high percentage of our shares
compared to most other large UK companies The Board 15
also nterested to know ther views and we make a special
effort to ensure communications and policies are appropnate
to therr needs They can contact us in wniting, by email at
chairman@marks-and-spencer com, or by telephone on
0845 608 0810 for shareholder quenes and 0845 302 1234
for customer quenes

In January 2008 we consulted with shareholders on electronic
communication — nearly 40,000 shareholders confirmed that
they wished to continue to receve hard copy documents,
such as the Annual report The remainder will be notified
when the Annual report Is available on our website However,
all shareholders will continue to receive an AGM Notice of
Meeting, together with key financial and governance
mnformation to enable them to vote

Postage-paid topics cards are sent with the AGM Notice of
Meeting giving shareholders further opportunity to make ther
wviews known to us The three most frequently raised topics
are addressed at the meeting and a summary of all comments
1$ given to the Board and directors of each busmess unit

Qur registrars, Equinth, continue to enhance their services for
shareholders through therr website at shareview.co uk This
offers a number of capabilities ranging from electing to receve
communications electronically to checking shareholdings and
dividend information online

Many shareholders are also customers and each year we
send them Spend and Save vouchers to use In our stores
These are very popular, and in spring 2008 the offer was
extended to technology products and online shopping

Annual General Meeting

The AGM 1s an iImportant event in our corporate calendar
and is well attended by shareholders Prior to the meeting
an exhibition ts hosted by our senior retall and business
managers The meeting commences with a business
presentation and then the Chairman, Chief Executive

and other members of the Board answer questions raised
by shareholders All directors are present, including the
Chairman of the Audit, Remuneration and Nominaton
Committees Shareholders are then invited to vote on the
resolutions contained in the Notice of Meeting, which 1s
sent to them at least 20 working days beforehand The
business presentation, voting results and a summary of
the questions raised and answers given at the meeting
are made avatlable on our website

In 2007 89 6% of the proxy votes receved were fodged
through the CREST system We encourage private investors
to register therr vote before the mesting on the website at
sharevote co uk or by proxy card
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Since 2004 voting at the meeting has been conducted by
poll, using the electronic Votenow system, rather than on

a show of hands This gives a more democratic result as all
shares represented at the meeting and those lodged befare
the meeting are included on a one share, one vote basis
Our registrars record all proxy votes receved up to 48 hours
pror to our AGM and repart the votes ‘For', ‘Aganst’ or
"Vote withheld' to the Charrman pnor to the meeting These
votes are included in the mdicatve poll result screened at
the meeting The final results are announced via the London
Stock Exchange In 2007 votes cast represented 53 5% of
the ordinary share capital All resolutions were passed with
votes 'For’ resolutions ranging from 94 7% to 99 9%

The next AGM wilt be helkd on Wednesday 9 July 2008 at the
Rovyal Festival Hall in London In addition to routine resolutions,
shareholders will be asked to vote on the adoption of new
Articles of Association enabling us to benefit from the recent
changes brought about by the Companies Act 2006

Compliance with the Combined Code
The Company complies with ali the provisions of the Code
with the following exceptions

» throughout the year ended 29 March 2008 the Board
did not fully consuft major shareholders in advance of
our announcement on 10 March that our Chief Executive
would become Chawrman from 1 June 2008 (A 2 2), and

¢ from 1 June 2008 the role of Charman and Chief
Executive will be exercised by the same indwidual (A 2 1)
and our Chief Executive will becorme Chairman (A 2 2)

Our reasons for departure from the Code are set out on
page 39

Governance of the Group’s pension schemes

The Group operates a defined benefit scheme for all
employees with an appomtment date prior to 1 Apnl 2002
and a defined contnbution scheme open to those jomning the
Company on or after 1 Apnl 2002 More information 15 given
in note 11 on pages 70to 72

The Board of the Pension Trust (‘Trustee Board’) manages
the assets of the pension scheme which are held under trust
separately from those of the Group The Board comprises
Tony Watson as independent Charman and Law Debenture
Trust as ndependent Trustee, together with five company
representatives and five member representatives

The Trustee Board has reviewed the external auditor
appointment and appointed KPMG LLP in place of
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP with effect from February 2008

The Trustee Board has also camed out a review of its own
performance through questionnaire responses, one-to-one
discussions and collective agreement of areas of focus for
future development
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Remuneration report

This Remuneration report has been prepared on behalf of the
Board by the Remuneration Committee In all ts activihes, the
Remuneration Committee has adopted the pnnciples of good
governance as set out in the Combined Code and complies
with the Listing Rules of the Financial Services Authonty, the
relevant schedules of the Companies Act and the Directors’
Remuneration Report Regulations 2002 These regulations
require the Company’s auditors to report on the ‘Audited
information’ In the report and to state that this section has
been properly prepared in accordance with the regulations

For this reason the report is dwded into audited and unaudited
nformation The Remuneration report 1s subject to shareholder
approval at the Annual General Meeting (AGM) on 9 July 2008

Part 1: Unaudited information

Remuneration Committee

Who makes up the Remuneration Committee®
Dunng 2007/08, the Committee compnsed the following
non-executive directors

¢ Louse Patten (Committee Chairman),

= Martha Lane Fox {appointed on 1 June 2007),
* Steven Holiiday,

¢ Sir David Michels, and

* Jack Keenan (retired on 10 July 2007)

There were five meetings of the Committee duning the year
under review and attendance at the meetings I1s detailed n
the Corporate governance statement on page 43

What 1s the remit of the Remuneration Commuittee?

The Committee has a remit covenng the total remuneration
of the executive directors of the Company, ensunng that the
most talented indwviduals are recruted motivated to deliver
results and retaned The remit includes the following

= setting the senior remuneration strategy and framework
for the top levels in the organisation,

* ensunng that executive directors and senior managers
are farly rewarded for therr indwvidual performance and
contnbution to the overall Company results,

* reviewing and approving the remuneration and terms and
conditions of employment, including any termnations, for
executive directors and senior managers,

* approving the design and targets for any annual incentive
schemes that include the executive directars and senior
managers,

* agreeing the design and targets, where applicable, of all
share incentive plans for approval by shareholders, and

* assessing the appropriateness and subsequently the
achievement of performance targets related to any
share incentve plan

The Committee takes into account the financtal and
commercial health of the organmisation when considenng
s approach to total remuneration The Commuittee has
apponted Hewitt New Bndge Street as external advisors
and mwites internal support from the Company Charman,
Chef Executive, Group Secretary and Head of Senior
Remuneration The Charrman and Chief Executive ara
not present for any discussions that relate directly to

thewr own pay and benefit awards

The Committee regularly reviews external data produced
through a number of surveys and bespoke benchmarking
data, including those published by Hewitt New Bndge Street,
Monks PwC, Towers Pernn and Watson Wyatt

What 1s our remuneration framework?

The remuneration framework 1s simple and transparent, aligning
the reward of our executive directors and senior managers io
that of shareholtiers through a package highly geared towards
share incentive plans The key components are

¢ salary and benefits,

¢ Annual Bonus Scheme with a compulsory deferred share
element, and

¢ Performance Share Plan (PSP)

The following charts show the balance of the package spit
between pay at nsk and fixed pay for on-target and maxmum
performance The Committee considers that the balance of
fixed and vanable pay Is appropnate to the external market

Expected value of future annual remuneration package for executive directors

'‘On-target’ performance

S\

1 Long term incentives 46%
2 Salary 36%

3 Annual cash bonus 9%
4 Pansion 9%

‘Maximum’ performance

N

1 Long-term mncentves 77%

2 Satary 10% |

3 Annual cash bonus 10% |

4 Ponsion 3% |
|

The value placed on long term ncentves compnses the expectad cash value 10 executves afier three years disoounted back to ds presant value of {if bonus computsonly
defarred into shares and (i) performance shares awardad under the Performanca Shars Plan
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What are the pay and benefits received by the Board?
Chairman's remuneration

The Chief Executive and other members of the Board determine
the Charrman’s salary It reflects the level of commitment and
responsibility of the role The fee has not increased since

1 Apni 2007 (£450,000, as reported in last year's Remuneration
report) The Chaimman used approximately 25% of his net fees to
purchase shares in the Company up to and induding March 2008

The Charman does not receive any other benefits except
employee product discount and the provision of a dnver and
fleet vehicle

Non-executive directors’ remuneration

The fees for non-executive directors are determined by

the Chairman and executve directors and are paid in cash
The levels are set to ensure the Company attracts individuals
with the necessary key skills and expenence, recognising the
responsibility and time commtment required to complete

the roles The fees are not performance related and are not
pensionable The fees compnse

¢ Basic annual fee £55,000
* Committee Charman £12 000"
¢ Committee membership £6 000"

Auciit and Remuneration Commitiees only

The emoluments table on page 53 reflects the fees paid
dunng the year to each non-executive director There are
no other benefits except employee product discount

Executive directors’ remuneratton

Salanes and benefits are determined by the Remuneration
Committee Basic salary i1s normally reviewed annually and any
increase awarded from 1 January The Commuttee takes into
account a number of factors when reviewing these, including

* salary levels in comparably-sized FTSE 100 companies and
major retalers,

¢ economic chmate, market conditions and Company performance,
» the levet of pay awards in the rest of the business, and
* the role and responsibility of the individual directors

As part of the annual review process, in January 2008, Sir
Stuart Rose, lan Dyson and Steven Sharp recewved an increase
based on the above factors No further increases have been
made to Sir Stuart Rose or Steven Sharp as a result of the
Board changes announced in March 2008 However lan
Dyson receved an additional increase due to his expanded
responsibilities as Group Finance and Operations Director,
effective 10 March 2008

MARKS AND SPENCER GROUP ALC 49

Kate Bostock and Steven Esom were both appointed to the
Board on 10 March 2008 and their current salanes are shown
together with all other executive directors in the Contract terms
table on page 51

All the executive directors receive a 25% salary supplement

in beu of pension  Life assurancs for executive directors who
are nat in the Group’s Pension Schemes Is provided through

a separate policy and the value of this benefit 1s iIncluded in the
emoluments table, under Cash allowance and benefits on page 53

Other benefits include a car or car allowance and dnver and
are shown as part of the Cash allowance and benefits n the
emoluments table Employee product discount is also recerved
but no specffic value 1s placed on this all-employee benefit

What are the current short-term and long-term incentive
schemes?

Annual Bonus Scheme - short-term incentive

Deferred Share Bonus Plan - long-term incentive

The Annual Bonus Scheme is reviewed each year and
designed to dnve profitability and sales across the whole
organisation The bonus potential for executive directors Is
60% of salary for on-target performance and 250% of salary
for maximum performance There is a compulsory deferral of
any bonus paid nto shares for all senior managers Further
details of the Deferred Share Bonus Plan can be found in
note 12 to the financial statements on page 75

Bonus scheme outcome of 2007/08

The targets set for 2007/08 were extremely challenging n

a very difficult trading year for retallers As a result, the very
stretching Corporate Profit Before Tax (PBT) target set at the
start of the year was not reached and therefore the executve
directors will not recerve any bonus payment under this
schems n 2008 Some senior managers and other employees
in Head Office and Retail will receive a bonus as they have
delivered local sales and profit targets in accordance with the
scheme rules

Bonus scheme for 2008/09

The scheme remains in principle unchanged, with bonus
potentials still at 60% to 250% of salary for executive directors
Sir Stuart Rose, lan Dyson and Steven Sharp will continue

to be measured entirely on PBT targets Kate Bostock and
Steven Esom will have bonus targets based 50% on PBT, with
the remaining 50% based on the achievement of profit and
sales In their respective business areas 1 e clothing and food

Performance Share Plan (PSP) - Long-term incentive
This remains the pnmary long-term incentive for the ‘“Top 100°
managers in the organisation The plan normally allows for
awards up 10 200% of salary, although up to 400% of salary
may be awarded to recognise exceptional performance or

to address key retention issues
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Remuneration report

continued

The performance targets are based on adjusted earnings
per share (EPS) over a three-year penod EPS has shown
substantial growth over the time since the first grants were
made in July 2005 The first awards under this plan will
vest in full in July 2008 as the Company has significantly
outperformed the challenging EPS targets that were set

The Committee has reviewed the use of alternative
performance measures but considers that EPS 1s still the
most effective measure of management performance, in
addition to being smple to understand and a transparent
measure of the Company’s success and shareholder return

In 2007, four awards were made In excess of 200% of salary,
recognising exceptional performance The Committee 1s kkely
to award a very small number over 200% in 2008 to ensure
retention of key Individuals

The targets for 2008 awards have been set by the
Remuneration Commuttee following consuttation with our

10 largest investors, in addition to the ABIl and RREV The
pnnciple of spitting the performance targets as adopted last
year will continue, with any element of an award over 200%
having a more stretching target While the Company's financial
performance continued to improve in 2007/08, and we are
confident 1n its long-tenm growth prospects, the short-term
economic outlook means that it 1s kely to be much more
difficult to achigve such high growth in the next few years

To this end, the Committee considers that the EPS ranges

set for the 2008 awards arg at least as challenging as the
previous EPS ranges were when they were set Before any
2008 PSP awards in excess of 200% of salary vest, the
Committee will first satisfy itself that 1t Is reasonable to approve
vesting of the awards, taking nto account the Company's
actual performance over the three-year performance penod
as well as EPS performance The targets for alf awards are

Average Annual EPS Growth
n excess of Inflabon (RPY)

Adpstsd EPS for
Award 20% vesting 100% vestng  stan of scheme’
2005 8% 15% 222p
2006 5% 12% 314p
20072 4% 10% 40 4p
20072 4% 12% 40 4p
2008? 3% 6% 43 6p
2008° 3% 8% 43 6p

1 The base EPS figure for 2005 Awards was 23 5p, which was the adpssted EPS
figure for 2004/05 on a profonma basis The figure has been restated to 22 2p
&s the Group 18 now reporting under IFRS Full detaRs of EPS are descnbed n
nate B 1o the financial siatements on page 66 of the Annual report

2 Awards up to 200% of salery

3 Awards between 200% and 400% of salary

Executive Share Option Scheme - Long-term incentive

No grants have been awarded under the Executive Share
Option Scheme for the year under review Whilst the Company
can stil make awards under the scheme adopted at the 2005
AGM, there Is no Intention currently to use the scheme on
aregular basis The Committee will review the use of the
scheme and may grant awards i it is appropnate to do so

The final outstanding options will vest in full In June 2008
having achieved ther EPS targets The targets were based
on adjusted EPS growth measured from the date of grant
to the most recent financial year end as follows

* RPI plus an average of 3% per annum for 50% of each
grant, and

* RPI plus an average of 4% per annum for the remaining
50% of each grant

Executive directors {excluding Steven Esom) have options
granted in 2004 under the 2002 scheme which met their
targets n 2007 and are exercisable in full as shown in the
table on page 55

All-Employee Share Schemes - Long-term incentive
The Company has offered a Save As You Earn (SAYE)
scheme cafled Sharesave since 1981 The scheme was
renewed by shareholders at the 2007 AGM for a further
10 years Executive directors can also participate in this
scheme Details of participation by executive directors in
Sharesave are given in part 2 of this report

The scheme 1s subject to HMRC rules which it the maximum
amount saved to £250 per month When the savings contract
1$ started, options are granted to acquire the number of shares
that the total savings will buy when the contract matures, at

a discounted pnice set at the start of the scheme Options
cannot normally be exercised until a minimum of three years
has elapsed

What are the current service contracts and terms

of employment?

Chairman

Lord Burns was appointed Chairman on 11 July 2006, and will
retire from the Board on 31 May 2008 His service agreement
requires 12 months' notice from the Company The agreement
contains a phased payment clause in Iine with executive
directors’ contracts
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Deputy Chairman

Sir David Michels i1s appointed Deputy Chairman with effect from 1 June 2008, and walt continue In his role as Senior Independent
Drrector On appointment to his new role, Sir David will have an agreement for serce which requires six months’ notice by etther
party (currently three meonths)

Non-executive directors

The non-executive directors have agreements with the Company for an initial three-year term, which are terminable on three
months' notice by either party Jack Keenan retired from the Board on 10 July 2007 Martha Lane Fox joined the Board on

1 June 2007

Executive directors
Sir Stuart Rose Is appointed Executive Charrman wath effect from 1 June 2008

All senior managers, including executive directors, have service contracts ‘These contracts can be terminated by the Company
giving 12 months’ notice and by the employee giving six months' notice Sir Stuart Rose will remain on the same contract terms
when he 1s appointed Executive Chairman

The Company retains the nght to terminate the contract of any executive director summarily, in accordance with the terms of therr
semice agreement, on payment of a sum equivalent to the contractual notice entitlement of 12 months' salary and specified benefits
In the case of all current executive directors, the Company reserves the nght on termunation to make phased payments which are
pad in monthly instalments and subject to mihigation Entrtiement to participate in share schemes ceases on tesmination

Contract terms and current annual salaries/fees for all members of the Board

Committee Commultee Current annual

Date of Notxce panod/ Basic salary/fee’ member fee char/SID fee salary/lee
Neme appointment unexpwed term £000 £000 £000 £000
Chairman
Lord Burns 01/10/05 12 mths/6 mths 450 - - 450
Chief Executive
Sir Stuart Rose 31/05/04 12 mths/6 mths 1,130 - - 1,130
Executive directors
Kate Bostock 10/03/08 12 mths/6 mths 500 - - 500
lan Dyson 27/06/05 12 mths/6 mths 675 - - 675
Steven Esom 10/03/08 12 mths/6 mths 535 - - 535
Steven Sharp 08/11/05 12 mths/6 mths 565 - - 565
Non-executive directors
Jeremy Darroch 01/02/06 3 mths/3 mths 55 6 12 73
Martha Lane Fox 01/06/07 3 mths/3 mths 55 12 - 67
Steven Holliday 15/07/04 3 mths/3 mths 55 12 - 67
Sir David Michels? 01/03/06 3 mths/3 mths 55 12 12 79
Louse Patten 01/02/06 3 mths/3 mths 55 6 12 73

¥ From 1 January 2008 for Sir Stuart Rose and Steven Sharp and 10 March 2008 for Kate Boslock lan Dyson and Steven Esom

2 Sir David Michel s basic fee wil increase to £245 000 per annum on 1 June 2008 on his appoiniment to Deputy Chaiman Ths fee Is inchusve of al commitiea membersheps
and his contnung role as Senir independent Drector (n addition the notce penod for his agreement will increase to six months for both parties

What i1s the shareholding policy for executive directors?

The cument shareholding policy for executive directors was introduced from 1 June 2002 All executive directors are required
to hoid a defined percentage of salary (200% for Chief Exacutive and 100% for all other executive directors) wathin a five-year
pencd from therr date of appointment The relevant salary i1s at date of appointment and the share market value 1s measured

at the current date Currently, all executive directors have either met, or are on target to meet, therr required shareholding
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Remuneration report

continued

What are the directors’ interests in the Company?

The beneficial interests of the directors and connected persons in the shares of the Company are shown below Options granted
under the SAYE scheme and the Executive Share Options Scheme and shares awarded under the Deferred Share Bonus Plan
and Performance Share Plan are shown in Part 2 of this report Further information regarding employee share option schemes is
given in note 12 to the financial statements starting on page 75 of the Annual report

There have been no other changes in the directors’ interests i shares or options granted by the Company and s subsidianes hetween
the end of the financial year and 6 May 2008, one month pnor to the Notice of the Annual General Meeting, other than that noted
below in respect of Lord Burns No director had an interest m any of the Company's subsidianes at the beginning or end of the vear

Name Ordinary shares as at 28 March 2008 Oranary shares as al 1 Apné 2007 or at date of appaintment

Kate Bostock 71,086 71,086
Lord Burns' 46,951 12,275
Jeremy Darroch 2,000 2.000
tan Dyson 100,000 60,000
Steven Esom 24,360 24,360
Martha Lane Fox 15,000 -
Steven Holliday 2,500 2,500
Sir Dawd Michels 28,750 4,000
Louise Patten 8,000 8,000
Sir Stuart Rose 750,416 500 416
Steven Sharp 83,643 28,473

1 Lord Burns bought 3 856 sharas on 1 Apni 2008 uncer the terms of hes appontment being the purchase of sharps on a quarterly basis using approxmately 25% of s net
fee from the Company increasing his shareholdng to 50,807 ordnary shares

What are the executive directors’ external appomntments?

The Company recognises that executive directors may be invited to become non-executive directors of other companies and
that such appointments can broaden their knowledge and expenence, to the benefit of M&S The indwvidual director retains the
fee Below are the details of the executive directors’ external appointments

Fee Company
Steven £som £49,500  Carphone Warehouse Group plc
Sir Stuart Rose £55,000 Land Secunties Group pic
Steven Sharp £21,771 Adnams plc

Performance graph
This graph Hlustrates the performance of the Company against the FTSE 100 over the past five years The FTSE 100 has been
chosen as It 1s a recognised broad equity market index of which the Company has been a member throughout the period

Performance, as required by legislation, 15 measured by Total Shareholder Return which is share price growth plus any dvidends paid

300
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50
0
29 Mar 03 JApr 04 2800 05 1 A0 0o 3% Msr 07 29 Mar 08
Tha above greph 00%s 81 the vatue 82 29 March 2008 of £100 westad n Merks 3nd Spencer Group on 28 March 2003 cormpared wh The valua of €100 nvesied 1 ine FTSE 100 Indax over e
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Part 2: Audited information

1 Directors’ emoluments

Cash
Salary/ atowancs Total Total
198 and benchts® Bonus 2008 2007
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Chairman
Lord Burns 450 3 - 453 339
Chief Executive
Sir Stuart Rose' . 1,070 305 - 1,375 2,302
Executive directors
Kate Bostock? 32 7 - 39 -
fan Dyson® 542 156 - 698 1,151
Steven Esom* 34 10 250 294 -
Steven Sharp® 535 166 - 7N 1,165
Non-executive directors
Jeremy Darroch 73 - - 73 61
Martha Lane Fox 56 - - 56 -
Steven Holliday 67 - - 67 60
Sir David Michels” 79 - - 79 68
L.ouise Patten 73 - - 73 58
Directors retinng from the Board during the year
Jack Keenan? 22 - - 22 68
Former directors® - - - 262 251
Total 3,033 647 280 4,192 5,523

1 Su Stuart Rose recewved a satary ncrease from £1 050 000 1o £1 130 00C eflectve from 1 January 2008 Ne bonus was eamed in 2007/08

2 Kate Bostock wes promoted {0 the Board on 10 March 2008 at a salary of £500 000 No bonus was earned as an executve tirector in 2007/08 under the Annual Borus
Schema £280 000 was earmed In 2007/08 pnor to her appantment to the Board as part of a three year cash bonus ratention arangement If eamed the remaning two
nstaiments of this bonus arrangement wil be paid in 2008/09 and 2009/10 Her Cash atowance and benefits include a 25% suppierment on her salary eamed above the
Pension Scheme cap as she was a8 member of the Retirement Plan dunng the year In addition the Compeny s contnbution into the Retirement Plan for 2007/08 for the
penod when she was an executive director was £1 153

3 ian Oyson receved a salary increass from £525 000 to £565 000 effective from 1 January 2008 On 10 March 2008 his salary was ncreased to £675 000 to reflect his
ncreased responsibiiites as Group Finance and Operations Director No bonus was eamed n 2007/08

4 Sieven Esom was promoted {0 the Board on 10 March 2008 at a salary of £535 000 No bonus was eamed as an executive drector in 2007/08 under the Annual Bonus
Scheme A ona-off bonus of £500 000 was sarmed n 2007/08 as part of his contraciual agreement on recrutment of which 50% s daferrad nto shares for Bvee years
These shares wi be grantecs on 8 June 2008

5 Steven Sharp recewed a salary ncrease from £525,000 to £565 000 effectve from 1 January 2008 No bonus was earned in 2007/08

& The slerments nciuded m the Cash allowance and benehis column of the table ane described m deatal n the Executive drectars: remuneration $8Cton on page 49 and have
beon audited

7 In addition to the fees disciosed in the above table the Company meets a dua proportion of Sr Dewvd Michel's general oftice and administration costs that relate 1o s
Marks and Spencer Board dutes in the year under revew this amounted to C10 000 This arangement will cease on hus appointment 1o Deputy Chasman on 1 June 2008

8 Jack Keenan retred from the Board on 10 July 2007

8 The total lor 2006/07 ncludad the cost of supplying 8 dnver and fleet vehicle 1o ex-Charman Paul Myners For 2007/08 the costs incutred by the Company wera nd

10 The £262 DOO in 2008 (£251 000 n 2006} relates to paymants to former diractors under the Early Retirement Plan Under this plan, the Remuneraton Cormmttee could
at Its dscretion, offer an unfunded Eearly Retrement Pension separate from the Company pension which was payable from the date of retirement to age 80 With ettect from
31 March 2000 the Early Retrement Plan was withdrawn but payments continue for awartds made before this date

The former directors are James Benfieid who raceved £82 148 (£78 888 in 2007) payable uniit 22 Aprl 2009 and Derek Hayes who recened £78 422 (£73 202 n 2007)
payable until 19 Novernber 2008

Tha pension scheme enbtiament for Cinton Séver 18 supplemented by an addonal unfunded pension paxd by the Company which for 2008, was £10G 233 (€88 873 n 2007)
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Remuneration report

continued

2 Directors’ interests in long-term incentive schemes
Directors’ Share Schemes

recevable at Maumym Markat
31 March Shares Shares shares vahg
2007 or awarded vested receivable at on date Earliest
Oate of date of dunng duang 29 March of award data ot
award  appontment the year the year 2008 o vestng
Chief Executive
Sir Stuart Rose
Performance Share Plan* 25/07/05 473,868 - - 473,868 35875 25/07/08
19/07/06 663,755 - - 663,755 5725 19/07/09
05/06/07 ~ 594,395 — 594,395 7066 05/06/10
Deferred Share Bonus Plar? 05/06/06 35,125 - - 35125 5500 05/06/09
05/06/07 - 222,898 - 222,898 7066 (05/06/10
Total 1,172,748 817,293 - 1,990,041
Executive directors
Kate Bostock
Performance Share Plan' 25/07/05 117,073 - - 117,073 35875 25/07/08
19/07/06 157,205 - - 157,205 5725 19/07/09
05/06/07 169,827 - - 169,827 7066 05/06/10
Deferred Share Bonus Plan? 05/06/06 25,404 - - 25,404 5500 05/06/09
05/06/07 28,985 - - 28,985 7066 05/06/10
Total 498,494 - - 498,494
lan Dyson
Performance Share Plan' 25/07/05 234,146 - - 234,146 35875 25/07/08
19/07/06 331,878 - - 331,878 5725 19/07/09
05/06/07 - 297,197 - 297,197 7066 05/06/10
Deferred Share Bonus Plan? 05/06/06 48,579 - - 48,579 5500 05/06/09
05/06/07 - 111,448 - 111,449 706 6 05/06/10
Total 614,603 408,646 - 1,023,249
Steven Esom
Performance Share Pian' 05/06/07 141,522 - - 141,522 7066 05/06/10
Restricted Share Plan® 05/06/07 70,761 - - 70,761 7066 05/06/10
Total 212,283 - - 212,283
Steven Sharp
Performance Share Plan’ 25/07/05 234,146 - - 234,148 35875 25/07/08
18/07/06 331,878 - -~ 331,878 5725 19/07/09
05/06/07 - 297,197 - 297197 7066 085/06/10
Deferred Share Bonus Plan? 05/06/06 64,772 - - 64,772 5500 05/06/09
05/06/07 - 111,449 - 111,449 7066 05/06/10
Restricted Share Plan® 24/06/05 90,000 - 90,000 - 3520 24/07/07
Total 720,796 408,646 90,000 1,039,442

1 The number of performance shares 15 the maximum (100%) of the award that couki be recervable by the director I the EPS performance conditions are fully met as outhned

on page 50

2 Rl detasts of the Deferred Share Bonus Plan are set out In note 12 to the finanaial statements on page 75
3 Steven Sharp and Steven Esom were awarded these shares befora they were appointed exacutve drectors Steven Sharp s shares vestad on 24 July 2007 at & markst price

of 642 5p Full details of the Restricted Share Plan are set out ;1 note 12 1o the tnanaat statements on page 75

There have boen no lapses for any of ihe above plans dunng ths financial year
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2 Dwrectors’ interests in long-term incentive schemes continued
Drirectors' Share Option Schemes

racaivable at Optons  Maximum

Dete of data ot qunng dumng at 29 March pnce Opton
grant appantment the ysar the year 2008 (] penod
Chief Executive
Sir Stuart Rose
Executive Share Option Scheme' 20/07/04 979,825 - - 979,825 3470 20/07/07-19/07/14
SAYE 25/11/05 4,613 - ~ 4613 3490 01/01/11-30/06/11
Total 984,438 - ~ 984,438
Executive directors
Kate Bostock
Executive Share Option Schema' 24/11/04 249,627 - - 249,627 3365 24/11/07-23/11/14
SAYE 25/11/05 2.679 - - 2,679 3490 01/01/09-30/06/09
Total 252,306 - - 252,306
lan Dyson
SAYE 25/11/05 4613 - - 4613 3490 01/01/11-30/06/11
Total 4,613 - - 4613
Steven Esom
SAYE 23M11/07 1,856 - - 1,858 517 ¢ 01/01/11-30/06/11
Total 1,856 - - 1,856
Steven Sharp
Executive Share Option Scheme! 20/07/04 302,593 - - 302,593 3470 20/07/07-19/07/14
24/11/04 104,010 - - 104,010 3365 24/11/07-23/11/14
SAYE 25/11/05 2,679 - - 2,679 3490 01/01/09~-30/06/09
Total 409,282 - - 409,282

1 The Executive Share Optons have all been heid for three years and can be exertised under the scheme rulgs, the option pnce 1s below the market value on 28 March 2008 for all
optons the performance criena attachad 1o the Executive Share Options Schema 1s descnbed on page 50

Thers have beon no exercises or tapses for any of the above schemes dunng this financial year
The markst pnoe of the shares at the eni of the financsal year was 396 25p the highest anct lowest shars poes dunng the tnancial yeer were 748 Op and 356 25p respectively

For both the Dx [ i long term wncentive schemes tables the explanation of the performance cntena atlached to the Performance Share Pian and the Executve
Share Option Scheme on page 50 have been audited

Approved by the Board

Louise Patten, Charman of the Remuneration Committee
London

19 May 2008
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56 MARKS AND SPENCER GROUP PLC

Auditors’ report

Independent auditors report to the members of

Marks and Spencer Group plc

We have audited the group and parent company financial
statements (the ‘financial statements') of Marks and Spencer
Group plc for the year ended 29 March 2008 which compnse
the Consolidated and Company incoms statements, the
Consolidated and Company balance shests, the Consolidated
and Company cash flow statements, the Consolidated
statement of recognised mcome and expense, the Company
statement of changes in shareholders’ equity and the

related group and parent company notes These financial
staternents have been prepared under the accounting policies
set out therein We have also audrted the information in the
Remuneration report that is descnbed as having been audited

Respechve responsibilities of directors and auditors

The directors’ responsibilities for prepanng the Annual report,
the Remuneration repart and the financial statements in
accordance with applicable law and International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European
Union are set out In the Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities

Our responsibility 1s to audit the financial statements

and the part of the Remuneration report to be audited in
accordance with relevant legal and regulatory requirements
and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland)
Thus report, including the opinion, has been prepared for and
only for the Company’s members as a body in accordance
with Section 235 of the Companies Act 1985 and for no other
purpose We do not, In giving this opinion, accept or assume
responsibility for any other purpose or to any other person to
whom this report 1s shown or into whose hands it may come
save where expressly agreed by our prior consent in writing

We report to you our opinion as to whether the financial
statements give a true and far view and whether the financial
statements and the part of the Remuneration report to be
audited have been property prepared in accordance wath

the Companies Act 1985 and, as regards the Group financial
statements, Article 4 of the IAS Regulation We also report to
you whether in our opinion the information given in the Group
Directors’ report 1s consistent with the financial statements
The nformation given In the Group Directors’ report includes
that specific information presented in Key performance
indicators and Business review that i1s cross referred from
the Business review section of the Group Directors’ report

in addition we report to you If, in our opinton, the Company has
not kept proper accountng records, if we have not received alt
the information and explanations we require for our auds, or i
information specified by law regarding directors’ remuneration
and other transactions I1s not disclosed

We review whether the Corporate governance statement
reflects the Company’s compliance with the nine provisions
of the Combined Code (2006) specified for our review by
the Listing Rules of the Financial Services Authenty, and we
report if it does not We are not required to consider whether
the Board's statements on internal control cover all nsks

and controls, or form an opirion on the effectiveness of the
Group’s corporate governance procedures or its nsk and
control procedures

We read other information contained in the Annual repont
and consider whether it 1s consistent with the audited
financial statements The other information compnses

only the Key performance mdicators, the Business review,
the Financial review, the Corporate governance statement,
the unaudited part of the Remuneration report, the Group
financial record and the Shareholder information We consider
the implications for our report if we become aware of any
apparent misstatements or matenal inconsistencies with
the financial statements Qur responsibilities do not extend
to any other information

Basis of audit opiniocn

We conducted our audit n accordance with International
Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) 1ssued by the Auditing
Practices Board An audit includes examination, on a test
basts, of enidence relevant to the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements and the part of the Remuneration
report to be audited It also includes an assessment of the
significant estmates and judgments made by the directors

in the preparation of the financial statements, and of whether
the accounting policies are appropnate to the Group's and
Company's circumstances, consistently applied and
adequately disclosed

We planned and performed our audit o as to obtan all
the information and exptanations which we considered
necessary in order to provide us wath sufficient evdence
to give reasonable assurance that the financial statements
and the part of the Remuneration report to be audited are
free from matenal misstatement, whether caused by fraud
or other iregulanty or error In forming our opiNion we also
evaluated the overall adequacy of the presentation of
information in the financial statements and the part of the
Remuneration report to be audited

Opinion
in our opinion

« the financial statements give a true and fair view, In
accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European Union,
of the state of the Group’s and the Parent Company's affars
as at 29 March 2008 and of the Group's and the Parent
Company's profit and cash flows for the year then ended,

the financial statements and the part of the Remuneration
report to be audited have been propery prepared In
accordance with the Companies Act 1985 and, as
regards the group financial statements, Article 4 of the
IAS Regulation, and

the informatioh given in the Group Directors' report
1s consistent with the financial statements

Z [F PN MW
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Registered Auditors
London
19 May 2008
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Consolidated income statement

52 woeks 52 wooks
ended onded
29 March 31 March
2008 2007
Notes £m £m
Revenue - continuing operations 23 90220 85881
Operating profit — continuing operations 23 1,2113 1,045¢9
Finance income 5 644 338
Finance costs 5 (146 6) (143 0)
Analysed between
Before exceptional finance costs 5 (146 6) (1126
Excepttonal finance costs - (30 4)
Profit on ordinary activities before taxation - continuing operations ¢ 1,1291 936 7
Analysed between
Before property disposals and exceptional tems 1,007 1 965 2
Profit on property disposals 3 270 19
Exceptional pension credit 2 11 950 -
Exceptional finance costs 5 - (30 4}
income tax expense 6 (308 1) (277 5)
Profit on ordinary activities after taxation - continuing operations 8210 659 2
Profit from discontinued operation 7 - o7
Profit for the year 8210 6599
Attnbutable to
Equity shareholders of the Company 8217 659 9
Minonty interests 07) -
8210 6599
Basic earnings per share BA 49 2p 39 1p
Diluted earmings per share 88 48 7p 38 5p
Basic earnings per share from continuing operations 8A 49 2p 39 1p
Diluted earnings per share from contimuing operations 88 48 7p 38 5p
Non-GAAP measure
Adjusted profit before taxation (Em) 1 1,007 1 9865 2
Adjusted basic earnings per share from continuing operations BA 43 6p 40 4p
Adjusted diluted earmings per share from continuing operations 88 43 2p 36 8p

Consolidated statement of recognised

income and expense

MBIAB) SSBUISNG

52 weeks 52 weeks
ended ended
29March 31 Margh
2008 2007
£m £m
Profit for the year 8210 659 9
Foreign currency translation differences 213 (14 0)
Actuanal gans/{losses) on retirement benefit asset/deficit 6054 86
Cash flow and net investment hedges
- losses deferred in equiy (33 5) 74
- recycled and reported in net profit 13 107
- amount recognised In inventones 24 21
Tax on tems taken directly to equity {1857) 245
Net gains not recognised In the ncome statement 4112 73
Total recognised income and expense for the year 1,2322 667 2
Attnbutabie to
Equity shareholders of the Company 1,2329 667 2
Minonty interests (07) -
1,2322 667 2
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Consolidated balance sheet

As at As at
29 March 31 March
2008 2007
Notes £m m
Assets
Non-current assets
Intangible assets 13 3055 194 1
Property, plant and equipment 14 47040 40445
Investment property 15 250 251
Invesiment in joint venture 16 96 93
Other financial assets 17 30 30
Retirement benefit asset 1 5040 -~
Trade and other recevables 18 41090 2470
Denvative financial instruments 22 182 ~
Deferred tax assets 24 - 16
59793 45346
Current assets
Inventones 488 9 4163
Other financial assets 17 488 509
Trade and other receivables 18 3076 196 7
Denvative financial instruments 2 184 24
Cash and cash equivalents 18 3180 1801
1,181 7 8464
Total assets 71610 53810
Liabilities
Current habihities
Trade and other payables 20 9766 10439
Denvative financial nstruments 22 351 83
Borrowings and other financial habilities 21 878 6 4610
Partnership fiability to the Marks & Spencer UK Pension Scheme 21 500 -
Current tax liabiities 376 87 3
Provisions 23 11 57
19889 16062
Non-current habihities
Borrowings and other financial iabiltties 21 19365 12345
Partnershup liability to the Marks & Spencer UK Pension Scheme 21 673 2 496 9
Retirement benefit deficit 1" 205 2833
Trade and other payables 20 191 2 876
Denvative financial tnstruments 2 - 02
Provisions 23 146 168
Deferred tax habilies 24 3721 73
32081 2,1266
Total kabiities 51970 3,7328
Net assets 19640 16482
Equity
Called-up share capital - equity 20 27 396 6 424 9
Share premium account 27 2314 2029
Capital redemption reserve 27 21999 2,1685
Hedging reserve 27 {36 9) {4 4)
Other reserve 27 (6,5422) (6,5422)
Retaned earnings 2r 57079 53971
Total shareholders’ equity 19567 16468
Minonty interests in equity 73 14
Total equity 19640 16482

The financial statements were approved by the Board and authonsed for issue on 13 May 2008 The financial statements also

compnse the notes on pages 60 to 91
Sir Stuart Rose, Chief Executive

lan Dyson, Group Finance and Operations Director 0,{1\'{0\"‘ ’
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Consolidated cash flow information

52 waeks 52 woeks
ended endad
29 March 31 March
2008 2007
Notes £m £m
Consolidated cash flow statement
Cash flows from operating activities
Cash generated from operations
- continuing 298 1,2360 1,4426
~ discontinued 208 - 07
Tax pad {166 2) (150 8)
Net cash inflow from operating activities 10698 1,2925
Cash flows from investing activities
Acquisition of subsidianes, net of cash acqurred 2 (46 9) -
Disposal of subsidiary, net of cash disposed - 488
Caprtal expenditure and financtal investmsnt 20C (924 6) (7128
Interest receved 48 132
Net cash outflow from investing activities (966 2) (650 8)
Cash flows from financing activities
Interest pad (889 (1234
Exceptional nterest paid - {21 6)
Other debt financing 20D 954 5 (479 2)
Equity dwdends paid (343 6) (260 6)
Other equity financing 20E (556 2) 92
Net cash outflow from financing activities 34 2) (875 6)
Net cash infiow/(outflow) from activities 69 4 (233 9)
Effects of exchange rate changes 15 (15)
Opening net cash 470 2824
Closing net cash 30A 1179 470
52 weeks 52 weeks
ended endedt
29 Mach 31 March
2008 2007
£m £m
Reconciliation of net cash flow to movement in net debt
Opening net debt (1,9495) (1,729 3)
Net cash inflow/(cutflow) from activities 694 (233 9)
(Decrease)/increase in current financal assets (2 8) 26
(Increase)/decrease in debt financing (954 5) 4792
Debt financing net of iguid resources disposed with subsidiary - (16 8)
Debt financing net of hquid resources acquired with subsidianes (29 6) -
Far vaiue movement on denvatives - 670
Partnership liability to the Marks & Spencer UK Pension Scheme (non-cash) {199 0} (495 6)
Exchange and other non-cash movements {28 9) 227
Movement in net debt (1,145 4) (220 2)
Closing net debt (3,094 9) (1,949 5)
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1 Accounting policies

Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with international Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as
adopted by the European Union and with those parts of the
Companies Act 1985 applicable to companies reporting
under IFRS

The following IFRS, International Financial Reporting
Interpretations Committee (IFRIC) interpretations and
amendments have been adopted In the financial statements

IFRS 7 - 'Financial Instruments Disclosures' and the
complementary amendment to IAS 1 - ‘Presentation of
Financial Staternents — Capital Disclosures’ were 1ssued in
August 2005 and have introduced revised and additional
disclosures This implementation has had no impact on
the results or net assets of the Group

IFRIC 11 - 'IFRS 2 - Group and Treasury Share Transactions’
was Issued in November 2006 It clanfies the guidance for
applying share-based payment arrangements to the separate
financial statements of each group company It 1s required

to be mplemented by the Group from 30 March 2008

It has had no material impact on the results or net assets

of the Group but has led to a pnor year adjustment in the
Company’s financial statements

IFRIC 14 - ‘The Lim#t on a Defined Benefit Asset, Mimimum
Funding Requirements and their Interaction’ was i1ssued In
July 2007 It limits the recognition of a defined benefit asset
when minimum funding requirements exist within a plan it
was impiemented by the Group from 1 Apnl 2007 and had
no matenal impact on the results or net assets of the Group

The following IFRS, IFRIC interpretations and amendments
have been issued by the International Accounting Standards
Board dunng the year but are not yet effective and have not
been early adopted by the Group

IFRIC 13 ~ ‘Customer Loyalty Programmes’ was issued in
June 2007 It explains how entities that grant loyalty award
credits should account for thetr obligations to provide free
or discounted goods or services to customers who redeem
such award credits 1t is required to be implemented by the
Group from 30 March 2008 and will have no matenal impact
on the results or net assets of the Group

IFRS 3 (Revised) — ‘Business Combinations' was Issued

In January 2008 It addresses the guidance for applying
the acquisition method of accounting It 1s required to be
implemented prospectively by the Group from 4 Apnl 2010

IAS 1 (Revised) — 'Presentation of Financial Statements’ was
issued In January 2008 It affects the presentation of owner
changes in equity and of comprehensive income It does not
change the recognition, measurement or disclosure of specific
transactions and other events required by other IFRS It 1s
required to be implemented by the Group from 29 March 2009

Amendment to IAS 27 (Rewised) - ‘Consolidated and Separate
Financial Statements’ was issued In January 2008 The
amendments refate pnmanly to accounting for non-controling
nterests and the loss of control of a subsidiary It 1s required

to be mplemented by the Group from 4 Apnl 2010

Notes to the financial statements

Marks and Spencer Scottish Limited Partnership has taken
exemption under paragraph 7 of the Partnership and Unlkmited
Companies {Accounts) Regulations 1983 (S| 1993/1820) from
the requirement to prepare and deliver accounts in accordance
with the Companies Act

A summary of the Company’s and the Group's accounting
policies s given below

Accounting convention

The financial statements are drawn up on the histencal cost
basis of accounting, except as disclosed In the accounting
policies set out below

Basss of consolidation

The Group financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of Marks and Spencer Group pic and all

its subsidianes made up to the year-end date Where
necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements
of subsidianes to bang the accounting policies used in ine
with those used by the Group

Subsidiary undsrtakings are all entities over which the
Group has the power to govern the financial and operating
policies generally accompanying a shareholding of more
than one half of the voting nghts Subsichary undertakings
acquired dunng the year are recorded using the acquisition
method of accounting and therr results included from the
date of acquisitron

The separable net assets, both tangtle and intangible of the
newly acquired subsichary undertakings are incorporated into
the financial statements on the basis of the farr value as at
the effective date of control

Results of subsidiary undertakings disposed of dunng the
financial year are included in the financial statements up to
the effective date of disposal Where a business component
representing a separate major Iine of business Is disposed of,
or classified as held-for-sale, 1t 1s classified as a discontinued
operation The post-tax profit or loss of the discontinued
operation is shown as a single amount on the face of the
income statement, separate from the other results of the Group

Intercompany transactions, balances and unrealised gains
on transactions between Group companies are eliminated

Revenue

Revenue compnses sales of goods to customers outside the
Group less an appropnate deduction for actual and expected
returns, discounts and loyalty scheme voucher costs, and is
stated net of Value Added Tax and other sales taxes Sales
of furniture and online sales are recorded on delvery to the
customer

Exceptional items

Exceptional ncome and charges are those items that are
largely one-off In nature and create significant volatility in
reported earnings and are therefore reported separately
In the income statement

Dwvidends

Final dwidends are recorded in the financial statements n
the penod in which they are approved by the Company’s
shareholders Intenm dwvidends are recorded in the period
in which they are approved and pad
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1 Accounting policies continued

Pensions

Funded pension plans are in place for the Group's UK
employees and the majonty of employees overseas The
assets of these pension plans include a property partnership
Interest and vanous equities and bonds The equities and
bonds are managed by third-party investment managers
and are held separately in trust

Regular valuations are prepared by independent professionally
qualfied actuanes in respect of the defined benefit schemes
These determine the lsvel of contnbution required to fund the
benefits set out in the rules of the plans and allow for the
penodic Increase of pensions In payment The service cost

of prownding retirement benefits to employees dunng the year,
together with the cost of any benefits relating to past service,
1$ charged to operating profit in the year

A credit representing the expected return on the assets of the
retrement benefit schemes dunng the year is included within
interest This 1s based on the market value of the assets of the
schemes at the start of the financial year

A charge 1s alsc made within Interest representing the
expected increase in the liabilities of the retrement benefit
schemes duning the year This anses from the habilities of the
schemes being one year closer to payment

The difference between the market value of the assets and
the present value of accrued pension habilities 1s shown as
an asset or liability in the balance sheet Assets are only
recognised if they are recoverable

Actuanal gains and losses are recognised immediately in
the statement of recogrused income and expense

Payments to defined contnbution retirement benefit schemes
are charged as an expense as they fall due

Intangible assets

A Goodwill

Goodwill ansing on consolidation represents the excess of the
cost of acquisitions over the Group's interest in the fair value of
the identifiable assets and liabilities (including intangtble assets)
of the acquired entity at the date of the acquistion Goodwill is
recognised as an asset and assessed for imparrment at least
annually Any impairrment is recognised immediately in the
income statement

Upon disposal of a subsiciary the attnbutable goodwill 15
included in the calculation of the profit or loss ansing on
disposal Goodwill written off to reserves under UK GAAP pnor
to 31 March 1998 has not been reinstated and 1s not included
In determining any subsequent profit or loss on disposal

B Brands

Acqgutred brand values are held on the balance sheet at cost
and amortised on a straight-lne basis over ther estimated
useful ives Any impairment in value 1s recognised immediately
in the income statement

C Software intangibles

Where computer software 1s not an integral part of a

related tem of computer hardware, the software is treated
as anintangible asset Capitabsed software costs include
external direct costs of matenal and serces and the payroll
and payroll-related costs for employees who are directly
associated with the project

MARKS AND SPENCER GROUP PLC 61

Caprtalised software development costs are amortised on a
straight-ine basts over their expected economic lives, normally
between three to {ive years

Property, plant and equipment

A Land and buildings

The Group's policy is to state property. plant and equipment at
cost less accumulated depreciation and not to revalue property
for accounting purposes

B Interest
Interest 1s not caprtalised

C Depreciation ‘
Depreciation is provided to wnite off the cost of tangible non-
current assets {including investment properties), less estmated
residual values, by equal annual instalments as follows

= freehold land - not depreciated,

» freehold and leasehold buldings with a remamning lease term
over 50 years — depreciated to their residual value over therr
estimated remaining economic lives,

¢ leasehold buildings with a remaining lease term of less
than 50 years — over the remaining perod of the lease, and

s fixtures, fithings and equipment —~ 3 to 25 years according
{o the estimated Iife of the asset

Residual values and useful economic lives are reviewed annually
Depreciation Is charged on all additions to, or disposals of,
depreciating assets in the year of purchase or disposal Any
impairment In value 1s charged to the income statement

D Assets held under leases

Where assets are financed by leasing agreements where
the nisks and rewards are substantially transferred to the
Group (finance leases) the assets are treated as If they had
been purchased outright, and the corresponding iiability
to the leasing company s included as an obhgation under
finance leases Depreciation on leased assets 1s charged
to the ncome statement on the same basts as owned
assets Leasing payments are treated as consisting of
capital and interest elements and the interest s charged
to the mcome statement

All other leases are operating leases and the costs in respect
of operating leases are charged on a straight-lne basis over
the lease term The value of any lease incentive received ta
take on an operating lease {for example, rent-free penods) 1s
recognised as deferred income and 1s released over the life
of the lease

Investment properties
Investment properties are recorded at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any recognised imparment 10sS

Leasehold prepayments

Payments made to acquire leasehold land are included
in prepayments at cost and are amortised over the life
of the lease

Share-based payments

The Group tssues equity-settied share-based payments to
certain employees A farr value for the equity-settled share
awards 1s measured at the date of grant The Group measures
the farr value of each award using the Black-Scholes model
where appropnate
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Notes to the financial statements

continued

1 Accounting policies continued

The tair value of each award i1s recognised as an expense over
the vesting penod on a straight-ine basts, after allowing for an
estimate of the share awards that will eventually vest The level
of vesting 1s reviewed annually, and the charge Is adjusted to
reflect actual and estimated levels of vesting

Inventones

Inventones are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable
value using the retaill method, which is computed on the
basis of selling price less the appropnate trading margin

All inventones are finished goods

Foreign currencies

The results of overseas subsidianes are translated at the
weighted average of monthly exchange rates for sales and
profits The balance sheets of overseas subsidianes are
translated at year end exchange rates The resulting exchange
differences are dealt with through reserves and reported in the
consolhdated statement of recognised income and expense

Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are translated
at the exchange rate at the date of the transaction Foreign
currency assets and habiiies held at the balance sheet date
are translated at the closing balance sheet rate The resulting
exchange gain or l0ss 1s recognised within the income statement

Taxation
The tax charge compnses current tax payable and deferred tax

The current tax charge represents an estimate of the amounts
payable to tax authonties in respect of the Group’s taxable
profits and 15 based on an interpretation of existing tax laws

Deferred tax 1s recognised on temporary differences between
the carrying amount of an asset or liabilty in the balance sheet
and its tax base at tax rates that are expected to apply when
the asset is realised or the liabilty settled, based on tax rates
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
balance sheet date

Deferred tax 1s not recognised in respect of
*» the mbal recognition of goodwill that Is not tax deductible, and

* the intial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction
which is not a business combination and at the time of the
transaction does not affect accounting or taxable profits

Deferred tax assets are only recognised when it 1s probable
that taxable profits will be avallable against which the deferred
tax asset can be utiised

Deferred tax liabilites are not provided in respect of
undistnbuted profits of non-UK resident subsidianes where

() the Group 1s able to control the timing of distnbution of such
profits, and (i) t 1s not probable that a taxable distnbution wll
be made in the foreseeable future

Financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are recognised on the Group’s
balance sheet when the Group becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument

A Trade receivables
Trade recewvables are recorded at their nominal amount less
an allowance for any doubtful debts

B Investments and other financial assets

investments and other financial assets are classified as etther
‘available for sale’, ‘farr value through profit or loss’ or ‘held
to matunty’ They are intialy measured at cost, including
transaction costs, with the exception of ‘fair value through
profit and loss' Where secunties are designated as ‘far value
through profit or loss’, gains and losses ansing from changes
in farr value are included in net profit or loss for the penod

For ‘avallable for sale’ nvestments, gains or losses ansing
from changes in far value are recognised directly In equity,
until the secunty 1s disposed of or is determined to be
mparred, at which tme the cumulative gamn or loss previously
recognised in equity 1s iIncluded In the net profit or loss for the
penod Equity mvestments that do not have a quoted market
price in an active market and whose far value cannot be
reliably measured by other means are held at cost ‘Held to
matunty’ investiments are measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method

Investments in subsidianes are held at cost less mpairment
Dwvidends received from the pre-acquisition profits of
subsidianes are deducted from the cost of investment

C Classification of financial habilities and equity

Financial labilities and equity mstruments are classified
according to the substance of the contractual arrangements
entered nto  An equity instrument i1s any contract that
evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Group
after deducting all of its habilities

D Bank borrowings

interest-beanng bank loans and overdrafts are recorded at the
proceeds recewved, net of direct issue costs Finance charges,
including premiums payable on settlement or redemption and
direct 1ssue costs, are accounted for on an effective interest
rate method and are added to the carrying amount of the
instrument to the extent that they are not seitled in the penod
in which they anse

E Loan notes

Long-term loans are held at amortised cost unless the loan
1s hedged by a denvative financial instrument in which case
hedge accounting treatment will apply

F Trade payables
Trade payables are stated at their nominal value

G Equity instruments
Equrty instruments issued by the Company are recorded
at the proceeds receved, net of direct Issue costs

Denvative financial instruments and hedging activities
The Group pnmanly uses interest rate swaps and forward foreign
currency contracts to manage its exposures to fluctuating
interest and foreign exchange rates These instruments are
inmhally recognised at fair value on the trade date and are
subsequently remeasured at thewr farr value at the balance
sheet date The method of recogrusing the resulting gan or
loss 15 dependent on whether the denvative I1s designated as
a hedging nstrument and the nature of the item being hedged
The Group designates certain hedging denvatves as either

¢ a hedge of a highly probable forecast transaction or
change in the cash flows of a recognised asset or llability
{a cash flow hedge},
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1 Accounting policies continued
* a hedge of the exposure to change (n the farr value of
a recognised asset or liability (a far value hedge), or

*» a hedge of the exposure on the translation of net
nvestments in foreign entities {a net nvestment hedge)

Undertying the defirition of fair value ts the presumption that
the Group 1§ a going concern without any intention of matenally
curtaling the scale of ts operations

For those of the Group’s denvatwve instruments stated at far
value, the farr value will be determined by the Group applying
discounted cash flow analysis using quoted market rates as
an input Into the valuation model

In determining the far value of a denvative, the appropnate
quoted market price for an asset held 1s the bid price, and
for a hability 1ssued is the offer price

At inception of a hedging relationship, the hedging instrument
and the hedged tem are documented and prospective
effectiveness testing 1s performed Dunng the kfe of the hedging
relationship, effectiveness testing Is continued to ensure the
instrument remains an effective hedge of the transaction

In order to qualfy for hedge accounting, the following
condtions must be met

¢ formal designation and documentation at inception of
the hedging relatonship, detailing the nsk management
objective and strategy for undertaking the hedge,

s the hedge 1s expected to be highly effective In achieving
offsetting changes in farr value or cash flows attnbutable
to the hedged nisk,

* for a cash flow hedge, a forecast transaction that 1s
the subject of the hedge must be highly probable,

* the effectiveness of the hedge can be reliably measured, and

* the hedge Is assessed on an ongoing basis and determined
actually to have been highly effective throughout its life

A Cash flow hedges

Changes tn the farr value of denvative financial instruments
that are designated and effective as hedges of future cash
flows are recognised directly In equity and any ineffectve portion
1s recognised iImmediately In the income statement i the fim
commitment or forecast transaction that is the subject of a
cash flow hedge results in the recognition of a non-financial
asset or hability, then, at the time the asset or hability 1s
recognised, the associated gains or losses on the denvative
that had previously been recogrised in equity are included in
the mtial measurement of the asset or liability For hedges that
do not resutt in the recognition of an asset or a hability, amounts
deferred i equity are recogrused in the mcome statement n the
same penod in which the hedged nems affect net profit or loss

B Far value hedges

For an effective hedge of an exposure to changes in the farr
value, the hedged item s adjusted for changes In fair value
attnbutable to the nsk being hedged with the corresponding
entry in profit or loss Gains and lossas from re-measunng the
denvate, or for non-denvatives the foreign currency component
of its carrying amount, are recognised i profit or loss
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C Net investment hedges

Changes in the far value of denvative or non-denvative
financial Instruments that are designated and effectve as
hedges of the net investments are recognised directly In
equity and any ineffective portion is recognised immediately
in the income statement

Changes in the farr value of dervative financial instruments
that do not qualfy for hedge accounting are recognised in
the ncome statement as they anse

Hedge accounting is discontinued when the hedging
Instrument expires or I1s sold, temmnated or exercised, or

no longer qualfies for hedge accounting At that time, any
cumulatve gain or loss on the hedging instrument recognised
In equity 1s retained In equity until the forecast transaction
occurs If a hedged transaction is no longer expected to
occur, the net cumulative gain or loss recognised In equity

Is transferred to net profit or loss for the penod

The Group does not use denvatives to hedge income
statement translation exposures

Cntical accounting estimates and judgements

The preparation of consolidated financial statements requires
the Group to make estmates and assumptions that affect
the application of policies and reported amounts Estimates
and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on
histoncal expenence and other factors including expectatons
of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
crcumstances Actual results may differ from these estimates
The estimates and assumptions which have a significant nsk
of causing a matenal adjustment to the carmying amount of
assets and liabilities are discussed below

A Impairment of goodwill

The Group is required 1o test, at least annually, whether
goodwill has suffered any mpairment The recoverable amount
is determined based on value in use calculations The use of
this method requires the estimation of future cash flows and
the chaice of a suitable discount rate m order to calculate the
present value of these cash flows Actual outcomes could vary

B impawrment of property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are reviewed for impaiment
events or changes In circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount may not be recoverable When a review for impairment
1s conducted, the recoverable amount is determined based on
value In use calculations prepared on the basis of management's
assumptions and estimates

C Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Depreciation 1s provided so as to wrte down the assets to therr
residual values over therr estimated useful ives as set out on
page 61 The selection of these residual values and estimated
Iives requires the exercise of management judgement

D Post-retirement benefits

The determination of the pension cost and defined benefit
obligation of the Group’s defined benefit pension schemes
depends on the selection of certan assumptions which include
the discount rate, inflation rate, salary growth, mortality and
expected return on scheme assets Differences ansing from
actual expenences or future changes in assumphons will be
reflected in subsequent penods See note 11 for further details
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64 MARKS AND SPCNCER GROUP PLC

Notes to the financial statements

continued

1 Accounting policies continued

E Refunds and loyalty scheme accruals

Accruals for sales returns and loyalty scheme redemption are estimated on the basis of historical returns and redemptions and
these are recorded 50 as to allocate them to the same penod as the onginal revenue 1s recorded These provisions are reviewed
regularly and updated to reflect management's latest best estimates, however, actuat returns and redemptions could vary from
these estimates

Non-GAAP performance measures

The directors believe that the adjusted profit and earnings per share measures prowde additional useful information for sharsholders
on the underying performance of the business These measures are consistent with how business performance is measured internally
The adjusted profit before tax measure i1s not a recognised profit measure under IFRS and may not be directly comparable with adjusted
profit measures used by other companies The adjustments made to reported profit before tax are to exclude the followang

¢ exceptional ncome and charges - These are largely one-off in nature and therefore create significant volatiity in reported
earnings. and

« profits and losses on the disposal of properties — These can vary significantly from year to year, again creating volatility in
reported eamings

2 Segmental nformation

The Group's pnmary reporting segments are geographic, with the Group operating in two geographic areas being the UK and
Intermational The International segment consists of the Marks & Spencer owned businesses in the Repubiic of Ireland, Hong Kang,
Tawan, Greece, a number of other Balkan states, Switzerland, the Czech Repubiic, Slovakia, Latwvia and Lithuansa, together wath
franchised operations The geographic segments disclose revenus, operating profit and segment assets and liabtites by destination
and reflect management responsibility Within each geographic segment the Group sells both food and general merchandise

and secondary segment disclosure Is given for revenue Given that both food and general merchandise are sold from the same
locations 1t 1S not practical to provide segmental information on operating assets and capital expenditure at this level

The geographsc segment results are as follows

Revenue Operaung profit Segment assets Segment babiiies
2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007
£m tm £m tm £m om £m £m
UK Retail
Before property disposals and
exceptional tems 83091 79775 9729 956 5
Profit on property disposals - - 280 02
Exceptional pension credit’ - - 950 -
83091 79775 1,0959 9567 65144 498384 (1,9280) (1.8114)
International Retail
Owned stores? 4267 3695 45 454
Franchised stores 286 2 2411 719 421
Before property disposals 7129 6106 116 4 8756
(Loss)/profit on property disposals - - (10) 17
7129 6106 1154 892 3971 2857 777 617
Totat 9,0220 85881 1,211 3 1,0459 69115 52841 (2,00567) (1,8731)
Total non-operating assets/fiabiities) 2495 969 (31913 (18597
Total assets/(iabilities) 7,610 53810 (5,1970) (3,7328)

1 The excagtional pension credi has ansen due 1o changes n the UK defined beneld plan relalng 1o how members benefits buid up from | Oclober 2007 To the axtent that
members have chosen the option 10 mit thew futurs pensionable salary mcreases 10 flation thers 13 a past sernce creait to reflect the impact of adustng ther projectad final
pensionable salanes

2 Owned stores consist of tha Marks & Spencer owned businessas in the Republic of reland Hong Kong Tawan and, since 28 February 2008 Graece, a number of other Balkan
states and Switzerand and snca 20 March 2008 the Czach Republic Siovalea Latva and Lithuania, which wera ncluded i franchsed stores up to that date (see note 25}

3 Non-operabing assets and labiities nclude balances i respect of finanang and taxation

Revenue onginates in the following geographical segments United Kingdom £8,595 3m (last year £8,218 6m) and International.
£426 7m (last year £369 5m) The value of goods exported from the UK, mcluding shipments to intemational subsidianes,
amounted to £499 7m (last year £438 Om)

Included within UK Retail is an operating profit of £28 3m (last year £19 5m} in respect of fees receved from HSBC in relation
to M&S Money
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2 Segmental information continued
Other segment tems
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2008 2007
United Uneed
Kingdom Intemational Total Kngdom  International Totat
£m £m £m £m £m £m
Revenue

General merchandise 4,059 3 4917 45510 40028 4239 4,4267
Food 4,249 8 2212 44710 39747 1867 4,1614
8,309 1 7129 9,0220 79775 6106 85881

Expenditure on mntangible assets excluding goodwill

(see note 13) 837 - 837 485 - 485
Expenditure on property, plant and equipment’

{(see note 14} 9199 509 9708 7189 270 7459
Amortisation (see note 13) 213 - 213 142 - 142
Depreciation (see note 7, 14) 2817 146 2963 258 4 101 268 5

3 Expense analysis
2008 2007
£m &m
Revenue 9,0220 85881
Cost of sales {5,5352) (5.2469)
Gross profit 3,4868 38412
Selling and marketing expenses {1,9127) (17792
Administrative expenses (5345) (5841)
Other operating income 497 66 1
Profit on property disposals 270 19
Exceptional pension credit {see note 2 11) 950 -
Operating profit 11,2113 1,0459
The cost of sales above represents cost of Inventones recognised as an expense in the year
The seling and marketing expenses and administrative expenses in the table above are further analysed in the table below
2008 2007
Selling and Admini- Seing and Adrmm
marketng strative Total marketing . strag ota)
R e T m Tt em
Employee costs (see note 10A) 920 4 2301 1,1505 9288 2453 11,1741
QOccupancy costs 3669 648 4317 3105 62 4 3729
Reparrs, renewals and maintenance of property 790 198 98 8 554 191 745
Depreciation and amortisation 2859 a1z 3176 264 4 183 2827
Other costs 2605 1881 448 6 2201 2390 459 1
Operating expenses 19127 5345 24472 17792 5841 23633
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Notes to the financial statements

continued

4 Profit before taxation
The following tems have been included in amving at profit before taxation

2008 2007
£m £m
Net foreign exchange gans (80) 87
Deprsciation of property, plant, and equipment
- owned assets 2904 266 8
- under finance leases 59 17
Amortisation of intangibles 213 142
Profit on property disposals (27 0) (19
Operating lease rentals payable
- property 1675 1434
~ fixtures, fithings and equipment 84 72
Exceptional pension credit (see note 2, 11) (850) -
Exceptional finance costs (see note 5) - 304

Included tn administrative expenses 1s the auditars’ remuneration, including expenses for audit and non-audit senvices, as follows

2008 2007
£m £m
Statutory audit services
Annual audit of the Company and the consolidated accounts 03 03
Audtt of subsidiary companies 08 08
11 11
Non-audit-related services
Other services pursuant to legrstation 03 C1
Tax advisory services 04 02
Other services 01 02
08 05

In addtion to the above, fees In respect of the annual audit of the Marks & Spencer UK Pension Scheme were £nil {last year £0 1m)

5 Finance Income/costs

2008 2007
£m £m
Finance income
Bank and other Interest recevable 55 130
Pension finance income (net) (see note 11E) 589 208
Finance income 64 4 338
Finance costs
Interest on bank borrowings 16 41
Amorhsation of issue costs of bank loans 03 15
Interest payable on syndicated bank facility 300 68
Interest payable on medium term notes 840 775
Interest payable on secuntised loan notes - 190
Interest payable on finance leases 34 22
Dividend on non-equity B shares - 02
Unwinding of discount on partnership liability to the Marks & Spencer UK Pension Scheme 273 13
Before exceptional finance costs 146 6 1126
Exceptional finance costs! - 304
Finance costs 146 6 1430
Net finance costs 822 109 2

1 Last year excephonal finance costs represented the unamortised transaction costs a ong-off meka-whole prermum and the cancedabon of the swaps ansing oq the redemphon
of £317 2m of secured bonds Thase bonds wera redeemed n order to release properties for use i the lmited partnershup with the Marks & Spencer UK Pension Scheme
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6 Income tax expense
A Taxation charge

Current tax
UK corporation tax at 30% (last year 30%)
- cumrent year 1230 1724 3z
- current year tax on exceptional finance costs - (6 5) o
- pror years (13 1) 61 ‘3’% |
1098 1720 g
Overseas cumrent taxation 75 75 §
Total current taxation 117 4 1795
Deferred tax (see note 24)
- current year 1840 108 2
- pnor years 67 (102
Total deferred taxation 1907 980 g
Total Income tax expense 308 1 2775 5
B Taxation reconcihiation 8
2008 2007 g
£m £m
Profit before tax : 1,1291 936 7
Taxation at the standard UK corporation tax rate of 30% (last year 30%) 3387 2810 .
Depreciation, charges and other amounts on non-qualfying fixed assets 06 54
Other income and expenses not taxable or deductible (13) (10 - |
Tax on exceptional finance costs not deductible - 26 2
Overseas profits taxed at lower rates (68) 64 g
Impact of change in UK corporation tax rate {16 7) - =
Adjustments to tax charge In respect of pnor pencds (6 4) {41} 3
Total income tax expense 308 1 2775 2

The post-exceptional effective tax rate was 27 3% (last year 29 6%) and the pre-exceptional effective tax rate was 27 0% (last
year 29 4%) The change in the standard UK corporation tax rate to 28% from Apnl 2008 has resulted in a deferred tax credit
of £16 7m, reducing the {otal effective tax rate by 1 5%

7 Discontinued operation

On 28 Apnl 2006, the Group disposed of Kings Super Markets Inc to a US mvestor group for US$61 5m excluding cash in the
business at the date of disposal Depreciation of £0 3m incurred last year i the penod before disposal has been excluded
from the segmental disclosures in note 2
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Notes to the financial statements

continued

8 Earnings per share

The calculation of eamings per ordinary share is based on earnings after tax and

n 1ssue during the year

the weighted average number of ordinary shares

The adjusted earnings per share figures have also been calculated based on earnings excluding the effect of property disposals
and exceptional tems These have been calculated to allow the shareholders to gan an understanding of the underlying trading

performance of the Group

For diluted earnings per share, the weighted average number of ordinary shares n issue s adjusted to assume conversion of
all dilutve potental ordinary shares The Group has only one class of dilutive potential ordinary shares being those share options
granted to employees where the exercise price s less than the average market pnce of the Company’s ordinary shares durng

the year
Detalls of the adjusted earnings per share are set out below
2008 2007
£m £m
Earnings after tax 8217 659 9
Profit from discontinued operation - on
Earnings after tax - continuing 8217 659 2
Property disposals {net of tax} (27 0) (14)
Exceptional pension credit (net of tax} (66 5) -
Exceptional finance costs (net of tax) - 239
Adjusted earnings after tax - continuing 728 2 6817
million milion
Weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue 16713 16886
Potentially dilutive share options under Group’s share option schemes 160 263
Weighted average number of diluted ordinary shares 1,6873 17149
A Basic earnings per share
pence poenca
Basic earnings per share 492 391
Profit from discontinued operation per share - -
Basic earmings per share — continuing 492 391
Property disposals per share {(16) ©1)
Exceptional pension credit per share {40} -
Exceptional finance costs per share - 14
Adjusted basic earnings per share - continuing 436 404
B Diluted earnings per share
pence penca
Diluted earnings per share 487 385
Profit from discontinued operaton per share - -
Dituted earmings per share - continuing 487 385
Property disposals per share {16) 1)
Exceptional pension credit per share (39 -
Exceptional finance costs per share - 14
Adjusted diluted earnings per share - continuing 432 3398
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9 Dividends
2008 2007 2008 2007
per share per share fm €m
Dividends on equity ordinary shares
Paid final dmdend 120p 82p 2035 154 6
Paid intenm dividend 83p 63p 1401 106 0

20 3p 15 5p 3436 2606

In addrtion, the directors have proposed a final dividend in respect of the year ended 29 March 2008 of 14 2p per share amounting
to a dvidend of £217 9m It will be patd on 11 July 2008 to shareholders who are on the Register of Members on 30 May 2008
In hine with the requirements of IAS 10 - 'Events after the Balance Sheset Date’, this dvidend has not besn recogrised within
these results

10 Employees
A Aggregate remuneration
The aggregate remuneration and associated costs of Group employees were

2008 2007
Total Total
£m £m
Wages and salanes 930 8 9313
Social secunty costs 623 757
Other pension costs 1031 1119
Share-based payments 290 273
Employee welfare and other personnel costs 357 325
Ex-gratia costs 1056 51
Capitalised staff costs (20 9) 97
Aggregate remuneration 1,150 5 11741
Details of key management compensation are given in note 32D
B A ber of !
verage number of employees 2008 2007
UK stores
- management and supervisory categones 5,267 5,235
- other 62,820 64.074
UK head office
- management and supervisory categories 2,599 2,396
- other 927 850
Overseas 3,776 3,316
Total average number of employees 75,389 75,871

If the number of hours worked was converted on the basis of a normal working week, the equivalent average number of full-ime
employees for continuing operations would have been 52,276 (last year $2,670)

C Directors’ emoluments
Emoluments of directors of the Company are summarnsed below Further detals are given in the Remuneration report on pages
48 to 55

2008 2007
£000 £000
Aggregate emoluments 3,930 5,369

The emoluments exclude payments to former directors of £262,000 (last year £307,000)
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70 MARKS AND SPENCER CGROUP PLC

Notes to the financial statements

continued

11 Retirement benefits

The Group provides pension arrangements for the benefit of its UK employees through the Marks & Spencer UK Pension
Scheme This has a defined benefit section, which was closed to new entrants with effect from 1 Apni 2002, and a defined
contrbution section which has been open to new members with effect from 1 Apnil 2003 Further details of the pension scheme
can be found on page 34

The defined benefit section operates on a final salary basis and at the year end had some 24,000 active members (last year
27.,000), 58,000 deferred members (last year 57,000) and 39,000 pensioners (last year 37,000) At the year end, the defined
contribution section had some 8,000 active members flast year 7,000) and some 1,000 deferred members (last year 1,000)

The Group also operates a small funded defined benefit pension scheme in the Republic of Irefand Retirement benefits also
include a UK post-retirement healthcare scheme and unfunded retirement benefits

Within the total Group retirement benefit cost of £44 2m, excluding the exceptional pension credt, {last year £91 1m) £28 Om
(last year £78 Om) relates to the UK defined beneftt section, £11 7m (st year £8 6m) to the UK defined contnbution section
and £4 5m {last year £4 5m) to other retrement benefit schemes

A Pensions and other post-retirement liabilities
H

2008 2007
€m Em
Total market value of assets i 504586 52275
Present value of scheme liabilities (4,5423) (5,487 Q)
Net funded pension plan asset/{dsfictt) 503 2 (259 5)
Unfunded retirement benefits {13} (12
Post-retirement healthcare (18 4) (22 6)
Net retirement benefit asset/(deficit) 4835 (283 3)
Analysed on the balance sheet as
Retirement benefit asset 504 0 -
Retirement benefit deficit {20 5) {283 3)
4835 (283 3}

B Financial assumptions

A full actuanal valuation of the UK defined benefit pension scheme was camed out at 31 March 2006 and showed a deficit of
£704 Om The financial assumptions for the UK scheme and the most recent actuarial valuations of the other post-retirement
schemes have been updated by independent qualified actuanes to take account of the requirements of IAS 19 - "Retirement
Benefits' and IFRIC 14 - ‘The Limit on a Defined Benefit Asset, Minmum Funding Requirements and therr Interaction” in order
to assess the liabiities of the schemes

2008 2007
% %
Rate of increase in salanes 31t045 37
Rate of increase In pensions In payment for service
— pre-Apnl 1997 28 26
- between Apnl 1997 and July 2005 35 30
- post-July 2005 24 23
Discount rate 68 53
Inftation rate 35 30
Long-term healthcare cost mcreases 86 80

The amount of the surplus vanes if the main financial assumptions change, particularly the discount rate I the discount rate
increased/decreased by O 1% the IAS 19 surplus would increase/decrease by ¢ £100m

C Demographic assumptions

The demographic assumptions are in line with those adopted for the last formal actuanal valuation of the scheme One of the most
signficant demographic assumptions underlying the valuation is mortalty The post-retirement mortality assumptions are based
on an analysis of the pensioner mortality trends under the scheme for the penod to March 2006 updated to allow for anticipated
longevity improvements over the subsequent year The specific mortality rates used are based on the PMA92 and PFA92 tables,
adjusted to allow for the experience of scheme pensioners The e expectancies underlying the valuation are as follows

2008 2007

years years

Current pensioners (at age 65) - males 210 210
—females 235 235

Future pensioners (at age 65) - males 219 219

- females 243 243
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11 Retirement benefits continued
D Analysis of assets and expected rates of return

The major categones of assets and as a percentage of total plan assets are

MARKS AND SPENCER GROUPALC 71

2008 2007 2008 2007
fm om % %
Property partnership interest 506 6 4953 10 g
UK equihes 7921 8260 16 16
Overseas equities 1,166 13853 22 27
Government bonds 4654 3630 9 7
Corporate bonds 20585 2,i530 41 41
Cash and other 106 3 49 2 -
50455 52275 100 100

Th -
e expected long-term rates of return are 2008 o007
% %
Property partnership interest 60 556
UK equities 83 84
Overseas equities 83 84
Government bonds 46 47
Corporate bonds 60 53
Cash and other 50 55
Overall expected return 67 66

The overall expected return on assets assumption 1s denved as the weighted average of the expected returns from each of

the main asset classes The expected return for each asset class reflects a combination of histoncal performance analysss,

the forward-looking views of financial markets (as suggested by the yields available) and the views of investment organisations
Consideration is also given to the rate of return expected to be available for reinvestment

At year end, the UK scheme indirectly held 479,356 {last year 463,964) ordinary shares in the Gompany through its nvestment

in an Aquila Life UK Equity Index Fund
E Analysis of amount charged against profits

2008 2007
£m £m
Operating cost
Curnrent service cost! 106 1 113 9
Curtalment gain (30) 20
Exceptional pension credit {95 0) -
81 1119
Finance cost
Expected return on plan assets {3427) (282 Q)
Interest on scheme habiities 2838 261 2
Net finance ncome (58 9) (20 8}
Total {50 8) 911

1 includes £11 7m (ast year £8 6m) in relation 10 delined contnbution plans
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Notes to the financial statements

continued

11 Retirement benefits continued
F Scheme assets
Changes In the farr value of the scheme assets are as follows

2008 2007

£ £m

Farr value of scheme assets at start of year 5,2275 4,6062
Expected returm on scheme assets® 3427 2820
Employer contnbutions? * 1111 6113
Contnbutions from scheme members 10 -
Benefis pad {220 4) {191 8)
Actuanal foss {422 6) 80 4)
Exchange movement 62 02
Fair value of scheme assets at end of year 50455 52275

1 The actual retum on schame assets was a loss of £79 8m {ast year gain of £201 6m)

2 The contnbution for 2006/07 includes the sddiional contnbution of the proparty partnership interest of £500 Tm transtermed sto the UK dafned benstit pension schema on
14 March 2007 and cash contnbubons of £57 7m pard i March 2006 pius £40 3m paid in Apnl 2007 to increase contnbutions from 15 8% to 27 0%

3 Thes year the Group has agreed o pre fund £200 Om of ts annual contibution o the UK definad benefit pension scheme tor tha naxt three ysars by contnbuting to the Trustee
nghis to further income of the property backed partnership Additional properties with a cumrent markst value of approximately £400 Om have been put Into the partnership 10
facitate the transaction The prepayment i m respect of annual contnbutions 1o 1he UK scheme at the rate of 24 3% of pensionable salanas up to 30 September 2008 and
then 23 7% up to the next full actuarial valuation it 16 estimated that spproximately £76m of the prepayment will relats to the year endad 28 March 2009

G Retirement benefit obligations

Changes in the present value of retirement benefit obiigations are as follows

2008 2007
£m £m
Present value of obligation at start of year 55108 54011
Current service cost 1061 1139
Curtaiiment gain 80 20
Exceptional pension credit {950) -
Interest cost 2838 2612
Contnbutions from scheme members 10 -
Benefits paid (220 4) (191 8)
Actuanal gain (1,028 0) (71 8)
Acquisttion of subsidiary 04 -
Exchange movement 63 02
Present value of obligation at end of year 45620 55108
Analysed as
Present value of pension scheme habilities 45423 54870
Unfunded pension plans 13 12
Post-retrement healthcare 184 226
Present value of obligation at end of year 45620 55108
HC
umulative actuanal gains and losses recognised in equity 2008 2007
£m tm
Loss at start of year 19356) (927 0)
Net actuanal gains/(losses) recognmised in the year 605 4 (8 6)
Loss at end of year {330 2) {935 6)
1 History of expenence gains and losses
UK GARP
2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
£m £m £m £m £m
Expenence adjustments ansing on scheme assets (422 6) {80 4) 454 3 77 4 4019
Expenence (losses)/gains ansing on scheme liabiliies 615) 188 200 + (240) (30 3)
Changes n assumptons underlying the present value of scheme liabiiies 1,089 5 530 (643 6) {131 5) (157 8)
Actuanal gamns/{losses) recognised in equity 6054 86) (169 3) (78 1) 2138
Farr value of scheme assets 50455 52275 46062 39568 36342
Present value of scheme liabilities (45423) (54870) (5,3813) (461100 (4,2801)

Pension scheme asset/{deficit)

503 2

(259 5)

(775 1) (654 2)

{645 9)
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12 Share-based payments
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The charge for share-based payments for the year was £29 Om (last year £27 3m} Further detauls of the option and share
schemes that the Group operates are provided in the Remuneration report on pages 48 to 55

A Save As You Earn Share Option Scheme

Under the terms of the scheme, the Board may offer aptions to purchase ordinary shares in the Company once in each financial
year to those employees who enter into an HM Revenue & Customs (HMRC) approved Save As You Earn (SAYE) savings contract
HMRC rules bmit the maxsmum amount saved to £250 per month The price at which options may be offered 1s 80% of the
average mid-market pnce for three consecutive dealing days preceding the offer date The options may normally be exercised
dunng the penod of six months after the compietion of the SAYE contract, either three or five years after entenng the scheme

2008 2007

Waighted Wenghtad

Number average Number average

of options exercise pnce of options exerciss pnce

Outstanding at beginning of the period 33,241,616 327 6p 40,403,625 261 6p
Granted 7,716,437 . 5170p 6,569,527 559 Op
Exercised {10,212,015) 234 8p (11.814,068) 232 4p
Forfeited (2,207,700) 450 7p (1.637.,012) 325 5p
Expired (93,578) 2352p {280,456) 258 Op
Outstanding at end of the pencd 28,444,760 403 1p 33,241,616 327 6p
Exercisable at end of penod 948,372 262 9p 726,615 243 4p

For SAYE share options exercised dunng the period, the weighted average share prce at the date of exercise was 535 2p

(last year 698 Bp)
The farr values of the options granted dunng the year have been calculated using the Black-Scholes model assuming the
inputs shown below
2008 2007
3-yearplan  5-year plan 3-year plan S-year plan
Grant date Nov07  Nov 07 Nov06  Nov 06
Share price at grant date 646p 646p 698p 698p
Exercise pnce 517p 517p 559p 559p
Option iife in years 3years Syears 3years Syears
Risk-free rate 4 6% 4 6% 54% 53%
Expected volatlity 21 6% 25 2% 215% 27 5%
Expected dwvidend yield 27% 27% 22% 22%
Far value of option 167 5p 201 8p 200 6p 247 8p
Volatiity has been estimated by taking the histonc volatility in the Company's share pnce over a three- or five-year penod
The resutting farr value Is expensed over the service penod of three or five years on the assumption that 20% of options will
lapse over the service penod as employees leave the Group
QOutstanding options granted under the UK Employees’ SAYE Scheme are as follows
Weighted average remaining
Number of options contractual lia (years)
Optiona granted 2008 2007 2008 2007 Opton price
January 2000 - 161,410 - 03 223p
January 2001 338,682 3,848,712 03 13 156p
January 2002 - 227,479 - 03 250p
January 2003 371,017 3,495,809 03 13 283p
January 2004 4,078,721 4,484 581 13 22 228p
January 2005 3,703,910 6,834,424 21 23 280p
January 2006 7,164,101 7,713,616 21 31 349p
January 2007 5,434,588 6,375,585 30 40 559p
January 2008 7,353,741 - 40 - 517p
28,444,760 33,241,616 26 25 328p
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12 Share-based payments continued
B Executive Share Option Scheme

Under the terms of the Executive Share Option Scheme, last approved by shareholders in 2005, the Board may offer options
to purchase ordinary shares in the Company to executive directors and senior managers at the market pnce on a date to be
determined pnor to the date of the offer No further options may be granted under any schemes other than the 2005 scheme

No awards have been made under the 2005 scheme Further details are set out in the Remuneration report on page 50

Performance targets are assessed over a three-year penod from the date of grant with no ability o retest any grants Once
options have vested they can be exercised dunng the penod up to 10 years from grant date

2008 2007

Weighted Waghted

Number average Number average

of options exercise pnce of options exercise pnce

Outstanding at beginning of the period 12,017,117 3412p 18,135,466 333 5p
Exercised {2,235,209) 3410p (5,522,018) 316 6p
Forfeited (152,698) 348 6p (589,781) 334 8p
Expired (5,692) 527 Op (6.550) 458 Op
Qutstanding at end of the pencd 9,623,518 3410p 12017117 341 2p
Exercisable at end of the pencd 8,444,937 339 4p 3,637.471 328 4p

For executive share options exercised dunng the penod, the weighted average share price at the date of exercise was 845 5p

(last year 632 3p)

The resutting farr value is expensed over the expected service penod of five years on the assumption that 30% of options will

lapse over the service penod as employees leave the Company

Outstanding options granted under all Executive Share Option Schemes are as follows

Weghted averags remaineng
Number of options contractual hfe {years)

Optlons granted 2008 2007 2008 2007  Option prce
1984 Scheme
June 1997 - 5,692 - D2 527p
1997 Scheme
June 1998 161,863 247,778 02 12 557p
November 1998 7,425 7.425 06 16 404p
June 1999 98,880 127,521 12 22 358p
2000 Scheme
September 2000 232 3.445 25 34 215p
June 2001 135,989 196,303 33 42 256p
December 2001 71,658 74,161 37 a7 350p
2002 Scheme
June 2002 659,465 760,394 42 52 350p
November 2002 47,150 66,980 a7 56 353p
June 2003 1,502,053 1,975,461 52 62 297p
November 2003 36,109 77,078 57 66 270p
February 2004 33,111 33,111 58 68 270p
July 2004 4,831,318 6,236,497 63 73 347p
November 2004 859,684 868,599 67 76 337p
June 2005 1,178,581 1,336,672 72 82 352p

9,623,518 12,017,117 59 68 335p
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12 Share-based payments continued

C Performance Share Plan

The Performance Share Plan is the pnmary long-term incentive plan for approximately 100 of the most senior managers and

was first approved by shareholders in 2005 Under the plan, annual awards, based on a percentage of salary, may be offered
The extent to which the awards vest I1s based on adjusted earnings per share growth over three years The value of any dvidends
earned on the vested shares dunng the three years will also be paid on vesting Further details are set out in the Remuneration
report on page 49 Awards under this scheme have been made in each year since 2005

Dunng the year, 3,414,413 shares (last year 3,511,040} were awarded under the plan The weighted average farr value of the
shares awarded was 704 Op (last year 572 9p)

D Deferred Share Bonus Plan

The Deferred Share Bonus Plan was introduced in 2005/06 as part of the annual bonus scheme for approximately 450 of the
most senior managers As part of the bonus scheme, the managers are required 1o defer a proportion of any bonus paid into
shares which will be held for three years There are no further performance conditions on these shares, other than continued
employment, and the value of any dividends earned dunng the deferred penod will be paid on vesting

Duning the year, 2,182,379 shares were awarded under the plan in relation to the 2008/07 annual bonus The fair value of the
shares awarded was 706 6p

E Restricted Share Plan

The Restncted Share Plan was established in 2000 as part of the reward strategy for retention and recruitment of senior managers
who are wital to the success of the business The plan operates for senior managers below executive director level Awards under
the plan are made as part of ongoing reviews of reward packages, and for recrutment The shares are held In trust for a penod

of between one and three years, at which point they are released to the employee, subject to them still being in employment

The value of any dividends earned duning the restncted penod will also be paid at the time of vesting

Dunng the year, 328,165 shares (last year 38,622) have been awarded under the plan The weighted average farr value of the
shares awarded was 604 6p (last year 578 Op)

F United Kingdom Share Incentive Plan
The Share Incentive Plan 1s a discretionary, all-employee pian, approved by HMRC, under which Freeshares may be allocated
by the Company The last award was made in June 2003, which will vest in June 2008

G Share Matching Deal Plan

The Share Matching Deal Plan was mntroduced n 20086 for those empioyees who were eligtble to recetve a cash-only bonus
The scheme was not open to those employees who participated in the Deferred Share Bonus Plan The Plan allows employees
to mvest a proportion of ther bonus in shares of the Company These investment shares must be held by the participant for
three years, dunng which tme they will recerve dividends At the end of the three-year holding perod, if the participant 1s stil

n employment with the Company, and still holds the investment shares, they will receive one matching share for every four

that they bought

Dunng the year, 26,603 (last year 41,086) matching shares have been awarded under the Share Matching Deal Plan, at a farr
value of 609 3p (last year 596 4p)

H Marks and Spencer Employee Benefit Trust

The Marks and Spencer Empioyee Benefit Trust (the Trust) holds 8,795 BO6 (last year 4,767,449} shares with a book vaiue
of £60 Om (last year £28 1m) and a market value of £34 Om (last year £32 3m) These shares were acquired by the Trust in
the market in addition, the Trust has entered into a call option to purchase up to 8 1 million of the Company's shares The
Trust used funds provided by Marks and Spencer pic to meet the Group's obligations Awards are granted to employees at
the discretion of Marks and Spencer plc and shares are awarded to employees by the Trust 1n accordance with the wishes
of Marks and Spencer plc under senior executive share schemes, including the Restncted Share Plan Dividends are warved
on all of these plans except for the Deferred Bonus Share Plan and Restncted Share Plan where dividends are paid via a
Dwvidend Reinvestment Plan for awards made in the form of forfeitable shares
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Notes to the financial statements

continued

13 Intangible assets

software
Computer uncler
Goodwill Brands softwara  development Total
¢m m £m £m £m

At 2 Apn! 2006
Cost or valuation 695 800 423 67 1985
Accumulated amortisation - 80) 27 Q) - (350)
Net book value 695 720 1863 67 1635
Year ended 31 March 2007
Opening net book value 695 720 153 67 1635
Addtions - - 03 46 2 465
Transfers - - 259 (25 9} -
Oisposals - - ©1) (16) (17
Amortisation charge - 53) 89 - (14 2)
Closing net book value 695 667 325 254 1941
At 31 March 2007
Cost or valuation 695 800 512 254 2261
Accumuiated amortisation - (133) {18 7) - (320)
Net book value 695 667 325 254 194 1
Year ended 29 March 2008
Opening net book value 695 667 325 254 1941
Addtions 484 - 1886 651 1321
Acquisition of subsidianes - - 06 - 06
Transfers - - 125 (125) -
Amortisation charge - {54) (15 9) - (21 3)
Closing net book value 179 613 48 3 780 3055
At 29 March 2008
Cost ar valuation 1179 800 829 780 3588
Accumulated amorbisation - (187) {34 6) - {53 3)
Net book value 1179 613 483 780 3055

Goodwill of £69 5m relates to the acquisition of per una, which was acquired in October 2004 £34 3m of goodwill refates to the

acquisition of Marks and Spencer Mannopoulos B V in February 2008 and a further £14 1m of goodwill was recognised in March
2008 on the acquisition of COMS a's Goodwill is not amortised, but tested annually for impairment with the recoverable amount
being determined from value In use calculations The key assumptions for the value in use calculations are those regarding the

discount rate, growth rates and changes in income and costs

The Group prepares discounted cash flow forecasts based on financial forecasts approved by management covering a three-year
penod, which takes account of both past performance and expectations for future market developments Cash flows beyond this
three-year penod are extrapolated using a growth rate of 2 0%, which does not exceed the long-term average growth rate for the
Croup's retall businesses Management estimates the discount rate using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the nisks spectfic to retail businesses A pre-tax discount rate of 9 5% has been used

Brands consist of the per una brand which is being amortised on a straight-iine basis over a penod of 15 years
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Assets

Fixtures nthe
Land and Ettngs and course of
buktngs equpment  construchon Total
tm m tm tm

At 2 Apnl 2006
Cost 23922 32871 405 57198
Accumulated depreciation (822 (20618) - (2.1440)
Net book value 23100 12253 405 3,5758
Year ended 31 March 2007
Opening net book value 23100 12253 405 35758
Exchange difference 27 {1 6) 02 (4 5)
Additions 639 5787 1033 7459
Reclassification from mvestment property (see note 15) 132 - - 132
Transfers 88 273 (36 1) -
Disposals 6 4) (10 7) - (17 1}
Depreciation charge (139) (254 9) - (268 8)
Closing net bock value 23729 15641 1075 4,0445
At 31 March 2007
Cost 24682 36533 1075 62290
Accumulated depreciation {953} (2,088 2) - {2,184 %)
Net book value 23729 1,564 1 1075 40445
Year ended 29 March 2008
Opening net book value 23729 1,564 1 1075 4,0445
Exchange difference 184 101 59 344
Additions 826 6928 1954 9708
Acquisition of subsicharies 180 115 02 207
Transfers 118 1108 (122 6) -
Disposals (73 8) 52 {01) (79 1)
Depreciation charge 85) {287 8) - {296 3)
Closing net book value 2,4214 2,096 3 1863 4,7040
At 29 March 2008
Cost 25252 4,4733 1863 7,1848
Accumulated depreciation (1038) (2,377 0) - (2,480 8)
Net book value 24214 20963 1863 4,7040

The net book value Includes fand and buildings of £42 2m (last year £43 7m) and equipment of £35 6m (last year £16 4m) where

the Group s a lessee under a finance lease
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Notes to the financial statements

continued

15 Investment property

£m £m
Cost

At start of year 253 386
Reclassification to property, plant and eguipment - (13 3)
At end of year 253 253

Depreciation

At start of year 02 01

Reclassification to property, pfant and equipment - ©1)
Depreciation charge 01 02

At end of year 03 02
Net book value 250 251

The nvestment properties were valued at £31 7m (last year £34 3m) as at 31 March 2008 by qualified professional valuers
working for CB Richard Eliis, Chartered Surveyors, acting in the capaciy of external valuers

All such valuers are Chartered Surveyors, bemng members of the Royal Insttution of Chartered Surveyors (RICS) The properties
were valued on the basis of market value All valuations were camed out In accordance with the RICS Appraisal and Valuation

Standards As the investment properties are held at depreciated histoncal cost, this valuation has not been reflected in the
carrying value of the assets

The Group receved rental ncome of £1 5m (last year £1 7m) in respect of these investment properties

16 Investment in joint venture

2008 2007

£m £m
At start of year g3 90
Share of profit 03 03
At end of year 96 93

The jont venture represents a 50% equity interest iIn Hedge End Park Limited, a property investment company mncorporated
in Great Britain The partner in the jont venture Is J Sainsbury pic

In relation 10 the Group's interest In joint ventures, the assets and liabiities are shown below

2008 2007

£m m

Non-curvent assets 27 26
Current assets 72 71

Current labilities 03 04
Net assets 96 93
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17 Other financial assets

£m £m
Non-current
Unlisted investments , 30 30
Current
Listed UK secunties 435 46 2
Uniisted investments 53 47
488 509
18 Trade and other receivables
2008 2007
tm £m
Non-current
Other recevables 135 14
Prepaid pension contnbutions {see note 21) 1240 -
Prepad leasehold premiums 2701 242 8
Other prepayments and accrued ncome 24 28
4100 2470
Current
Trade receivables 879 690
Less Provision for impanrnent of recevables 33 11
Trade recevables — net 846 67 9
Other recewvables 329 519
Prepaid pension contnbutions (see note 21) 760 -
Prepaid leasehold premiums 109 . 76
Other prepayments and accrued income 1032 693
3076 186 7

Trade recevables that were past due but not mparred amounted to £12 6m (last year £24 1m)

19 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents includes short-term deposits with banks and other financial Insttutions, with an nitial maturnty of
three months or less and credt card debtors receivable within 48 hours The camying amount of these assets approximates
therr far value

The effective iInterest rate on short-term bank depostts is 5 4% (last year 4 9%), these deposits have an average matunty of
26 days (last year three days)

20 Trade and other payables
2008 2007
£m £m
Current
Trade payables 226 9 2597
Other payables 4255 3278
Social secunty and other taxes 56 1 496
Pension contnbutions payable - 403
Accruals and deferred income 268 1 366 5
9766 11,0439
Non-current
Accruals and deferred income' 191 2 876

1 includes the far valua of the put opiion £52 2m (st year £nil) exercisable on 4 Aprft 2013 (see note 27) and conbngent considerabion for the acquisibon of COMS a s €4 Om
(tast year End) payable by Aprd 2010 (see note 25)
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Notes to the financial statements

continued
21 Borrowings and other financial habiihes
2008 2007
[ £m
Current
Bank loans, overdrafts and commercial paper’ 257 4 1897
Syndicated bank faciity? 6150 2969
Finance lease liabilities 62 44
878 6 4610
Partnership iiabilty 1o the Marks & Spencer UK Pension Scheme 500 -
9286 461 0
Non-current
6 375% £375m medium term notes 20113 38240 3813
5 875% £400m medium term notes 20123 4214 3975
5 625% £400m medium term notes 20143 3988 3985
6 250% US$500m medium term notes 20174 2530 -
7 125% US$300m medium term notes 2037* 1511 -
6 875% £250m puttable callable reset medium term notes 2037° 2529 -
Finance lease liabilities 773 572
19365 12345
Partnership hability to the Marks & Spencer UK Pension Scheme 6732 496 9
26097 17314
Total 3,5383 12,1924

1 Bank loans, overdraits and commercial paper inciudes a £5 Om (ast year £5 Om} oan from the Hedge End Park Limited joint venture (see note 16}
2 Relales 1o a £ 2on commutied bank revolvng credit facility set to mature on 26 March 2013
3 These notas are 1ssued under Marks and Spencer pics £3bn European Madum Torm Note Programme and all pay ntarest ennually

4 Interast 0n thesa bonds s payable seme-annually

5 These notes nchude an nvestor pul and issuer cal option exercisable n Decamber 2012

Dunng the year the Group I1ssued new bonds totalling £638m in both the US$ and steriing debt capital markets On 6 December
2007 the Group 1ssued under rule 144A of the U S Secunties Act US$500m of notes out to 2017 and USE300m of notes out to
2037 at fixed rates of 6 250% and 7 125% respectively These notes have been swapped back nto sterling proceeds and pay

fixed stering rates of 7 034% and 7 238% respectively These cross currency swaps have been designated as cash flow hedges

m relation to the US$ notes

In addition on 13 December 2007 the Group issued £250m of puttable callable reset notes at a coupon rate of 6 875% The
Group's nght of call within these notes can be assigned which provides a discount of 8 75% per annum until December 2012,
gving a net interest rate for the first five years of 6 125% |If called at that date, these notes will continue to exist untit December

2037 at an underlying rate of 4 54% plus the applicable credit spread at that time

At year end, the Group had a committed syndicated bank revoimng credit facility of €1 2bn set to mature on 26 March 2013

This faciity contains only one financial covenant being the ratio of eamings before interest, tax, depreciation, amortisation

and rents payable to interest plus rents payable In addition the Group entered into a £400m credit agreement set to expire
on 13 February 2009 with an option to term out for a further year This faciity has the same financial covenant as the man
£1 2bn facilty The Group also has a number of undrawn uncommitted faciities available to it At year end, these amounted
to £155m (last year £155m), all of which are due to be reviewed within a year At the balance sheet date a sterling equivalent
of £615m (last year £287m) was drawn under the committed facilities and a further £29m (last year £19m) was drawn under

the uncommitted facilities

Finance teases

The minimum lease payments under finance leases fall due as shown in the table opposite it Is the Group's policy to lease certain

of its properties and equipment under finance leases The average lease term for equipment 1s five years and 125 years for
property Interest rates are fixed at the contract rate All lsases are on a fixed repayment basis and no arrangements have been
entered into for contingent payments The Group's obligations under finance leases are secured by the lessors’ charges over the

leased assets
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21 Borrowings and other financial habiliies continued

Partnership hability to the Marks & Spencer UK Pension Scheme

The partnership kabilty to the Marks & Spencer UK Pension Scheme of £723 2m (last year £496 9m) relates to the amortising liability
In respect of the obligations of the Marks and Spencer Scottish Limited Partnership to the Marks & Spencer UK Pension Scheme

Last year the Group agreed a plan with the Pension Scheme Trustee to address the majonty of the deficit by transfeming properties with
a cumrent market value of £3 1bn into a partnership established by the Group A hmited interast in this partnership was contnbuted
to the pension scheme on 13 March 2007 The Group retains control over these properties, iIncluding the flexibility to substitute
alternative properties The properties held in the partnership have been ieased back to Marks and Spencer pic The pension scheme
s entitied to a distnbution from the profits of the partnership of £50m per annum for 15 years from July 2008 The Group has the
nght to buy out the Trustee's partnership interest at any point for an amount equal to the net present value of the remaining annual
distrnbutions due to the pension scheme

This year the Group has agreed to pre-fund £200 Om of sts annual contrnbution to the Marks & Spencer UK Pension Scheme for
the next three years by increasing the value of the Scheme’s interest in the property partnership To meet this £200 Om contribution
of value, the Group has placed additional properties nto the partnership with a current market value of approximately £400 Om
These properties have been leased back to Marks and Spencer pic and the fixed annual distnbution made out of partnership
profits to the pension scheme will be increased by approxmately £21 9m for the remaining 14 year penod

Each year the total obligation will reduce as payments are made to the pension scheme by the partnership and an interest charge
will be taken to the Income statement representing the unwinding of the discounted obligation at an implied average Interest rate
of 5 7% (last year 5 3%) The far value of this hability was £706 6m {last year £485 3m)

Matunty of borrowings and other financial ltabihties
The contractual maturty of the Group’s non-denvative financial labilities and denvatives ts as foliows

Parinarship
Bank loans Labdity to
overdrafts and Finance the M&S UK
commercial  Syndicated Medum term lsase Penson Davatve  Denvauve
paper bank facility notes tabhvas Scheme Total assets batuklies Total
£m £m £m m tm om tm £m £m
Timing of cash flows
Within one year {1597) (2969) 69 9) (7 1) - (5336)| 5585 (564 6) 61
Between one and two years - - 699 (82) (500) (1281) 185 (18 6) 01
Between two and five years - - (5847 (113) (20000 (7960) - - -
More than five years - - (8685 (1960) (5000) (1,564 ) - - -
(1587) {(2969) (1,5930) (2226) (7500) (3,0222)| 5770 (5832 62
Effect of discounting - - 4157 1610 2531 8298
At 31 March 2007 (1587) (2969) (1,177 3) 616) (4969) (2,192 4)
Timing of cash flows
Within one year (2574) (6150) {(1126) (116) (500) {1,0466)| 6434 (6637) (20 3)
Between one and two years - - {1126) (1920 (719) (2037) 907 (90 9) 02
Between two and five years - - (1,0889) (262) (2157 (1,3308) 848 (83 0) 18
More than five years - - {(1,8665) (2149) (7190) (2,8004)| 7473 (736 4) 109
(257.4) (6150) (3,1806) {271 9) (1,056 6) (5,381 5)| 1,566 2 (1,574 0) (7 8)
Effect of discounting - - 13214 1884 3334 18432
At 29 March 2008 (2574) (6150) (1,8592) (835 (7232) {3,5383)

This table does not include trade and other payables (see note 20)
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Notes to the financial statements
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21 Borrowings and other financtial habibties continued

Financial habiities

After taking Into account the hedging dervatives entered into by the Group, the currency and interest rate exposure of the Group's
financial liabilities I1s as set out below excluding short-term payables and the COMS a s put option

2008 2007
Fixed Floating Fixed Roating
rate rate Total rate rate Total
£m £m £m m £m £m
Currency
Sterling 26659 6730 33389 11,7358 2807 2,0255
Euro - 1925 1925 - 1595 1595
Hong Kong dollar - 69 69 - 74 74

2,6659 8724 13,5383 11,7358 4566 2,1924

The floating rate steriing and euro borrowings are linked to interest rates related to UBOR These rates are for penods between
one and three months As at the balance sheet date and excluding finance leases but including the partnership liability, the fixed
rate sterling borrowings are at an average rate of 6 0% (last year 5 8%} and the weighted average tme for which the rate 1s fixed
1S 10 years (Jast year 8 5 years)

Interest rate analysis
The effective interest rates at the balance sheet date were as follows

%
Committed and uncommitted borrowings 55 48
Medwm term notes 62 59
Finance leases 50 44
Partnership hability to the Marks & Spencer UK Pension Scheme 57 58

22 Financial instruments

Treasury policy and financial nsk management

The Group operates a centralised Group treasury function to manage the Group’s funding requirements and financial nisks in line
with the Board approved treasury policies and procedures, and therr delegated authorities

The Group's financial Instruments, other than dervatives, comprise bormowings, cash and liquid resources and various tems, such
as trade debtors and trade creditors, that anse directly from its operations The main purpose of these financial instruments 1S to
raise finance for the Group’s operations

Group treasury also enters into denvative transactions, prncipally interest rate and currency swaps and forward currency contracts
The purpose of these transactions is to manage the interest rate and cumency nsks ansing from the Group’s operations and financing

It remains the Group’s policy not to hold or issue financal instruments for trading purposes, except where financial constraints
necessttate the need to lquidate any outstanding investments The treasury function is managed as a cost centre and does
not engage In speculative trading

The principal financial nsks faced by the Group are hquidity/funding, interest rate, foreign currency and counterparty nsks
The policies and strategies for managing these nsks are summansed as follows

A Liquidity/funding risk

The Group's funding strategy Is to ensure a mix of funding sources offenng fiexibility and cost effectiveness to match the
requirements of the Group Operating subsidianes are financed by a combination of retamned profits, bank borrowings,
medium term notes and committed syndicated bank facilities In addition to the existing borrowings, the Group has a Euro
Medium Term Note programme of £3bn, of which £1 5bn (last year £1 2bn) was In issuance as at the balance sheet date
Short-term borrowings are backed by a £1 2bn five-year committed syndicated bank facility, of wiich £615 Om (last year
£296 9m) was drawn down at the balance sheet date In addition the Group entered into a £400m credit agreement set
to expire on 13 February 2009 with an option to term out for a further year
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22 Financial instruments continued

B Interest rate nsk

The Group Is exposed to interest rate nsk in relation to the stering, US$, euro and Hong Kong dollar variable rate financial
assets and liabiities The Group’s policy Is to use dervative contracts where necessary to mantain a mix of fixed and floating
rate borrowings to manage this nsk The structure and matunty of these denvatives comespond 1o the undertying bomowings
and are accounted for as far value or cash flow hedges as appropriate

At the balance sheet date, fixed rate borrowings amounted to £2,665 8m {last year £1,735 8m} representing the public bond
Issues and finance leases, and amounting to 75% (last year 79%) of the Group's gross borrowings

C Forergn currency nisk

Transactional foreign currency exposures anse from both the export of goods from the UK to overseas subsidianes, and from
the import of materials and goods directly sourced from overseas suppliers Group treasury hedge these exposures prncipally
using forward foreign exchange contracts progressively covenng up to 100% out to 18 months Where appropnate hedge cover
can be taken out longer than 18 months with Board approval The Group 1s pnmanly exposed to foreign exchange in relation to
stering against movements i US$ and euro

Forward foreign exchange contracts in relation to the Group's forecast currency requirements are designated as cash flow
hedges with farr value movements recognised directly in equity To the extent that these hedges cover actual currency payables
or recewvables then associated far value movements previously recognised in equity are recorded In the income statement in
conjunction with the corresponding asset or hability As at the balance sheet date the gross notional value in sterling terms of
forward toreign exchange sell or buy contracts amounted to £619m (last year £456m) with a weighted average matunty date
of seven months (last year six months)

The Group does not use denvatives to hedge balance sheet and profit and loss translation exposures However, the translation
exposures ansing on the overseas net assets are hedged with foreign currency debt As at the balance sheet date, €243m
(iast year € 234m) and HK$107m (last year HK$113m) currency debt was hedging overseas net assets

The Group also hedges foreign currency intercompany loans where these exist Forward foreign exchange contracts in relation
to the hedging of the Group's foreign currency intercompany loans are designated as held for trading with farr value movements
being recognised in the income statement The corresponding farr value movement of the intercompany loan balance results

in an overall £nil mpact on the income statement As at the balance sheet date, the gross nottonal value of intercompany loan
hedges was £80m (last year £128m)

Gans and losses In equity on forward foreign exchange contracts as of 31 March 2008 will be released to the income statement
at vanous dates over the following 19 months {last year 14 months) from the balance sheet date

D Counterparty nsk

Counterparty nisk exists where the Group can suiffer financial foss through default or non-performance by financia institutions
Exposures are managed through the Group treasury policy which Iimits the value that can be placed with each approved counterparty
o minimise the nsk of loss The counterparties are imited to the approved institutions with secure long-term credit ratings of A+/A1
or better assigned by Moody's and Standard & Poor's respectively Limits are reviewed regularly by senior management The credit
nsk of these financial Instruments 1s estimated as the far value of the assets resulting from the contracts

The Group has very low retan credit nsk due to transactions being principally of a high volurne, low value and short maturty
The Group does not have any matenal exposures to concentrations of credit nsk with any one counterparty

The maximum exposure to credit nsk at the balance sheet date was as follows trade recevables £85m {ast year £68m), other
receivables £46m (last year £53m), cash and cash equivalents £318m (last year £180m) and dervatives £37m (last year £2m)

s Jnoqy

SIojeIIPU
eouBwWIOpad ABM

BJUBLIBACY) MBINGS [R1oUeU MBIAB) SSBUISNG

SuWeE]S |RISUBULY

uDIBLLLIOJUI
JBPOYBIEYS




84 MARKS AND SPEMCER GROUP PLC

Notes to the financial statements _

continued

22 Financial instruments continued

E Sensitivity analysis

The table below tlustrates the estimated impact on the Income statement and equity as a result of market movements in foreign
exchange and interest rates in relation to all of the Group's financial instruments The Group considers that a 1% +/- movement n
interest rates and a 10% weakening or strengtherung in steriing represents reasonable possible changes However, this analysis 15
for lustrative purposes only

The impact m the iIncome statement due to changes in interest rates reflects the effect on the Group's floating rate debt as at
the balance sheet date The impact in equity reflects the far value movement in relation to the Group's Cross currency swaps
The mpact from foreign exchange movements reflects the change in the farr value of the Group's fransactional foreign exchange
cash flow hedges and the net investment hedges at the balance shest date

The equrty impact shown for foreign exchange sensitmty relates to denvative and non-denvative financial nstruments hedging
net nvestments This value 1s expected to be fully offset by the retranstation of the hedged foreign currency net assets leaving

a net equity mpact of zero The table excludes financial instruments that expose the Group to interest rate and foreign exchange
nsk where such nsk s fully hedged with another financial nstrument Also excluded are trade recewvables and payables, and the
COMS a's put ophon

1% 1% 10% 10%
decreasa in ncrease in weoakenng  strengthening
mnterest rates nterest rates in sterling In stering
€m m £m £m

At 31 March 2007

Impact on income statement  gain/{loss) 32 382 - -
Impact on equity gan/{loss) - ~ (8 0) 66
At 29 March 2008
Impact on income statement gamn/(loss) 65 (6 5) - -
Impact on equity gan/{loss) 41 33 (15 5) 127
Denvative financial instruments
2008 2007
Assets Liabiities Assats Labiites
£m £m £m £m
Current
Options — held for trading 124 (12 4) - -
Forward foreign exchange contracts ~ cash flow hedges 50 (21 8) 14 {83)
- held for trading 10 {0 9) 10 -
184 (351) 24 83
Non-current
Cross currency — cash flow hedges 169 - - -
Farward foreign exchange contracts - cash flow hedges 13 - - 02)
182 - - 02

Dunng the year, the Group held a number of cross cumency swaps to redesignate fixed rate US$ debt to fixed rate stering debt
The attnbutes of these denvatives matched the charactenstics of the underlying debt hedged The amounts reported as options
held for trading In denvative assets and habilities represent the fair value of the call option with the puttable callable reset notes
murrored by the farr value of the sold option 1o have this call assigned

Fair vatue of financial instruments
With the exception of the Group's fixed rate bond debt and the partnership labilty (see note 21), there were no matenal differences
between the cammying value of non-denvative financial assets and financial iabities and ther fair values as at the balance sheet date

The carrying value of the Group's fixed rate bond debt was £1,859 2m (ast year £1,177 3m), the far value of this debt was
€1,740 7m (last year £1,162 8m)

Capital policy

The Group’s objectives when managing caprtal are to safeguard the Group's abihty to continue as a gong concern In order to
provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to mantain a capital structure that optimises the cost

of capttal In order to mantam or adjust the captal structure the Group may adjust the amount of dvidends paid to shareholders,
retum captal to sharehalders, 1ssue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt
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23 Provisions
UK Overseas

restructunng  restuctunng Total
£m £m £m
At 2 Apnl 2006 198 g0 283
Provided in the year 20 - 20
Released in the year 11) - (11)
Utiised dunng the year 61 {0 5) 6 6)
Exchange differences - 01) 1)
At 31 March 2007 141 84 225
At 1 Apnl 2007 141 84 225
Provided in the year 115 01 116
Released in the year 32 (20 52)
Utiised dunng the year 42 (03) 45)
Exchange differences - 13 13
At 29 March 2008 182 75 257

Analysis of total provisions
2008 2007
£m tm
Current 11 57
Non-current 146 168
Total provisions 257 225

The provision for UK restructunng pnmarily relates to costs of closing Lifestore, restructunng of the Direct operation and head
office restructunng

The prowision for overseas restructuring costs primarly relates to future closure costs n respect of discontinued operations
n Continental Europe

The non-current provisions relate to closure costs of discontinued operations in Continental Europe, the closure of Lifestore
operations and the restructunng of the Direct operation and are expected to be utiksed over a penod of 10 years

24 Deferred tax
Deferred tax 1s calculated in full on temporary differences under the liability method using a tax rate of 28% (last year 30%) for
UK differences and the local tax rates for overseas differences

The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities (after the offsetting of balances within the same junsdiction as permitted
by IAS 12 - *Income Taxes') dunng the penod are shown betow Deferred tax assets and liabilities are only offset where there
15 a legally enforceable nght of ofiset and there Is an intention to settle the balances net

Deferred tax assets/{(habiities) st o
e

essgls  Accelorated Penson  shori-term Total UK Overseas

temporary coptal  tamporary porary < ) doferred
dé{erences allowances differences diterences tax tax Total
£m £m £m £m £m tm £m
At 2 Apnl 2006 (95 0) (850) 2515 124 839 6 1) 778
Credited/(charged) to the ncome statement 44 (182) (71 4) {12 5) 977 03 (98 0)
Credited/{charged) to equity - - 34 220 254 09 245
At 31 March 2007 (80 6) (1032) 1835 219 1186 73 43
At 1 Apnl 2007 (90 6) (103 2) 1835 219 116 7 3) 43
Credited/(charged) to the income statement 13.7 41 4) (150 5) (12 9) {191 1) 04 {190 7)
Credtted/(charged) to equity - - (172 4) (151) {187 5) 18 {1857)
At 29 March 2008 {76 9) (144 6) (139 4) 61) (367 0) 51) (3721)

In amving at the daferred tax on fixed assets, credit has been taken for capital losses with a tax value of £53 Om (last year
£57 0m) No deferred tax 1s recognised on the unremitted earnings of overseas subsidiaries As the earnings are continually
renvested by the Group, no tax 1s expected to be payable on them in the foreseeable future Undistnbuted profits of overseas
subsidianes amount to £295 1m (last year £226 7m)

The Group Is clarming UK tax relief for losses incurred by some of its current and former European subsicianes In the ight
of continuing ligation, no asset has been recogmsed 1n respect of these claims
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Notes to the financial statements

continued
25 Acquisitions
BY COMSas Totat
£m £m £m
Book values g2 26 18
Net assets at far value {(100%) 92 26 118
Net assets acquired 46 13 59
Cash consideration 381 106 487
Contingent consideration - 40 40
Transaction costs 08 08 16
Total consideration 389 154 543
Goodwill ansing on acquisition 343 141 48 4

Mannopoulos B V

On 28 February 2008, the Group acquired Board control and 50% of the 1ssued share capital of Marks and Spencer
Marinopaulos B V for cash consideration of €50 Om and transaction costs of £0 8m The Marnopoulos group, located in
Greece, Bulgana, Croatia, Romania, Switzerland and Serbia, was previously a franchise partner of the Group and 1s a retailer
of general merchandise and food The fair values currently established for the acquisition are prowisional due to the proximity

of the date of acquisition to the Group's reporting date The acquisition has contnbuted £4 8m to sales and a £0 4m loss to
operating profit in the penod since the acquistion If the acquisition of the Mannopoulos group had been completed on the first
day of the financial year, Group sales for the year would have been £9,052m and Group profits attnbutable to equity holders

of the Company would have been £824m

COMSas

On 20 March 2008, the Group acquired 51% of the issued share capital of COMS a s for cash consideration of €13 6m and
transaction costs of £0 8m The COMS group, located n the Czech Republic, Latvia, Lithuania and Slovakia, was previously

a franchise partner of the Group and is a retailer of general merchandise and food The far values cumently established for

the acquisition are provisional due to the proximity of the date of acquisttion to the Group's reporting date The acquisition has
contrbuted £nil to sales and £nil to operating profit In the penod since acquistion If the acquision of the COMS group had been
compileted on the first day of the financial year, Group sales for the year would have been £9,034m and Group profits attnbutable
to equity holders of the Company would have been £822m The sale and purchase agreement includes call and put options
over the rematning 49% of the share capital of COMS a s exercisable in five years time The farr value of the put option {£52 2m)
has been recognised as a hability at 29 March 2008 (note 20 and note 27) On an undiscounted basis this habifity has a value

of £810m

Goodwil has ansen on the acquisitions of Marks and Spencer Mannopoulos BV and COMS a s due to the opportunities to
facinate a faster rate of growth and greater operating efficiency that do not meet the critena for recognition as an intangible
asset at the date of acquisition.

26 Share capital

2008 2007

Shares fm Shares £m

Authonsed ordinary shares of 25p each 3,200,000,000 8000 3,200,000,000 8000
Allotted, called-up and fully paid ordinary shares of 25p each

At start of year 1,699,773,100 4249 1,682,437,014 4206

Shares issued on exercise of share options 12,447,224 31 17,336,086 43

Shares purchased in buy back {125,741,901) (31 4) - -

At end of year 1,586,478,423 3966 1,699,773,100 4249

Issue of new shares

12,447,224 (last year 17,336,086) ordinary shares having a nominal value of £3 1m (ast year £4 3m) were allotted during the year
under the terms of the Company's schemes which are descnbed n note 12 The aggregate consideration receved was £31 6m
(last year £44 9m)

Share buy back

125,741,901 (last year ni) ordinary shares having a nominal vaiue of £31 4m (last year £ril} were bought back and subsequently
cancelled during the year 1n accardance with the authonty granted by shareholders at the Annual General Meeting in July 2007
The aggregate consideration pad was £555 9m {last year £nif)
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27 Statement of changes in shareholders’ equity
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Oranary Share Capital
share premum recemplon Hedging Other Retainad
capaal account reserve reserve raserve’ eamings*? Total
£m £m £m €m £m £m o
At 2 Apnl 2006 4206 1623 2,1138 80} (65422) 50572 12037
Profit for the year attnbutable to shareholders - - - - - 6599 6599
Pwdends - - - - - (260 6) (260 6)
Foreign currency translation - - - - - (14 0) (14 O)
Shares 1ssued on exercise of employee share options 4 3 406 - - - - 449
Redemption of B shares - - 547 - - 547 -
Purchase of own shares held by employee trust - - - - - {18 4) (18 4)
Purchase of call option for Company’s shares - - - - - (17 3) (17 3)
Actuanal loss on retirement benefit deficit - - - - - 86) 8 6)
Deferred tax on retrement benefit deficit - - - - - 40 40
Deferred tax on share schemes - - - - - 223 223
Charge for share-based payments - - - - - 273 273
Cash flow and net investment hedges
- losses deferred in equity - - - (7 4) - - {7 4)
- recycled and reported in net profit - - - 107 - - 07
~ amount recognised in inventories - - - 21 - - 21
- tax on fair value gans - - - (18) - - (18)
At 31 March 2007 4249 2029 2,1685 44) (65422) 53971 16468
At 1 Apnl 2007 4249 2029 2,1685 (44) (6542.2) 53971 16468
Profit for the year attnbutable to shareholders - - - - - 8217 8217
Dividends - - - - - (343 6) {343 6)
Foreign currency translation - - - - - 213 213
Shares 1ssued on exercise of employee share
options 31 285 - - - - 316
Shares purchased in buy back (31 4) - 314 - - (555 9) (555 9)
Purchase of own shares held by employee trust - - - - - 319 {31 9)
Put option for acquisition of minonty interest - - - - - (522) (52 2)
Actuanal gain on retrement benefit asset - - - - - 6054 605 4
Deferred tax on retrement benefit asset - - - - - (172 4) (172 4)
Deferred tax on share schemes - - - - - {10 6) (10 6)
Charge for share-based payments - - - - - 200 290
Cash flow and net investment hedges
- losses deferred in equity - - - (33 5) - - (3395)
- recycled and reported In net profit® - - - 13 - - 13
~ amount recogrised In inventones - - - 24 - - 24
- tax on far value gans - - - (27) - - 27)
At 29 March 2008 3966 2314 2,1999 (369) (6,5422) 57079 11,9567

1 The Other reserve was created as part of the capial restructunng that took place n 2002 IlrepresmtsmdmermbetwemmmmmmmueotmesharmMmorm
the capital reduction by the Compxany (Deing the camying vatus of the investment n Marks and Spencer pic and the share capitat share pramium and capeta) recemption reserve

of Marks and Spencer pic al the date of the transacbon

2Curmlauvagoowﬂloimm:yeaEmmmtmmtmoiwbwmmnemwmmoummmmm

3 includes a cumutativa £18 4m gan Bast year £2 9m loss) in the currency reserve

4 Far valus of the put opton over the 49% munonty inerest in the share captal of COMS a s

S Amounts recyclad and reported in net protit have all been recarded i cost of sales
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Notes to the financial statements

continued

28 Contingencies and commitments
A Capital commitments

2008 2007
£m fm
Commitments m respect of properties in the course of construction 1828 2658

B Other matenal contracts
In the event of a matenal change in the trading arangements with certain warehouse operators, the Group has a commitment

to purchase property, plant and equipment, at values ranging from historical net book valus to market value, which are currently
owned and operated by them on the Group’s behalf

C Commitments under operating leases
The Group leases various stores, offices, warehouses and equipment under non-cancellable operating lease agreements
The leases have varying terms, escalation clauses and renewal nghts

2008 2007
£m £m
Total future minimum rentals under non-cancellable operating leases expinng
Not later than one year 178 106
Later than one year and not later than five years 904 57 4
Later than five years and not later than 25 years 2,2236 11,7783
Later than 25 years 14924 15276
Total 3,8243 33739

The total future sublease payments to be received are £70 5m (last year £68 8m)

29 Analysis of cash flows given in the cash flow statement

A Cash flows from operating activities - continuing 52 week 5
weeks woeks
ended

ended
29 March 31 March
2008 2007
€m m
Profit on ordinary activties after taxation 8210 659 2
Income tax expense 308 1 2775
Interest payable and similar charges 146 6 1430
Interest recevable (64 4) (33 8)
Operating profit 12113 10459
Increase in nventories (54 4) (42 8)
(increase)/decrease In recewvables (33 5) 125
Payments to acqure leasshold properties (47 6) (135)
(Decrease)/increase in payables (61 9) 136 6
Exceptional operating cash outflow (see note 29F) 25) (42
Depreciation and amortsation 3176 2827
Share-based payments 290 273
Profit on property disposals (27 0) (19
Exceptional pension credit {95 0) -
Cash generated from operations - continuing 12360 11,4426

B Cash flows from operating activities - discontinued
Last year £0 7m cash was generated from the discontinued operations of Kings Super Markets Inc
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29 Analysis of cash flows given in the cash flow statement continued
C Capital expenditure and financial investment

MARKS AND SPENCER GROUP ALC B9

52 weeks 52 wecks
ended ended
29 March 31 March
2008 2007
£m em
Purchase of property, plant and equipment {958 4) (666 9)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 916 29
Purchase of intangible fixed assets (60 6) {46 5)
Sale of non-current financial assets - 03
Sale/(purchase) of current financial assets 28 (2 6)
{92486) (7128)
D Other debt financing
Cash inflow from borrowings 87 216
Drawdown of syndicated bank facility 3176 296 4
Redemption of securtised loan notes - (3199
Redemption of medwm term notes - (818 2)
Issue of medhium term notes 6317 3975
Decrease In obligations under finance leases (35) 22
Redemption of B shares - (547)
954 5 479 2)
E Other equity financing
Shares 1ssued on exercise of employee share options 316 449
Shares purchased in buy back (655 9) -
Purchase of own shares held by employee trust 819 (184)
Purchase of call option for Company’s shares - (17 3)
(556 2) 92
F Exceptional operating cash flows
UK restructuning costs 22 (28)
Closure of Lifestore - 07)
Closure of European operations (03) 07)
(25) {42)

Additions to property, plant and equipment dunng the year amounting to £23 5m (last year ££13 6m) were financed by new

finance leases

SN noqy

MBIAS] [IoueBLE MBINBS SSaUISNg SI0lEPUI
ooueuuoped Aoy

8OUBUIBADD)

SIUSLLIBIR]S {BIDUBUIY

UOIBWIOMI
Jepioyereys




90 MARKS AND SPENCER GROUP PLC

Notes to the financial statements

continued
30 Analysis of net debt
A Reconcihation of movement in net debt
Exchange
A and other At
1 Apnl non-cash 29 March
2007  Cashfiow Acgustions  movements 2008
£m £mn £m £m £m
Net cash
Bank loans {see note 21) {456 1) (393 3) (22 0} - (871 4)
Less amounts treated as financing (see below) 3230 3263 220 - 6713
{133 1) 67 0) - - {200 1)
Cash and cash equivalents (see note 19) 1801 1325 39 16 3180
Net cash per cash flow statement 470 655 39 15 1179
Current financtal assets (see note 17) 509 (28 - 07 488
Debt financing
Bank loans, overdrafts and commercial paper
treated as financing (see above) (26 6) 87N (22 0) - 57 3)
Syndicated bank facility (see note 21) {296 4) (317 6) - - (614 0)
Medium term notes (see note 21) (1,167 2) 6317) - (133 {(1,8122)
Finance lease habilties {see note 21) (61 6) 35 {7 6) (17 8) (83 5)
Partnership habiity to the Marks & Spencer
UK Penston Scheme (see note 21) (495 6) - - (199 0) {694 6)
Debt financing (2.047 4) (954 5) (29 6) (230 1) (3,2616)
Net debt (1,949 5) (8918) (257) (2279) (3,0949)
B Reconciliabon of net debt to balance sheet
2008 2007
£m £m
Balance sheet and related notes
Cash and cash equivalents 3180 180 1
Current financial assets (see note 17) 48 8 509
Bank loans, overdrafts and commercial paper (see note 21) (257 4) (169 7)
Syndicated bank facility (see note 21) {615 0) (296 9)
Medium term notes (see note 21) (1,892 (1,177 3)
Finance lease habilities {see note 21) {83 5) 61 6)
Partnership hability to the Marks & Spencer UK Pension Scheme (see note 21) (723 2) {496 9)
(3,171 5) (1,961 4)
Interest payable included within related bomowing 766 119
Total net debt (3,094 9) (1,949 5)
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31 Foreign exchange rates

Waghted average salesrate  Wesghted average profil rate Balance sheet mte
2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007
Euro 140 148 141 147 126 147
US dollar 201 188 201 188 199 196
Hong Kong dollar 1562 1477 1561 1477 1552 1531
32 Related party transactions
A Subsidianies

Transactions between the Company and its subsidianes, which are related parties, have been eliminated on consolidation and
are not disclosed in this note Transactions between the Company and its subsidianes are disclosed i the Company's separate
financial statements

B Hedge End joint venture
A loan of £5 Om was receved from the joint venture on 9 October 2002 It 1s repayable on five business days’ notice and
was renewed on 1 January 2008 Interest was charged on the loan at 5 25% until 31 December 2007 and 5 5% thereafter

C Marks & Spencer Pension Scheme
Details of other fransactions and balances held with the Marks & Spencer Pension Scheme are set out in note 11

D Key management compensation

2008 2007

£m £m

Salanes and short-term benefits ' 81 g6
Post-employment benefits . 04 a4
Termination benefits 04 -
Share-based payments 123 67
Total 212 167

Key management includes the Directors, the Group Secretary and only those members of key management who are members of
the Executive Committee Further information about the remuneration of indvidual directors is provided in the Remuneration report

Dunng the year, key management have purchased goods at the Group's usuat pnces less a 20% discount This discount is
available to all staff employed directly by the Group i the UK

E Other related party transactions

Supplier transachons occurred during the year between the Group and a company controfled by a close farmily member of

Kate Bostock, who became a director during the year These transactions amounted to £5 4m during the year {last year £5 2m)
with an outstanding trade payable of £0 1m at 29 March 2008 (last year £0 2m) The company was a supplier prior to Kate's
employment by the Group
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Company income statement

52 weeks 52 weeks
ended anded
29 March 31 March
2008 2007
Notes £m £m
Cther operating iIncome 01 -
Operating profit c2C3 01 -~
Income from shares in Group undertakings 344 0 2606
Finance costs c4 - 02
Profit tor the year attnbutable to shareholders 3441 260 4
pany balance sheet .
Notes £m [raslalﬂ
Assets
Non-current assets
Investments in Group undertakings c 9,1474 B,1356
Current assets
Trade and other recewvables 02 ot
Total assets 9,476 98,1357
Liabilities
Current habiiies
Amounts owed to Group undertakings 25846 20608
Trade and other payables 10 09
Total habihties ' 2,6856 2,0617
Net assets 6,5620 7,0740
Equity
Called-up share capital - equity 396 6 424 9
Share premium account c7 2314 2029
Capttal redemption reserve cr  2,1989 2,16856
Merger reserve ¢z 13973 13973
Retained earnings cr 23368 2,8804
Total equity 65620 7,0740

The financial statements were approved by the Board and authonsed for issue on 19 May 2008 The financial statements also

compnse the notes on pages 94 and 95

Sir Stuart Rose, Chief Executive
lan Dyson, Group Finance and Operations Director

WL———/\
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Company statement of changes

in shareholders’ equity

52 waeks

SOUBLIGACS)

ended ended
29March 31 March
2008 2007
£m £m
Profit attbutable to shareholders 344 1 260 4
Dwvidends (3436) (2606)
05 02
Caprtal contnbution for share-based payments 18 133
Shares purchased in buy back (555 9) -
Shares issued on the exercise of employee share options 316 449
Change in shareholders’ equity (512 0) 580
Opentng shareholders’ equity as previcusly reported 69845 69398
Pnor year adjustment (see note C7) 895 762
Opening shareholders’ equity 70740 7,0160
Closing shareholders’ equity 6,620 70740
Company cash flow statement
ended ended
29 March 31 March
2008 2007
£m £m
Cash flows from operating activiies
Cash generated from operations o1 0¢
Net cash inflow from operating activities 01 09
Cash flows from investing activities
Dvidends received 3440 260 6
Net cash inflow from investing activities 3440 2606
Cash flows from financing activities
Interest paid N 02
Shares purchased In buy back (555 9) -
Redemption of non-equity B shares - (54 7)
Shares issued on exercise of employee share options 316 449
Drawdown of mtercompany loan 523 8 91
Equity dvidends paid (343 6) {260 6)
Net cash outflow from financing activities (3441) (261 5)

Net cash inflow from activities
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning and end of year

SN INoqy

SIOIEIIPUI

MENDI SSOLISNg
. soueuwopad ASy|

MANG) [E1oUBUIY

SIUBWANELS [E1duBULY

uoIlEWIONA
Japjoyaieys




94 MARKS AMD SPENCER GROUP ALC

Company notes to the financial statements

C1 Accounting policies
The Company's accounting policies are the same as those set out in note 1 of the Group financial statements, except as
noted below

Investments In subsidianes are stated at cost less, where appropnate, provisions for mparment

C2 Employees

The Company had no employees during the current aor pnor year Directors received emoluments in respect of ther services to
the Company dunng the year of £822,000 (last year £751,000) The Company did not operate any penston schemes during the
current or preceding year

C3 Auditors' remuneration

Auditors' remuneration in respect of the Company’s annual audt has been borne by its subsidiary Marks and Spencer pic and
has been disclosed on a consolidated basis in the Company's consolidated financial statements as required by section 227A
of the Companies Act 1985

C4 Finance costs
Dwidends of Enil (last year £0 2m) were paid n respect of non-equity B shares

C5 Dividends
2008 2007 2008 2007
per share per share £m tm
Dividends on equity ordinary shares
Paid final dividend 120p 92p 2035 154 6
Paid intenm dividend 83p 63p 1401 106 0

20 3p 15 5p 3436 2606

In addrtion, the directors have proposed a final dvidend in respect of the year ended 31 March 2008 of 14 2p per share amounting
to a dividend of £217 9m It will be paid on 11 July 2008 to shareholders who are on the Register of Members on 30 May 2008
(n line with the requirements of IAS 10 - ‘Events after the Balance Sheet Date’, this dividend has not been recognised within
these results

C8 investments

A Investments in Group undertakings
2008 2007
£m £m
Begmning of the year as previously reported 98,0461 9,046 1
Pnor year adjustment {see note C7) 895 762
Beginning of the year restated 9,1366 09,1223
Additional investment in subsidiary 118 133
End of year 9,1474 91356

Shares in Group undertakings represent the Company's investment in Marks and Spencer pic
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B Pnncipal subsidiary undertakings

The Company’s pnncipal subsidiary undertakings are set out below A schedule of interests 1n all undertakings is filed with the
Annual Return

Proportion of voting nghts

and shares held by

Prnapal acimty ?;dnot;yei:wmorporanm Company A subsidhiary

Marks and Spencer plc Retailing Great Bntain 100% -
Marks and Spencer International Holdings Limited Holding Company Great Britain - 100%
Marks and Spencer {Nederand) BV Holding Company The Netherlands - 100%
Marks and Spencer Mannopoulos BV Holding Company The Netherlands - 50%
Marks and Spencer (reland) Lirmited Retailing Republic of Ireland - 100%
Marks and Spencer (Asia Pacific) Limited Retaiing Hong Kong - 100%
Marks and Spencer Simply Foods Limited Retailing Great Bntain - 100%
Marks and Spencer Marinopoulos Greece SA Retailing Greece - 100%
M S Insurance L P Financial Services Guernsey - 100%
Marks and Spencer Investments Limited Finance Great Bntain - 100%
St Michael Finance plc Finance Great Bntan - 100%
Marks and Spencer Finance plc Finance Great Bntan - 100%
Marks and Spencer Chester Limited Property Investment Great Britain - 100%
Marks and Spencer SCM Limited Procurement Great Britain - 100%
Per Una Group Limited Procurement Great Bntain - 100%

Marks and Spencer Scottish Limited Partnership Property Investment Great Britain - -

1 Marks and Spencer pic 1s 8 general partner

The Company has taken advantage of the exemption under section 231(5) of the Companies Act 1985 by providing information
only in relation to subsidiary undertakings whose results or financial position, in the opinion of the directors, pnncipally affected
the financial statements

C7 Statement of changes in shareholders’ equity

Ordinary Share Capral
share premium  redempton Merger Retatned
capial account reserve resenve earnings Tota!
£m &m £m £m £m

At 2 Apn! 2006 as previously reported 4206 1623 2,1138 13973 28458 69398

Pnor year adjustment - - - - 762 76 2

At 2 Apnl 2006 restated 4206 1623 2,1138 1,3973 2,9220 70160

Profit for the year attributable to shareholders - - - - 2604 260 4

Dvdends - - - - (260 6) (260 6)
Capital contribution for share-based payments - - - - 133 133

Shares 1ssued on exercise of employee share options

(see note 12) 43 406 - - - 449

Redemption of B shares - - 547 - (54 7) -
At 31 March 2007 424 9 2029 2,1685 13973 2,8804 70740
At 1 Apnl 2007 4249 2029 2,1685 11,3973 12,8804 7,0740

Profit for the year attnbutable to shareholders - - - - 3441 3441

Dwidends - - - -  (3438) (3436)
Capital contnbution for share-based payments - - - - 118 118
Shares purchased in buy back (31 4) - 314 - (555 9) (555 9)
Shares issued on exercise of employee share options

{(see note 12} 31 285 - - - 316

At 29 March 2008 396 6 2314 2,1999 11,3973 23368 6,5620
Prior year adjustment

Followang the implementation of IFRIC 11 - 1FRS 2 — Group and Treasury Share Transactions', the opeming balance sheet
at 2 Apnl 2006 has been restated to recognise £76 2m of capital contribution to the subsidiary in respect of equity-settled
share-based payment transactions

CB8 Related party transactions

Dunng the year, the Company has receved dmdends from Marks and Spencer pic of £344 Om (last year £260 6m) and

has increased its foan from Marks and Spencer plc by £523 8m (last year £9 1m) The outstanding balance was £2,584 6m
{last year £2,060 8m) There were no other related party transactions
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Group financial record

The figures for 2005 to 2008 are prepared under IFRS The figures for 2004 are UK GAAP figures presented in the same format

as the 2005 to 2008 figures
IFRS IFRS IFRS FRS | UKGAAP
2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
52 weeks 52 weeks 52 weeks 52 wesks 53 woeks
£m £m £m £m £m
Income statement
Revenue - continuing operations 9,0220 85881 7,7977 74905 |7,7281
Operating profit ~ continuing operations
UK Retail 1,095 9 9567 7845 5280 7386
Internationat Retall 1154 892 656 701 450
Total operating profit 12113 10459 8501 598 1 7836
Net interest payable (1411 (13000 (1219) (104 4) (457
Penston finance income/{charge) 589 208 175 114 (152)
Profit on ordinary activities before taxation - continuing operations 1,129 1 9367 7457 5051 7227
Analysed between
Before property disposals and exceptional tems 1,007 1 965 2 7514 556 1 7461
Profit/{loss) on property disposals 270 19 67 04 187
Exceptional pension credit 950 - - - -
Exceptional finance costs - (30 4) - - -
Exceptional operating costs - - - (50 6} 42 1)
Income tax expense (308 1) (277 5) (225 1) {150 1) (225 1)
Profit after taxation 8210 659 2 5206 3550 497 6
Profit from discontinued operations - 07 25 2312 547
Minonty interests 07 - - - -
Profit attnbutable to shareholders 8217 659 9 5281 586 2 552 3
IFRS IFRS IFRS! IFRS' | uk@GaaP
2008 2007 2008 2005 2004
£m £m tm tm £m
Balance sheet
Non-current assets
Intangible assets 3055 194 1 16356 165 4 -
Property, plant and equipment (including investment properties) 4,7290 40696 36143 3,6248 |3.4976
Joint venture and other financial assets 126 123 123 80 100
Retirement benefit asset 504 0 - - - -
Trade and other receivables 428 2 2470 242 8 2112 | 1,7793
Deferred tax assets - 116 839 730 2035
Non-current assets 59793 45346 4,1168 4,0834 (54904
Current assets 1,1817 8464 1,1421 8323 |2,0867
Total assets 71610 53810 52889 49157 7.577 1
Current habilities (1,9889) (1,6062) (2,0170) (1,237 4) [(1,9199)
Non-current habilities
Retirement benefit deficit (20 5) (283 3) (794 Q) (676 Q) (669 5)
Cther non-current habilities (3,1876) (1,8433} (1,2433) (2,0447) [{2.5337)
Total iabihties (5,197 0) (3,7328) (4,0552) (3,9581) |(5,123 1)
Net assets 1,964 0 16482 12037 9576 |2,4540

1 Non-current defamed tax assets have been mstated by €48 4m i 2005 and 2006 due 10 a change (N 8ccounting poicy (see nate 25)
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(FRS IFRS IFRS IFRS | UKGAAP
2008 2007 2006 2006 2004
52 weeks 52 weeks 52 weoks 52 weeks 53 woeks
£m £m tm n £m
Cash fiow
Cash flows from operating activities
CGenerated from operating activities 1,2360 1,4433 1,1975 16018 666 5
Taxation paid {166 2) {150 8) (101 5} (166 7) (220 4}
Cash flows from operating activities 1,0698 1,2925 10960 14351 446 1
Cash flows from investing activities
Acquisttions and disposals {46 4) 488 - 3511 513
Capital expenditure and financial Investment {924 6) (712 8) {266 3) {113 5) (817 4)
Interest received 48 132 129 154 144
Cash flows from investing activities (966 2) 650 8) {253 4) 2530 (251 7)
Cash flows from financing activities
Interest paid' {88 9) (145 Q) {142 8) (116 5) 61 2)
Non-equity dvidend paid - - - (28 B0
Other debt financing 954 5 (479 2) 4200 757 1 4136
Equity dwdends pad {343 6} (260 6) (204 1) (236 9) (247 1)
Other equity financing (556 2) 92 558 (2,265 1) (66 6)
Cash flows from financing achwvities {342 (875 6) {7111) (1,864 2} 357
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from activiies 694 (233 9) 1315 (176 1) 2301

1 2007 includes £21 6m of exceptional finance costs
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Group financial record

continued
Key performance measures
IFRS IFRS \FRS IFRS | UKGAAP
2008 2007 2008 2005 2004
52 weeks 52 weaks 52weeks 52 weeks 53 weeks
Gross profit
Gross margin' 386% 389% 383% 34 7% 35 4%
Revenue
rat fit
Net margin’ Operatng pro 134%  122% 109%  B80% | 99%
Revenue
Net margin excluding property disposals and exceptional tems 121% 122% 11 0% 87% 102%
Profitabilty’ Profit before tax 125% 109%  96%  67% | 94%
Revenue
Profitability excluding property disposals and exceptional items 11 2% 11 2% 96% 7 4% 97%
Basic earnings per share’ Basic earmngs 492 391 313 17 6p 242
98 per share Weighted average ordinary shares in issue P P P P
Earmings per share adjusted for property disposals
and exceptional tems’ 43 6p 40 4p 314p 192p 24 7p
Dwvidend per share declared in respect of the year 225p 18 3p 14 Op 121p 11 5p
Profi I h
Dwvidend cover roft atnibutable to shareholders 23x 21x 22x 29x 21x
Dividend payable
Profit attnbutable to shareholders
9 4
Return on equity? Average equity Sharehoiders’ funds 45 6% 6 3% 50 0% 35 1% 25 2%
Retail debt + net post-retirement liability
2 0 0,
Retal geanng Retal debt + net post-retirement liability 640% 591% 688% 762% A447%
+ retall shargholders’ funds
Retail fixed charge cover ~ OPerating profit before depreciation 5 3x 5 9x 49x 41x 7 3x
and operating lease charges
Fixed charges®
Net debt* (Em) 30049 19495 17208 21477 |1.9947
Caprtal expenditure® (Em) 1,102 9 7924 3377 2204 4335

1 Based on contnuing operations

2 Reta#t sharghokders' funds for 2005 ang 2006 have been restated 10 recogrnsa £48 4m of actonal tax assets and reserves folowing tha change in extemal mierprataton

of IAS 12 ~ Income Taxes
3 Fixed charges are delined a5 et (nterest payable and operating lsases payable
4 Excludes accrued interest
5 2008 includes £48 4m of goodwill




marksandspencer com/annualreport08

Shareholder information

Ordinary shares

As at 29 March 2008, there are 223,128 holders of ordinary shares whose shareholdings

MARKS AND SPENCER GROUP PLC 99

Financial calendar

are analysed below We also have a further 38,000 nvestors holding shares via our Zﬁz;dﬁﬂ:}‘;fwo dt:;glrglble
Corporate nominee Pe 30 May 2008
rcentage
Number of of :g?al Number of Percentage of y
shareholders shareholders ordnary shares ordnary shares AGM ~ Royal Festval Ha“.
Size of shareholding London
1-500 110,900 4970 22,118,506 139
501 - 1,000 45.179 2025 33575904 212 9July 2008
1,001 - 2,000 34,569 1649 49,132,796 310 Final ordinary dividend for the
2,001 - 5,000 23,065 1034 70,303,326 443 year to 29 March 2008 to be paid
5,00t - 10,000 5848 262 40,471,985 255 1 J | 2008
10,001 100,000 2907 130 68,418,477 43 1 July
100,001 - 1,000,000 472 023 165,817,568 1045 "
$,000,001 - Highest 188 009  1,136,639,863 7165 T’lf\ly;a;/ré?;utgse? ;B%"g?“”ced
Yotal 223,128 10000 1,588,478,423 100 00
Record date to be eligible for the
Shareholders are further analysed as foliows '?i"mgvg%dber 2008*
Type of owner
Prvate holders 212,856 9540 334,217,456 2107  Intenm ordinary dwdend to
Institutional and corporate holders 10,272 460 1,252,260,967 7893  bepad
Totat 223,128 10000 1,586,478,423 1000 9 January 2009*
provisional dates
Further information on many of the topics covered In Company website

these pages can be found under the ‘Investor’ section
of our websrte

Shareholder vouchers

We currently send a booklet of discount vouchers to our
shareholders each year At present there 1S no minimum
holding requirement to receive these, you just need to
be a shareholder at the qualfying date, which is normally
the dividend record date pnor to mailing The vouchers
for 2007/08 were distnbuted n January and were vaiid
throughout February and March 2008

Dividends
Shareholders are able to choose how they receive
ther divdends

* direct to therr bank account,t
* pad In foreign currencies,

* reinvested in M&S shares, or
¢ pad by cheque

tM8.S preferred option

The quickest and most efficient way to recerve your
dividends I1s to have them paid direct {0 your bank
account It saves warting for funds to clear and reduces
the paper and postage we use Those selecting this
payment method receve a consolidated tax voucher at
therr registered address each January However, we are
able to send a tax voucher with each payment if preferred
To change how you receve your dividends erther log on
to shareview co uk or contact Equinth

In July 2008 we will be launching our new corporate website
This will provide a number of interactive features and a greater
wealth of mformation Shareholders can be kept up-to-date
with the latest news, as well as watch recordings of past
AGMs and our financial results presentations Our AGM 15
agamn being broadcast live on the internet and details of

how to view this are included in the Notice of Meeting The
directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity

of the financial nformation on our website This information
has been prepared under relevant accounting standards

and legislation We welcome feedback on the website Please
emaill comments to chairman@marks-and-spencer com

Electronic communication

Registenng for online communication gives shareholders more
control of their shareholding The registration process 1s via our
registrars’ secure website shareview com Once registered
shareholders are able to

* glect how we communicate with them,

» amend therr detalls,

« amend the way dividends are receved, and
¢ buy or sell shares online

This doesn’t mean shareholders can no longer receve paper
copies of documents We are able to offer a range of sesrvices
and tailor communication to meet our shareholders' needs,
mailing hard copy documents to those who request them
Informed chaoices, aligned to new technology will reduce the
amount of paper, pnnt and postage we use Together, we
can minimise waste and our impact on the environment For
further information go to the Investor section of our website
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Shareholder information

continued

Electronic shareholding
Shareholders can hold shares electronically in our Corporate
nominee account This

= gives mncreased secunty for personal details,
« removes the need for a share certificate, and’
s provides share dealing at competitive rates

For further information please contact our registrars, Equiniti

Half year results
Our half year results will be available on our website in
November 2008

Lost shareholders

As announced at last year's AGM we are taking a more pro-
active approach to return unclaimed funds to shareholders
who have faled to keep therr details up to date We launched
a search programme with Trust Research Services (TRS),
who specialise in reuniting people with ther unclamed assets

Working closely with TRS and our registrars, Equinii, we
have been able to returmn unclaimed dividends amounting
to over £1m, and put these shareholders or beneficianes
back in touch with 2 miltion shares Further information
can be found on our webstte

Shareholder secunty

Shareholders are advised to be wary of any unsolicited
adwice, offers to buy shares at a discount, or offers of free
reports about the Company Details of any share dealing
tacitities that the Company endorses will be included in
Company mailings or on our website More detalled
information can be found at fsa gov uk/consumer

ShareGift

Shareholders with a small number of shares, the value of which
makes it uneconomical to sell, may wish to consider donating
them to the chanty ShareGift (Registered chanty no 1052686)
The Company and its shareholders are active supporters

of ShareGift donating over £200,000 to date Find out more
about ShareGift at sharegift org or by telephoning ShareGift
on +44 (0)20 930 3737

Amencan Depositary Receipts (ADRs)

The Company has a Level 1 ADR programme This enables US
nvestors to purchase Marks & Spencer Amencan Depository
Shares (ADS) in US Dollars ‘over the counter' Each ADS
represents two ordinary shares In February 2008 we changed
our ADR sponsor from JP Morgan Chase Bank NA to
Deutsche Bank Trust Company Amencas For further
information, please contact Deutsche Bank

emal DB@amstock com

website adrdb com

Toli-free for callers within the US 1 866 249 2583
For those calling outside the US +1 (718) 921 8137

How we do business

An update on Plan A, our five-year ‘eco plan’ to address key
social and environmental challenges facing M&S, 1s avalable
online at marksandspencer com/annualreport08

Unsolicited mait

The Company is obliged by law to make its share register publicty
avatlable should a request be received As a consequence,
some shareholders may receive unsolicited mait To hmit the
amount of unsolicited receved, please contact

The Mailing Preference Service (MPS)
DMA House, 70 Margaret Street, London W1W 8SS

Alternatively, register online at mpsonline org uk
or call the MPS Registration ine on 0845 703 4599

The maiing preference service Is an independent organisation
which offers a free service to the public within the UK
Registenng with them will help stop most unsolicited consumer
advertising matenal

Registered office and Head office

Waterside House, 35 North Wharf Road, London W2 1NW
Registered in England and Wales (No 4256886)
Telephone +44 (0)20 7935 4422

Group Secretary and Head of Corporate Governance
Graham Oakiey

Regsstrars

Equints Limited,

Aspect House, Spencer Road, Lancing,
West Sussex BN99 6DA

Telephone 0845 608 0810
and outside the UK +44 (0)121 415 7071

Further information
For additional copies of the Annual report or Summary financial
statements go to marksandspencer com/annualreport08

Alternatively, call 0800 591 697

Large print and audio files can be downloaded
from our website

Contact us

emall us at charman@marks-and-spencer com
Customer quenes 0845 302 1234

Shareholder quenes 0845 609 0810

{outside the UK) +44 (0)121 415 7071



@ marksandspencer com/annualreport08

Index

A Page
Accounting policies 60
Acquisittons 86
Audit Committee 42
Auditors’ remuneration 66
Auditors’ report 56
Authonsed share capital 86
B
B shares 87
Balance sheet 58, 92
Board 32
Bonus 33, 49, 53
Borrowing facilities 80
Brand 10
Cc
Capital commutments 88
Capital expenditure 34, 65,98
Cash flow statement 59, 93
Chairman'’s foreword 4
Chantable donations 38
Chief Executve’s statement 5
Clothing 11
Corporate governance statement 39
Cost of sales 65
Cntical accounting estimates

and judgements 63
Customers 3
D
Deferred tax 62, 67, 85
Depreciation 61, 65,77
Denvatwves 62, 84
Diluted earmings per share 68
Directors' emoluments 63, 69
Directors’ interests 52,54
Drrectors' responsibilities 37
Discontinued operation 67
Dmdend cover 08

Dmdend per shars 4, 34, 35, 69, 94, 98

E

Eamings per share 2,9, 34,68, 98
Employses 20
Environment 7 24
Exceptional tems 33, 64, 65, 66
Executive team 8

F Page
Finance costs/income 66, 94
Finance leases 61,66, 77, 80,
81, 82,90

Financial assets 79
Financial instruments 62,82
Financial liabilties 80
Financial record 96
Financial review 33
Fixed charge cover a8
Food 17
Footiall 3
Foreign exchange rates o1
G
Geanng 98
Geographic segments 64
Going concern 38
Goodwill 61, 76, 86, 87
Group directors’ report 35
H
Hedging reserve 87
Home 16
t
Income statement 57,92
Intangible asssts 76
International Financial

Reporting Standards 60
International retail 5.8,28,64
Inventories 58, 62
investment property 78
J
Jont venture 78.91
K
Key performance indicators 2,3
Key performance measures o8
L
Uke-for-like sales 33
M
Major shareholders 35
Margin (gross) 2,9,33,98
Marketplace 11
Market share 2
Minonty interest 57,58
Madernisation programme 24
Mystery shopper 3,22
M&S Direct 26

M&S Money 6

N Page
Nst debt 34, 59 90, 98
Nomination Commiitee 42

Non-GAAP performance measures 64

(o]
Occupangy costs 65
Operating assets 64
Operating leases 61, 66, 88
QOperating labibties 64
Operating profit 2,33, 57,64,92
P
Partnership kability 34, 81
Pensions 34,61, 70
Plan A 30
Prepaid teasehold premiums 79
Pnnespal nsks and uncertainties 44
Property, plant and equipment 77
Property valuation 38
Provisions 85
R
Related party transactions 91,95
Remuneration Committee 42, 48
Remuneration report 48
Reserves 87,988
Retaingd earnings 87,95
Return on equity 98
Revenue 2,33,57,64
Risk assessment 44
S
Segmental information 64
Service 7.22
Share-based payments 73
Shareholders’ equity 87,95
Shareholder information 99
Share capital 86, 95
Share issues 36, 86
Share options 80,54, 73
Simply Food 19,24
Sourcing & supply chain 22
Statermnent of recognised

income and expense 57
Stores 57,24
Subsidiary undertakings 95
T
Taxation 62,67,85
Total shareholder return 52
Trade and other payables 79
Trade and other recevables 79



MARKS &
SPENCER

marksandspencer.com/annualreportO8

Thss report § printed on Revwe uncoated a
100% recycledt paper made from post-consumer
collactad waste Revwa uncoated 8

d 10 the certfied er )

managerment system [SO 14001
Desagnod by Likemnd www Eemndgoup com
Primted by Royts Corporate Pant




